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CALENDAR AND INFORMATION ABOUT  
THE ANNUAL REPORT

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held on 17 April 2008 at 4:00 p.m. 
in Kongresshallen at Hotel Tylösand, Halmstad, Sweden. Shareholders 
wishing to participate at the Annual General Meeting should be 
registered in the shareholders’ register kept by VPC AB, (the Swedish 
Central Securities Depository), not later than 11 April 2008 and inform 
the company of their intention to participate on Getinge’s website 
www.getingegroup.com or by letter to

Getinge AB 
Attn: Årsstämma
PO Box 470 22
SE-100 74 Stockholm 
Sweden

or by telephone at +46 (0)35-25 90 818 not later than 1:00 p.m. on  
11 April 2008. Shareholders whose shares are registered in the name 
of a nominee must have temporarily registered their shares in their own 
name, to be able to participate at the Annual General Meeting, well in 
advance of 11 April 2008. Shareholders wishing to be represented by 
proxy must submit a relevant power of attorney to the company before 
the meeting. Anyone representing a legal entity must have a copy of the 
registration certificate or a corresponding authorisation document that 
shows the proper authorised signatory. Getinge AB’s interim report for 
the third quarter of 2007 contained guidelines for shareholders on how 
to proceed to submit proposals to Getinge’s Nomination Committee 
and how to propose motions to be addressed at the Annual General 
Meeting. 

Dividend
The Board of Directors and President propose that a dividend for 2007 
of SEK 2.40 (2.20) per share be paid, totalling SEK 484 m (444). The 
Board’s proposed record date is 22 April 2008. VPC anticipates being 
able to forward the dividend to shareholders on 25 April 2008.

Calendar for 2008
Annual General Meeting: 17 April 2008
Interim Report for January-March: 17 April 2008
Interim Report for January-June: 13 July 2008
Interim Report for January-September: 16 October 2008
Year-end Report for 2008: January 2009
Annual Report for 2008: April 2009

Financial reports
Getinge AB publishes all of its reports in Swedish and English. The 
reports are published on the Internet as soon as they are released and 
can be downloaded from www.getingegroup.com or ordered from:

Getinge AB
Attn: Information Dept.
PO Box 69,
SE-310 44 Getinge 
Sweden
Tel: +46 (0)35-15 55 00

Information about this Annual Report
The Getinge Group is referred to in this Annual Report as Getinge. 
Figures in brackets refer, unless otherwise specified, to activities in 
2006. Swedish krona is abbreviated (SEK) throughout this document. 
Millions of kronor are written as SEK xx m. All amounts are given in SEK 
m, unless otherwise specified. The term EBITA is used instead of 
”Operating profit after depreciation and impairment, but before 
deductions for amortisation and impairment of goodwill and other 
intangible assets, which have arisen in connection with company 
acquisitions.” Information provided in the Annual Report concerning 
markets, competition and future growth constitutes Getinge’s 
assessment based mainly on material compiled within the Group. In the 
Five-year summary, the years 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are reported 
in accordance with IFRS. Figures relating to 2003 have not been 
restated in accordance with IFRS. 

This document is essentially a translation of the Swedish language 
version. In the event of any discrepancies between this translation and 
the original Swedish document, the latter shall be deemed correct.
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Organic growth for 2007 amounted 
to 7.9%

Getinge’s sales have increased on 
average by 15.8% per year in the 
most recent five-year period. 

Getinge’s EBITA has increased on 
average by 16.6% per year in the 
most recent five-year period. 

Getinge’s profit before tax has 
increased on average by 12.8% per 
year in the most recent five-year 
period.

The Group’s operating cash flow 
increased by 19% in 2007. 
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TWO MAJOR ACQUISITIONS    

Getinge’s explicit growth strategy is based on organic growth and the acquisi-
tion of leading businesses with the aim of broadening and strengthening the 
Group’s customer offering. In line with this strategy Getinge concluded, in 
January 2007 the acquisition of the British company Huntleigh, and in January 
2008 the acquisition of the Cardiac and Vascular divisions of the US company 
Boston Scientific. These two acquisitions strengthen Getinge’s position in 
several key areas.    

ACQUISITION OF HUNTLEIGH 
For the Extended Care business area, the acquisition of Huntleigh entails: 
•	 a leading position in the wound-care area 
•	 a significant strengthening of distribution channels to hospitals 
•	 a broadening of the customer offering with entirely new product lines
•	 the creation of a platform for development and innovation in the area of 

patient handling 

ACQUISITION OF BOSTON SCIENTIFICS’ CARDIAC AND VASCULAR 
SURGERY DIVISIONS  
For the Medical Systems business area, the acquisition entails: 
•	 the strengthening of its position in cardiac surgery with entirely new  

product lines
•	 the expansion of its operations to also include vascular surgery
•	 a considerable strengthening of its presence and distribution channels in 

the US market for cardiac surgery
•	 the establishment of a strong platform allowing it to take additional steps 

toward building a world-leading position in the cardiac surgery area, which 
continues to offer considerable opportunities for further expansion  

ACQUISITION OF HUNTLEIGH 

Sales 2005 	 SEK 2,700 m 

Profit before tax 2005 	 SEK 300 m

Number of employees at acquisition date	 2 600	

Purchase consideration	 SEK 5.6 billion 

Completion	 3 January 2007 	

Consolidation	  February 2007 	

ACQUISITION OF BOSTON SCEINTIFIC’S  
CARDIAC AND VASCULAR SURGERY DIVISIONS  

Sales 2006 	 SEK 1,730 m 

EBIT 2006 	 SEK 460 m	

Number of employees at acquisition date	 700	

Purchase consideration	 SEK 4.8 billion 

Completion	 7 January 2008 	

Consolidation	 January 2008 	
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Orders received  	 + 	 24 %
Net sales 	 + 	 27 %
EBITA*	 +	 33 %
Operating cash flow * 	 +	 19 %

•	Profit before tax 	 SEK 1,775 m (1,728) 
•	Net profit 	 SEK 1,261 m (1,259) 
•	Earnings per share 	 SEK 6.24 (6.21)
•	EBITA margin target raised to 18-19%

Medical Systems (see pages 18-25)
•	New anaesthesia system shown  
for the first time

•	Sales of NAVA commence
•	New production facility in Turkey

Extended Care (see pages 26-33)
•	Integration of Huntleigh PLC 
•	New production facility in Poland 
•	Increased investment in product  

development

Infection Control (see pages 34-41)
•	Favourable organic growth 
•	New management for the business area
•	Expanded production in China

Proposed dividend per share, SEK 2.40 (2.20)

* Before restructuring and integration costs

GETINGE GROUP 2007  
 
SEK m 	 2005	 2006	 2007	 +/- %
Orders received 	 12 255	 13 316	 16 519	 24.1
Organic growth 	 	 	 	 5.4 
Net sales 	 11 880	 13 001	 16 445	 26.5
Organic growth 	 	 	 	 7.9
EBITA *	 1 831	 2 018	 2 678	 32.7
EBITA margin*, % 	 15.4	 15.5	 16.3 	 0.8
Profit before tax	 1 601	 1 728	 1 775	 2.7
Operating cash flow*	 1 842	 2 139	 2 553	 19.4
Acquisitions**	 544	 273	 6 106	 n/a
Dividend, SEK 	 2:00	 2:20	 2:40	***	 9.1

* 	 Before restructuring and integration costs
** 	 As per operating cash flow 
*** 	In accordance with proposal by the Board of Directors 
	 and President

GETINGES BUSINESS AREAS 2007 
 
Medical Systems 
SEK m	 2005	 2006	 2007	 +/- %
Orders received 	 5 153	 5 835	 5 901	 1.1
Organic growth 	 	 	 	 3.5
Net sales 	 5 109	 5 542	 6 079	 9.7
Organic growth 	 	 	 	 12.2
EBITA *	 787	 896	 1 040	 16.1
EBITA margin*, % 	 15.4	 16.2	 17.1	 0.9
 
Extended Care 
SEK m	 2005	 2006	 2007	 +/- %
Orders received 	 3 131	 3 181	 6 124	 92.5
Organic growth 	 	 	 	 5.0
Net sales 	 2 982	 3 183	 6 009	 88.8
Organic growth 	 	 	 	 3.4
EBITA *	 522	 538	 998	 85.5
EBITA margin*, % 	 17.5	 16.9	 16.6	 -0.3
 
Infection Control
SEK m	 2005	 2006	 2007	 +/- %
Orders received 	 3 896	 4 286	 4 494	 4.8
Organic growth 	 	 	 	 8.2
Net sales 	 3 745	 4 262	 4 357	 2.2
Organic growth 	 	 	 	 5.6
EBITA *	 518	 577	 640	 10.9
EBITA margin*, % 	 13.8	 13.5	 14.7	 1.2

* 	 Before restructuring and integration costs

QUARTERLY OVERVIEW – 2007 
 
NET SALES
SEK m 	 2005	 2006	 2007	 +/- %
Q1	 2 525	 2 975	 3 415	 15
Q 2	 2 739	 3 148	 4 029	 28
Q 3	 2 727	 2 883	 3 844	 33
Q 4	 3 889	 3 996	 5 157	 29
Total	 11 880	 13 001	 16 445	 27 
 
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
SEK m 	 2005	 2006	 2007	 +/- %
Q 1	 313	 262	 286	 9
Q 2	 304	 364	 366	 1
Q 3	 291	 315	 221	 -30
Q 4	 693	 788	 902	 15
Total	 1 601	 1 728	 1 775	 3

	 2007 in brief	 |	 1
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healthcare market, where size is becom-
ing an increasingly important factor, 
through a continuous expansion of the 
product and service offering. The acqui-
sitions also create particularly healthy 
conditions for a continued favourable 
organic trend in the Group through dis-
tribution synergies. The two acquisitions 
entailed a significant expansion of 
Getinge’s operation and the Group is 
now one of the largest suppliers of med-
ical technology devices in the world.

Acquisition of British Huntleigh 
The acquisition of the British company 
Huntleigh was finalised in January 2007 
and the management of Extended Care 
worked intensively with the integration of 
the new operation during the year. To 
date, the work has focused on efficiency 
enhancements and cost adaptations 
and followed two main approaches: the 
integration of Extended Care’s and 
Huntleigh’s market organisations and 
streamlining of Huntleigh’s production 
structure. In terms of work related to the 
market organisation, this entailed such 
measures as the fusion of sales compa-
nies in some 15 markets and the plan-
ning of a new joint brand and customer 
offering. Huntleigh’s production under-
went significant streamlining in 2007 and 
the beginning of 2008. The bulk of man-
ufacturing at Huntleigh’s UK and US 
plants was relocated to the business 

area’s plant in Poznan, Poland. In the 
second half of 2008, plans are in place 
to relocated remaining production in 
Luton to Extended Care’s new produc-
tion plant in Suzhou, China, which is 
under construction and scheduled for 
completion in the autumn of 2008.
	 In 2008, the emphasis of the integra-
tion work will shift from cost synergies 
to realizing the major sales synergies, 
thereby establishing a higher and more 
sustained level of organic growth for 
Extended Care. The business area’s 
goal is to maintain organic growth of 7% 
and an EBITA margin of 19% from 2009 
and onwards. 
	 To summarize, the acquisition of 
Huntleigh means that Extended Care will 
assume a highly effective position in 
both the elderly care and hospitals seg-
ments, at the same time as the business 
area establishes a leading position in the 
wound-care area, which was its weakest 
segment in the past.

The acquisition of the Cardiac and 
Vascular Surgery divisions from 
Boston Scientific is an important step 
in Getinge’s efforts to establish a leading 
position in the attractive cardiac surgery 
market. The acquisition broadens 
Getinge’s customer offering aimed at 
cardiac surgery in a decisive manner, 
while it also distinctly strengthens the 
distribution of the Group’s perfusion 

2007 was yet another strong year for 
the Getinge Group and a year in which 
we could clearly see the effects of sig-
nificant investments in new products, 
new markets and new production 
structures implemented during recent 
years. In 2007, sales increased by 27% 
to SEK 16.4 billion, corresponding to 
an organic volume increase of 7.9%. 
EBITA (before integration and restruc-
turing costs) increased by 33% to SEK 
2.7 billion, while the EBITA margin 
improved from 15.5% to 16.3%. Sales 
and profitability rose in all business 
areas.

MARKET TREND 
The market trend and demand were 
generally good in 2007. Orders received 
rose in all regions, but the increase was 
particularly evident in the increasingly 
important emerging markets. Organic 
growth of orders received for Extended 
Care totalled 5%. Excluding the effect of 
the sizable order from the Canadian 
healthcare authorities in early 2006, 
organic growth amounted to a favoura-
ble 8.6%. The trend for Infection Control 
remained favourable following a strong 
2006 with organic growth of 8.2%. 
Organic growth for Medical Systems 
was slightly lower and amounted to 
3.5% on the back of a particularly strong 
2006, when orders received for the 
business area rose by nearly 14%. On 
the whole, the Group continued to grow 
at a more rapid pace than the markets in 
which it operates.

STRATEGIC EXPANSION
Through the acquisition of the British 
company Huntleigh and the Cardiac and 
Vascular Surgery divisions from Boston 
Scientific, Getinge has established 
world-leading positions in areas that 
were considered to be the Group’s 
weaker fields in the past. Both acquisi-
tions are also in line with Getinge’s over-
riding ambition to be an increasingly 
attractive partner to its customers in the 

The acquisition creates 
unique possibilities to build 
a world-leading business in 

the cardiac surgery area
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products in North America are consid-
ered to be very good.

CONTINUED INVESTMENT IN 
PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
Getinge’s consistent and long-term 
investments in product development are 
one of the cornerstones of Getinge’s 
strategy for organic growth. In recent 
years, the Group has significantly 
increased expenditure on product devel-
opment. The revolutionary NAVA ventila-
tor technology was launched in several 
markets in 2007. The initial reception 
exceeded expectations and NAVA has 
further strengthened Medical Systems’ 
position as a leader in the ventilation 
area. 
	 The WoundASSIST® TNP was 

launched in the UK and Germany in the 
autumn of 2007. Commercial delivery of 
the new FLOW-i anaesthesia system, 
which was displayed at the Medica 
healthcare convention in November, will 
commence in the second half of 2008. 
Both products are expected to contrib-
ute to the Group’s organic growth from 
2009 and onwards.
	 In recent years, the emphasis of 
Getinge’s product development has 
been within the Medical Systems busi-
ness area. However, both Extended 
Care and Infection Control intensified 
investments in new development in 2007 
and continue to do so. As a result, 
Extended Care will launch between 15 
and 20 new or significantly improved 
products in 2008.

products in North America. In short, the 
acquisition means that Getinge estab-
lishes a leading position in the area of 
cardiac surgery. The potential for organ-
ic growth and acquisition-led expansion 
in this area is assessed as highly favour-
able.
	 Medical Systems and the acquired 
Boston divisions also complement each 
other well from a geographic viewpoint. 
The Boston divisions hold strong posi-
tions in North America, while Medical 
Systems’ operation in the cardiac sur-
gery area has efficient distribution chan-
nels in Europe and in a number of 
attractive emerging markets. 
Consequently, the opportunities to 
increase sales of Boston products in 
Europe and in growth markets, and 
sales of Medical Systems’ perfusion 
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tries as India and China were further 
strengthened.

NEW ORGANISATION IN THE US
In January 2008, the responsibility for 
sales of surgical work stations was 
transferred from Getinge Inc. to Medical 
Systems’ US company Maquet Inc. 
Historically, Getinge Inc. was responsi-
ble for the sales of surgical work sta-
tions and Infection Control’s product 
range. The new organisation better 
reflects Getinge’s overall organisation, 
while it creates enhanced conditions for 
a new cohesive product offering for 
operating theatres when the new anaes-
thesia system is launched in the future.
	 For Infection Control, the organisa-
tional change means that the US sales 
company Getinge Inc. will focus solely 
on sales of infection control equipment 
to American customers in the hospitals 
segment and the Life Science industry.

ACTIVITIES 2008
The focus in 2008 will be on the integra-
tion of the divisions from Boston 
Scientific and the continued work aimed 
at realising synergies between Extended 
Care and Huntleigh, creating a solid 
platform for Getinge’s future develop-
ment. Moreover, the activity plan will fol-
low the Group’s principal line with a 
continued internationalisation of the 
market organisation, sustained invest-
ments in product development and a 
continuation of the work to strengthen 
Getinge’s supply chain organisation.

OUTLOOK 
Both the short and long-term market 
conditions for the Getinge Group are 
expected to remain favourable. Since the 
larger part of an individual’s healthcare 
costs are normally concentrated to the 
last years of life, the demographic chang-
es mean that demand for care increases. 
Advances in various areas of healthcare 
mean that it is possible to treat an 

increasing number of diseases and this 
also contributes to increased demand for 
care. The rise in global prosperity also 
means that more and more countries can 
afford a modern healthcare system.
	 Demand for the Group’s products is 
also considered to be very good in the 
short term in most of the geographic 
regions in which Getinge is active. In 
2008, all business areas expect favoura-
ble volume growth, while restructuring 
costs will decline compared with 2007 
and the synergy effects from the 
Huntleigh integration will become appar-
ent.
	 The acquisition of Boston Scientific’s 
Cardiac and Vascular Surgery divisions 
was consolidated in the Group from 1 
January 2008 and, excluding integration 
costs, is expected to contribute to both 
consolidated profit before tax and to the 
continued expansion of the consolidated 
EBITA margin.
	 The acquired Boston Scientific divi-
sions have highly favourable profitability 
and, accordingly, we are raising ambi-
tions for the consolidated EBITA margin 
target to 18-19% (from the current 17%). 
The Group is working to achieve this 
goal in 2009.
	 On the whole, the Group expects 
organic invoicing growth in line with 
2007 levels. The EBITA margin will con-
tinue to be strengthened, even excluding 
the acquisition of the Cardiac and 
Vascular Surgery divisions from Boston 
Scientific. 

Johan Malmquist
President and CEO

SLIMMED PRODUCTION 
STRUCTURES 
In 2007, the Group’s business areas 
continued the long-term work aimed at 
strengthening competitiveness by 
enhancing efficiency in the supply chain. 
As I mentioned earlier, during the year, 
Extended Care established a new plant 
in Poland, which already has 350 
employees, and will put the new 
Chinese plant into operation in the 
autumn of 2008. Medical System’s new 
facility in Turkey, which expanded con-
siderably, will entail a distinct improve-
ment in the competitiveness and profita-
bility of the business area’s disposables. 
Furthermore, Medical Systems and 
Infection Control are expanding produc-
tion at the plants in Suzhou, China. All 
business area’s continued to increase 
the constituent of purchases from low-
cost countries during the year.

FAVOURABLE TREND IN ALL 
BUSINESS AREAS
In 2007, the organic sales trend for the 
Getinge Group was favourable and, for 
the Group in its entirety, growth amount-
ed to 8%. Medical Systems accounted 
for the strongest trend, with organic 
sales growth of 12%. The corresponding 
figures for Extended Care and Infection 
Control were 5% and 6%, respectively. 
	 There was also a positive trend for 
profitability. During the year, Medical 
Systems achieved its EBITA margin tar-
get of 17% and both Extended Care and 
Infection Control improved their EBITA 
margins considerably. In a pro-forma 
comparison, (that is, including Huntleigh) 
Extended Care strengthened its EBITA 
margin from 14.4% to 16.4% and 
Infection Control improved its EBITA 
margin from 13.5% to 14.7%.
	 All business areas also continued to 
increase exposure to North America and 
attractive emerging markets. In 2007, 
the sales organisation was also expand-
ed to encompass such countries as 
Argentina, Chile, Turkey and Vietnam 
and sales organisations in such coun-
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The acquisition of the Cardiac Surgery 
and Vascular Surgery divisions from 
the US Boston Scientific Corperation 
was finalised in January 2008 following 
the approval of competition authorities 
in the US, Germany and Poland. 
Through the acquisition, Getinge has 
created a solid platform upon which it 
can build a strong and globally leading 
operation in the area of cardiac sur-
gery in the coming years. 

Boston Scientific’s 
Cardiac Surgery division 
Boston Scientifics Cardiac Surgery divi-
sion had sales of approximately SEK 
1,200 m in 2006 with good profitability. 
The division has globally leading posi-
tions in so-called “endoscopic vessel 
harvesting,” anastomosis, surgical abla-
tion, as well as stabilisers and instru-
ments used for surgery on beating 
hearts. 

The division employs approximately 450 
people and has its headquarters in San 
Jose, California, where its product 
development operation with some 90 
staff is also located. About 200 employ-
ees work in production, which is located 
in Dorado, Puerto Rico. 

The US accounts for slightly more than 
90% of sales through a direct sales 
organisation with about 90 sales repre-
sentatives. Cardiac Surgery is consid-
ered to have been a pioneer in the 
development of minimally invasive aids 
and instruments used in heart surgery. 
The division has a very strong patent 
portfolio with more than 200 active pat-
ents.

Boston Scientific’s 
Vascular Surgery division 
Boston Scientific’s Vascular Surgery 
division had sales of approximately SEK 
530 m in 2006, and also demonstrates 
good profitability. Similar to the Cardiac 
Surgery division, it is considered to have 
been a pioneer within the vascular sur-
gery area and has built up very strong 

market positions, particularly with regard 
to operations on the aorta. 

The division employs just over 250 peo-
ple in Wayne, New Jersey, where all 
functions, including manufacturing, are 
located.

Approximately 55% of its sales volume is 
to customers in the US, where sales are 
mainly conducted through a proprietary 
sales organisation. Most products are 
sold under the well-known Hemashield 
brand and the patent portfolio compris-
es approximately 80 active patents.

Synergies
Getinge regards the acquisition of the 
Cardiac Surgery and Vascular Surgery 
divisions as a broadening of its current 
healthy position within the cardiopulmo-
nary area and as a base for becoming a 
leading supplier of medical technology 
devices and instruments to the global 
market for cardiac surgery. 

Today, Getinge has a solid operation 
within the perfusion products area with 
strong market positions and distribution 
in Europe and a number of emerging 
markets. By marketing Cardiac 
Surgery’s and Vascular Surgery’s prod-
ucts through the Medical Systems busi-
ness area’s sales channels outside the 
US, it is expected that it will be possible 
to considerably improve market share 
and growth in these markets. In a corre-
sponding manner, it is estimated that 
the introduction of Cardiopulmonary’s 
products into Cardiac Surgery’s strong 
sales organisation in the US will lead to 
more rapid growth for the Group’s per-
fusion products.

Considerable opportunities for 
continued expansion
The Medical Systems business area 
believes that there is considerable 
potential to build a major operation with-
in primarily the cardiac surgery area 
through both additional acquisitions and 
development of existing operations.    

FORCEFUL expansion 
in cardiac surgery 

MARKET OVERVIEW:  
CARDIAC SURGERY 

•	 Medical technology products and 
implants for cardiac surgery

•	 Size: USD 2.6 billion globally 
 

	 Products
•	 Perfusion products (Getinge’s cur-

rent operation in Cardiopulmonary)
•	 Products for endoscopic vessel 

harvesting used in patients under-
going bypass surgery.

•	 Products and instruments for sta-
bilising and positioning the heart 
muscle in conjunction with proce-
dures on a beating heart.

•	 Products for performing anastomo-
sis.

•	 Products for surgical treatment of 
atrial fibrillation (ablation) in which 
nerve fibres are inactivated.

In addition, other products in the car-
diac surgery market include heart 
valves and products for cardiac sup-
port for short or long periods, known 
as “cardiac assist.”

MARKET OVERVIEW: 
VASCULAR SURGERY 

• 	 Vessel implants (artificial grafts) 
used for replacing diseased or 
damaged blood vessels with syn-
thetic vessels where possible

• 	 Size: USD 300 m globally 
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Getinge’s Class B share has been list-
ed on the OMX Nordic Exchange 
Stockholm AB since 1993 and on the A 
list since 2002. In 2007, a round lot 
consisted of 200 shares. The number 
of shareholders is approximately 
35,000. The percentage of foreign-
owned shares amounts to 31.5% (30.7). 
Swedish institutional ownership is 
38.2% (39.2), of which equity funds 
constitute 16.8% (17.6).

Share trend and liquidity in 2007
At the end of the year, the Getinge share 
was listed at SEK 173.50, which is a rise 
of 13% during the year. The highest 
price paid was SEK 180.50 (5 November 
2007) and the lowest was SEK 141.80 
(28 February 2007). At year-end, the 
market capitalisation amounted to SEK 
35.6 billion, compared with SEK 31.0 bil-
lion at the end of the preceding year. 
The turnover of shares in 2007 totalled 
181,868,916 (155,694,634).

Share capital and 
ownership structure 
At year-end 2007, the share capital in 
Getinge totalled SEK 100,936,960 dis-
tributed among 201,873,920 shares. All 
shares carry the same dividend entitle-

ment. One Class A share carries ten 
votes and one Class B share carries one 
vote.

Dividend policy
Future dividends will be adjusted in line 
with Getinge’s profit level, financial posi-
tion and future development possibili-
ties. The aim of the Board is that, in the 
long term, dividends will comprise 
approximately one third of the profit after 
financial items and a standard tax rate of 
28%.

Shareholder information and 
analyses 
Financial information about Getinge is 
available on the Group’s website at the 
address www.getingegroup.com. 
Questions can also be put directly to the 
company by e-mail to info@getinge.com 
or by telephone on +46 (0)35-15 55 00. 
It is possible to request annual reports, 
interim reports and other information 
from the Group’s Head Office on tel: 
+46 (0)35-15 55 00, from the website or 
via the e-mail address above.

Shareholder value
Getinge’s management works continu-
ously to develop and improve the finan-

cial information relating to Getinge to 
provide current and future shareholders 
with favourable conditions to evaluate 
the Group in as fair a manner as possi-
ble. This includes active participation at 
meetings with analysts, shareholders 
and the media. During the year, the 
Getinge share was monitored and ana-
lysed by the following analysts, among 
others: 

– ABG Sundal Collier
– ABN Amro Securities
– Carnegie
– Cazenove
– Cheuvreux
– Danske Bank
– Enskilda
– Goldman Sachs
– Hagströmer & Qviberg
– Handelsbanken
– Kaupthing Bank
– Main First Bank
– Nordea
– Sal. Oppenheim
– Standard & Poor’s
– Swedbank
– UBS
– Öhman Equities

Price and volume trend 2007 Price and volume trend 2003 - 2007

THE GETINGE SHARE 

Class B share 

OMX Stockholm_PI

Class B share 

OMX Stockholm_PI

Share turnover, 000s 
(including after-hours 
trading) 

Share turnover, 000s 
(including after-hours 
trading) 
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SHARE DATA
Amounts in SEK per share  
unless otherwise stated 	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
Earnings per share after full tax 	 3,85	 5,69	 5,64	 6,21	 6,24
Market price for Class B share at year-end 	 69,00	 82,80	 109,50	 153,50	 173,50
Cash flow from operating activities	 6,90	 5,40	 5,80	 7,45	 6,58
Dividend, SEK per share 	 1,35	 1,65	 2,00	 2,20	 2,40
Dividend growth, % 	 27,36	 22,22	 21,21	 10,00	 9,09
Dividend yield, % 	 1,96	 1,99	 1,83	 1,43	 1,38
Price/earnings ratio 	 17,90	 14,60	 19,40	 24,72	 27,80
Dividend as profit percentage,%	 35,06	 29,00	 35,46	 35,43	 38,46
Shareholders’ equity 	 17,49	 21,15	 26,66	 29,64	 32,68
Average number of shares (million) 	 201,90	 201,90	 201,90	 201,90	 201,90
Number of shares 31 December (million) 	 201,90	 201,90	 201,90	 201,90	 201,90
A 4:1 split was implemented in 2003. The number of shares before the split was 50,468,480 and after the split 
201,873,920. The key figures above have been recalculated based on the number of shares after the split.

DEVELOPMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL
Transaction 	 Number of shares before transaction  	 Share capital after transaction, SEK
1990	 Formation  	 500 			   50 000
1992 	 Split 50:1, par value SEK 100 to SEK 2  	 25 000 			   50 000
1992 	 Private placement  	 5 088 400 			   10 176 800
1993 	 Private placement  	 6 928 400 			   13 856 800
1995 	 Non-cash issue  	 15 140 544 			   30 281 088
1996 	 Bonus issue 2:1  	 45 421 632 			   90 843 264
2001 	 New issue 1:9 at SEK 100  	 50 468 480 			   100 936 960
2003	 Split 4:1, par value SEK 2 to SEK 0.50 	 201 873 920			   100 936 960

LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS IN GETINGE				  
Company 	 Class A shares 	 Class B shares 	 % of capital 	 % of voting
Carl Bennet companies	 13 502 160	 22 837 124	 18.0	 48.8
Swedbank Robur funds		  13 225 766	 6.6	 4.1
AFA		  7 826 945	 3.9	 2.4
Cantillon Capital Management LLC		  7 197 485	 3.6	 2.2
SEB funds		  6 152 822	 3.0	 1.9
Alecta		  5 600 000	 2.8	 1.7
Fourth Swedish National Pension fund		  4 352 300	 2.2	 1.3
SHB/SPP funds		  4 345 477	 2.2	 1.3
Nordea funds		  2 641 356	 1.3	 0.8
Second Swedish National Pension fund		  2 602 660	 1.3	 0.8
Folksam		  2 480 937	 1.2	 0.8
Schroder funds		  2 006 125	 1.0	 0.6
AMF Pension		  2 000 000	 1.0	 0.6
SHB pension foundation		  2 000 000	 1.0	 0.6
Other		  107 108 888	 53.1	 33.1
Total	 13 502 160	 188 371 760	 100	 100

OWNERSHIP BY COUNTRY, %
Country 	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
Sweden 	 65,5	 66,4	 71,2	 69,3	 66,4
Other Nordic countries 	 2,2	 3,2	 4,7	 4,3	 4,9
US 	 15,6	 12,9	 11,4	 13,9	 14,6
UK 	 6,3	 5,6	 3,3	 2,9	 4,5
France	 1,0	 2,1	 1,4	 1,3	 0,9
Other countries 	 9,4	 9,8	 8,0	 8,3	 8,7

SHARE CAPITAL DISTRIBUTION				  
	 Number of shares 	 Number of votes 	 % of capital 	 % of voting rights
Class A 	 13 502 160	 135 021 600	 7%	 42%
Class B 	 188 371 760	 188 371 760	 93%	 58%
Total 	 201 873 920	 323 393 360	 100%	 100%

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE		
Holding 		  Ownership, % 		  Shareholding, %
1-500		  64,1		  2,1
501-1 000		  17,3		  2,5
1 001-10 000		  16,3		  8,1
10 001-100 000		  1,6		  8,7
>100 001		  0,7		  78,6

Information refers to ownership structure of Getinge AB on 28 December 2007. 
Source: VPC and SIS Ägarservice.

At 31 December 2007 

0 20 40 60 80 100 %

Other countries

France

UK

US

Other Nordic countries

Sweden

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

0,0

0,5

1,0

1,5

2,0

2,5

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Market value trend, SEK billion

Earnings per share, SEK

Dividends per share, SEK

P/E ratio

Ownership by country

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

RR IFRS



10	 |	 Five-year summary

The Getinge Group had good develop-
ment during the 2003-2007 period. 
Extensive investment in product devel-
opment, internationalisation of the 
market organisation, streamlining of 
the Group’s production structures and 
several key acquisitions led to a strong 
growth in sales and earnings.

Development 2003 - 2007
•	 Orders received increased by 

79.3%, from SEK 9.2 billion in 2003 
to SEK 16.5 billion in 2007. The trend 
corresponds to an annual compound 
growth rate (CAGR) of 15.9%.

•	 Sales grew by 79.3%, from SEK 9.2 
billion in 2003 to SEK 16.5 billion in 
2007. The trend corresponds to an 
annual compound growth rate 
(CAGR) of 15.9%.

•	 EBITA rose by 80%, from SEK 1.5 
billion in 2003 to SEK 2.7 billion in 
2007. The trend corresponds to an 
annual compound growth rate 
(CAGR) of 16.6%.

•	 Profit before tax increased by 
63.6%, from SEK 1.1 billion in 2003 
to SEK 1.8 billion in 2007. The trend 
corresponds to an annual compound 
growth rate (CAGR) of 12.8%.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Acquisitions
There were 13 acquisitions during the 
period. The most significant of these 
include Jostra (heart-lung machines and 
related disposables) and German com-
pany Siemens LSS (respirators) (2003), 
Canadian BHM (lifts) (2004) and French 
company La CaIhène (sterilisation) 
(2005), and the British company 
Huntleigh (wound care, hospital beds, 
etc.) (2007).

Cash flow
As a result of the Group’s long-term 
capital-rationalisation project, operating 
cash flow improved during the period 
from SEK 1,790 m in 2003 to SEK 2,553 
m in 2007.

Net debt/equity ratio
The Group’s net debt/equity ratio varies 
to a relatively high degree due to the 
significant acquisitions made during the 
period. For 2007, the net debt/equity 
ratio for the Group was 1.57 (0.93).

Equity/assets ratio
The Group’s equity/assets ratio has 
been strong during the period. The rela-
tively large variations are attributable to 

the acquisitions carried out. For 2007, 
the equity/assets ratio amounted to 
28.8% (37.8). The decline in the equity/
assets ratio is attributable to the acquisi-
tion of the British company Huntleigh.

Product development
During the period, Getinge made signifi-
cant investments in product develop-
ment. The main emphasis was on the 
Medical Systems business area resulting 
in, for example, the launch of the 
Magnus surgical table (2005), the revolu-
tionary NAVA ventilator technology 
(2006), and the FLOW-i anaesthesia sys-
tem (2007). Product development 
expenses and investments totalled SEK 
2,195 m during the period.

Supply chain
In recent years, Getinge has undertaken 
a long-term project to enhance efficien-
cy in the supply chain. One example of 
this has been the establishment of pro-
duction in China, Poland and Turkey.

2003: Acquisition of Jostra 2005: Production in China 2007: Acquisition of Huntleigh 

2003: Acquisition of Siemens LSS 2006: Introduction of NAVA 2007: Production in Poland

* Before restructuring and integration costs



	 Five-year summary	 | 	 11

Order situation, SEK m	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
Orders received 	 9 154	 10 812	 12 225	 13 316	 16 519

Income statement, SEK m	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
Net sales	 9 160	 10 889	 11 880	 13 001	 16 445
Of which, overseas sales, %	 97.2	 97.5	 97.4	 97.6	 97.8
Operating profit before depreciation 	 1 687	 2 026	 2 131	 2 270	 2 966
EBITA*	 1 449	 1 750	 1 831	 2 018	 2 678
Operating profit 	 1 256	 1 743	 1 803	 1 936	 2 282
Net financial items 	 -161	 -197	 -201	 -208	 -507
Profit before tax 	 1 095	 1 546	 1 602	 1 728	 1 775
Taxes 	 -317	 -397	 -452	 -469	 -514
Net profit for the year	 778	 1 149	 1 150	 1 259	 1 261

Balance sheet, SEK m 	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
Intangible fixed assets 	 4 310	 4 705	 5 530	 5 516	 10 396
Tangible fixed assets 	 1 367	 1 403	 1 498	 1 397	 2 327
Financial fixed assets	 751	 605	 650	 1 876	 755
Inventories 	 1 764	 1 729	 2 156	 2 083	 2 913
Other receivables 	 3 336	 3 530	 4 015	 4 332	 5 706
Cash and bank balances 	 504	 485	 684	 673	 894
Total assets 	 12 032	 12 457	 14 533	 15 877	 22 991
Shareholders’ equity 	 3 530	 4 270	 5 381	 6 005	 6 623
Provisions for pensions, interest-bearing 	 1 389	 1 491	 1 690	 1 639	 1 805
Restructuring reserve 	 193	 33	 10	 9	 71
Provisions	 710	 520	 483	 535	 974
Loans, interest-bearing 	 3 968	 3 698	 4 109	 4 609	 9 455
Other liabilities, non-interest bearing 	 2 242	 2 445	 2 860	 3 080	 4 063
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 	 12 032	 12 457	 14 533	 15 877	 22 991
Net debt, including pension liabilities 	 4 853	 4 704	 5 104	 5 575	 10 366
Net debt, excluding pension liabilities 	 3 464	 3 213	 3 414	 3 936	 8 561

Cash flow	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
Cash flow, SEK per share 	 5.80	 4.07	 4.68	 6.67	 4.43
Cash flow from operating activities, SEK m 	 1 386	 1 092	 1 170	 1 504	 1 328
Operating cash flow*, SEK m  	 1 790	 1 644	 1 842	 2 139	 2 553
Acquisition **, SEK m	 2 191	 402	 544	 272	 6 106
Net investments in tangible fixed assets, SEK m***	 216	 270	 225	 158	 433

Return measurements	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
Return on working capital, % 	 18.6	 20.4	 18.5	 19.2	 19.7
Return on equity, % 	 23.9	 29.4	 24.3	 22.6	 20.3
EBITA margin*, % 	 15.8	 16.1	 15.4	 15.5	 16.3
Operating margin, % 	 13.7	 16.0	 15.2	 14.9	 13.9
Operating profit before depreciation margin, %	 18.4	 18.6	 17.9	 17.5	 18.0

Financial measurements	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
Interest cover, multiple 	 7.3	 8.2	 8.3	 9.0	 4.3
Equity/assets ratio, % 	 29.3	 34.3	 37.0	 37.8	 28.8
Net debt/equity ratio, multiple 	 1.37	 1.10	 0.95	 0.93	 1.57
Working capital, SEK m 	 6 430	 8 547	 9 571	 10 217	 10 778
Shareholders’ equity, 31 December, SEK m 	 3 530	 4 270	 5 381	 6 005	 6 623
Shareholders’ equity, SEK per share 	 17.49	 20.91	 26.29	 29.64	 32.68

Personnel	 2003	 2004	 2005	 2006	 2007
No. of employees, 31 December 	 6 635	 6 845	 7 362	 7 531	 10 358
Salaries and other remuneration, SEK m	 2 428	 2 752	 2 963	 3 051	 5 190

* 	 Before restructuring and integration costs
**	 As per operating cash flow 
***	 Excluding equipment for hire
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STRATEGIC 
FOCUS

AREAS OF OPERATION
• Surgery 
• Intensive care 
• Infection control 
• Patient handling 
• Care ergonomics 
• Wound care 
• Thrombosis prophylaxis 

CUSTOMER GROUPS
• Hospitals 
• Elderly care 
• Life science industry 

STRATEGIC CORNERSTONES
• Global market leadership 
• Integrated solutions
• Proprietary distribution

FINANCIAL TARGETS
• Earnings growth 	 15%
• EBITA margin 	 18-19% 
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Group’s offering comprises broad, inte-
grated solutions within infection control, 
surgery, intensive care, care ergonomics 
and wound care.

MARKET
More than half of Getinge’s sales are in 
the European market. In recent years, 
the Group has made significant invest-
ments to increase its presence in major 
emerging markets, such as Brazil, India, 
China and Russia. Similar investments 
were also made in North America and 
Japan, where the Group continues to 
take market share and the growth 
potential is estimated to be favourable. 
During 2007, the Group continued its 
expansion of existing operations in 
North America and in emerging mar-
kets. The Group expects these invest-
ments to decrease dependency on the 
European market in the years to come.

Healthcare costs
There are several factors indicating that 

To remain an attractive supplier in a 
market in which size is becoming 
increasingly important, Getinge works 
continuously to strengthen its position 
as one of the medical care sector’s 
preferred partners. This work is con-
ducted on the basis of two main 
approaches: acquisition-led expansion 
and organic growth through continu-
ous development of existing opera-
tions. In this perspective, acquisition-
led expansion is an effective way of 
rapidly building size and broadening 
the Group’s offering of competitive 
solutions. 

BUSINESS CONCEPT
Getinge’s business concept is to offer 
solutions comprising products, services 
and competence that will contribute to 
higher efficiency in the care sector, 
thereby freeing resources for further 
care production. Getinge’s offering shall 
also contribute to higher quality and 
safety in the care sector. Today, the 

the global demand for advanced health-
care and high-quality care for the elderly 
will continue to grow for the foreseeable 
future:

•	 The demographic trend, with a larger 
proportion of elderly people who 
need care. 

•	 The increase in prosperity-related 
diseases. 

•	 Technological advances and new 
pharmaceuticals facilitating the treat-
ment of an increasing numbers of 
diseases.

•	 The global prosperity trend that is 
leading to a growing number of coun-
tries being able to afford to build up 
advanced medical care.

The combination of these factors is 
expected to lead to more rapid growth 
in demand for care than financial alloca-
tions. Accordingly, political decision-
makers are trying to bridge the gap that 
arises between supply and demand by 
making care more efficient. One method 
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Getinge’s sales and profit trend over the past 15 years, SEK m 

Getinge has carried out a long list of acquisitions 
over the past 15 years. The most significant of 
these are presented below. The figures in paren-
theses specify the acquired company’s annual 
sales at the date of acquisition. 

1995	 Arjo	 (SEK 1 500 m)

1996	 MDT Castle	 (SEK 800 m)

2000	 Parker Bath 	 (SEK 150 m)	

	 Maquet 	 (SEK 1 350 m)

2001	 ALM 	 (SEK 660 m)

2002	 Hereaus 	 (SEK 470 m)

2003	 Jostra 	 (SEK 820 m)

	 Siemens LSS 	 (SEK 2 050 m)

2004	 BHM	 (SEK 210 m)

2005	 La Calhène	 (SEK 370 m)

2007	 Huntleigh 	 (SEK 2 700 m)

In the past 15 years, sales and profit before tax have increased on 
average by 23% and 20%, respectively.

Sales Profit

Sales Profit before tax
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both new and leading product areas and 
to acquisitions that complement and 
strengthen existing operations. The 
acquisition of leading product lines shall 
contribute an average of 7-8% to earn-
ings growth (measured as profit before 
tax), while development of existing oper-
ations (organic growth and supplemen-
tary acquisitions) shall account for the 
remaining 7-8%. In terms of profitability 
and cash flow, Getinge’s goal is to 
achieve and maintain an operating mar-
gin (EBITA) for the current Group struc-
ture of 18-19% and to have a cash flow 
that enables continued acquisition-led 
expansion that does not require further 
contributions from shareholders.

ciency in the healthcare sector. This also 
leads to a consolidation of suppliers.
	 Due to the increase in demand, the 
healthcare sector must find ways to 
improve cost-efficiency. It is reasonable 
to assume that this will result in players 
in the healthcare sector choosing suppli-
ers that can offer solutions that increase 
efficiency and release resources.

FINANCIAL TARGETS
Profit growth (measured as profit before 
tax) shall amount to an average of 15% 
annually and shall be achieved through a 
combination of organic growth and 
acquisitions. Acquisition can pertain to 

of achieving this is to introduce new 
types of reimbursement systems that 
reward efficient businesses within the 
area of care. Another common method 
is to expose the care sector to competi-
tion by opening the market to private 
players. A distinct example of this is the 
US market, which largely comprises pri-
vate care chains operating at regional or 
national level. In Europe, the private 
share is increasing from a considerably 
lower level.
	 Increased elements of privatisation 
and new reimbursement systems drive a 
consolidation of healthcare providers 
and increased requirement for products 
and services aimed at enhancing effi-

The new NAVA technology, which allows the patient’s own breathing requirements to control the ventila-
tor through the brain’s breathing signals, is an example of Getinge’s intensified investments in research 
and development. 
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Product development
Although Getinge already invests more 
than its competitors in innovation and 
product renewal in absolute terms, the 
Group intends to further increase its 
pace of innovation and product renewal. 
	 Product development will thus 
become a means of increasing organic 
growth and growing more rapidly than 
the market. The Medical Systems busi-
ness area has made considerable 
investments in product development 
over the past number of years, but the 
Group’s other business areas, Extended 
Care and Infection Control, will also suc-
cessively increase their investments in 
product development.

Acquisitions
The overall goal of Getinge’s acquisition 
strategy is to establish the Group as a 
“preferred partner” for the medical care 
sector. The ever-increasing demands on 
efficiency mean that medical care play-
ers are increasingly looking to suppliers 
that can contribute to resolving prob-
lems and creating more efficient care 
processes through their offerings. The 
more areas in which Getinge can offer 
solutions and specialist knowledge, the 
more attractive the Group becomes as a 
supplier. Accordingly, acquisitions have 
a continued central role at Getinge. 
There are potential acquisition candi-
dates for all of the Group’s business 
areas. The focus of the acquisition-led 
expansion is currently on Medical 
Systems.

SUCCESS FACTORS
To continuously improve the Group’s 
competitiveness in terms of organic 
growth and cost-efficiency, Getinge 
works continuously with improvements 
in four core areas: 

Efficiency-enhancement of the 
Group’s supply chain 
To increase the Group’s competitive-
ness, Getinge will proceed with its con-
tinuous improvement of the Group’s 
supply chain. This approach will include:

•	 More efficient logistics solutions
•	 Reduction of the number of produc-

tion units
•	 Higher specialisation with focus on 

quality assurance and assembly
•	 Increased share of production in low-

cost countries
•	 Relocation of supplier base to such 

countries as China, Poland and 
Turkey, where the cost structure is 
lower and Getinge is already estab-
lished through its own organisations.

Internationalisation of the market 
organisation
Getinge has an explicit ambition to 
strengthen its presence in markets 
where growth opportunities are particu-
larly favourable. This means a succes-
sive expansion of the sales and service 
organisations in the North American 
market, where the Group has a relatively 
low market share, and establishment of 
proprietary distribution channels in sev-
eral attractive growth markets.

STRATEGIC APPROACH 
Getinge’s strategic approach and com-
petitive advantages can be summarised 
in three points:

•	 Global market leadership. Getinge 
endeavours to be the number one or 
number two in all of the Group’s 
product areas. By establishing mar-
ket-leading positions, the Group cre-
ates economies of scale within prod-
uct development, production and 
marketing.

•	 Integrated solutions. By combining 
the Group’s leading products and 
services with understanding of the 
customer’s situation, Getinge can 
provide solutions that lead to signifi-
cant process and efficiency enhance-
ments. By enhancing the efficiency of 
the customer’s operations, resources 
are freed for further care production.

•	 Proprietary distribution, which cre-
ates conditions for good customer 
relations in an industry in which trust 
is a requirement for long-term and in-
depth relations. Through direct con-
tact with customers, Getinge has the 
possibility to influence the customers’ 
perception of quality and gain access 
to the profitable aftermarket, with its 
natural, long-term relations. In recent 
years, the Group has also developed 
a service offering that further deep-
ens the relationship with customers.
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GETINGE IN SOCIETY

One example of Getinge’s efforts to con-
tribute to enhanced medical care is the 
Group’s investment in research and 
development, which amounted to SEK 
2,195 m in the most recent fi ve-year 
period. Getinge also has very high ambi-
tions with respect to the quality and reli-
ability of its products. Consequently, the 
majority of its producing companies are 
certifi ed in accordance with the general 
quality standard ISO 9001, or ISO 13485 
which is a separate quality standard for 
medical devices. 

EMPLOYEES
Getinge has an explicit ambition to be 
an attractive employer with a strong abil-
ity to attract competent and creative 
personnel. Consequently, Getinge aims 
to offer:

Since its introduction on the stock 
exchange, the Getinge Group has 
undergone continual expansion and 
has established itself as a major player 
in society. Getinge works to continu-
ously create long-term value for the 
company’s primary stakeholders.  

GETINGE’S CUSTOMERS
One of Getinge’s most signifi cant contri-
butions to society is the company’s core 
business. By continuously developing, 
producing and marketing its products, 
Getinge contributes to good medical 
care for patients in much of the world. 
Its products also help to create favoura-
ble working conditions for physicians 
and healthcare personnel, while also 
enhancing processes and fl ows within 
the healthcare sector.

• Favourable working environments 
with a high level of safety.

• An environment that rewards and 
encourages the professional deve-
lopment of the employees.

• Recruitment and promotion based 
solely on appropriate qualifi cations, 
without discriminating elements.

• Correct and fair salaries and bene-
fi ts.

Getinge strives to maintain favourable 
relationships with every employee as 
well as respecting the freedom of asso-
ciation and the right to collective negoti-
ations and agreements. 

The relations between the company and 
its employees and their union represent-
atives are especially important in times 
of major changes. In 2007, the Extended 
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larly conduct these development pro-
grams and to also establish other types 
of management training programmes. 

SOCIETY AND THE ENVIRONMENT
Legislation and local practice
Getinge and its employees must adhere 
to applicable laws and regulations. Local 
practice shall be followed providing it 
does not confl ict with the company’s 
Code of Conduct. 

Social commitment and 
contributions 
First-rate and effi cient care are Getinge’s 
most signifi cant contributions to society, 
but the Group also contributes to posi-
tive social development with a number 
of local initiatives. In Rastatt, Germany, 
the Medical Systems business area 
helps young immigrant children progress 
to higher-level studies through annual 
scholarships. The scholarship extends 
over two years and all activities, such as 
extra language tuition, extra mathemat-
ics, natural sciences and music, are 
fi nanced by Medical Systems.

The environment
Getinge works to prevent or minimise 

and alleviate the damaging impact the 
Group’s operations may have on the 
environment. Environmental issues are 
covered by the company’s Code of 
Conduct and are included in the Group’s 
internal reporting since 2006. The basis 
of Getinge’s environmental work is ISO 
14001, and the company’s long-term 
ambition is to certify all plants in accord-
ance with this environmental standard.

CONTROL MEASURES 
The Getinge Group has a strongly 
decentralised organisation. To create 
fl exibility and reduce reaction times, 
responsibilities and authorities are large-
ly vested in the local companies.  The 
Group works with social and ethical 
issues and the Group’s environmental 
policy is thus primarily governed by a 
number of general documents and 
guidelines. 

The most central document is the 
Group’s Code of Conduct, which covers 
relations with employees, customers, 
suppliers, the environment and society. 
The Code of Conduct relates to all of 
Getinge’s operations, but is also applied 
in the selection of a supplier. 

Care business area carried out a signifi -
cant restructuring of its production to 
secure long-term profi tability and com-
petitiveness for a number of Huntleigh’s 
product areas. The changes involved the 
transfer of production from the UK and 
the US to the business area’s new plant 
in Poznan, Poland. This restructuring of 
production and integration with 
Huntleigh’s sales companies involved a 
total of about 750 redundancies. 
 
On each occasion, Getinge undertook a 
range of measures to assist those 
affected. 

At year-end 2007, Getinge had 10,358 
employees in 33 countries. The total 
payroll expense for 2007 amounted to 
SEK 5,190 m. 

Management development
In 2007, Getinge continued the long-
term work process to identify and devel-
op future managers. In November, the 
second of the Group’s SUMMIT man-
agement development programmes 
commenced with participants from all 
business areas. The programme com-
bines seminars and four project assign-
ments. The Group’s ambition is to regu-

Personnel overview  2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Total number of employees on 31 December  6 635 6 845 7 362 7 531 10 358
Number of employees in Sweden on 31 December  1 403 1 222 1 301 1 306 1 391
Number of men employed, % 77 76 76 75 72
Number of women employed, %  23 24 24 25 28
Number of employees aged 20-30, %  16 16 17 15 17
Number of employees aged 31-40, %  34 34 32 32 31
Number of employees aged 41-50, %  29 29 30 31 31
Number of employees aged 51-60, %  19 19 19 19 18
Number of employees aged 61-70, %  2 2 2 2 3
Number of employees per business area:     
Medical Systems, %  41 40 39 40 32
Extended Care, %   25 25 24 23 41
Infection Control, % 34 35 37 37 28
Geographical distribution     
Europe, % 78 74 74 71 69
US & Canada, % 18 21 20 21 18
Asia & Australia, % 3 4 5 6 7
Other countries, % 1 1 1 2 6
Added value per employee, 000s  710 780 780 788 735
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Medical 
Systems 
2007

Medical Systems’ product offering comprises surgical tables, surgical lights, ceiling service units for 
medical technical equipment, products for cardio and vascular surgery and ventilators. Customers 
comprise hospitals throughout the world. 

In 2007, the business area continued the internationalisation of its sales organisation, commenced 
sales of the new NAVA ventilator technology, developed a series of new heart-surgery products and 
the MAQUET FLOW-i anaesthesia system (pictured above).
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Orders received

SEK m 2005 2006 2007 +/- %*

Europe 2 896 3 316 3 361 1,6

US & Canada 1 034 1 289 1 063 -10,8

Asia & Australia 943 852 1 058 29,4

Other countries 280 378 419 10,2

Total 5 153 5 835 5 901 3,5

* Adjusted for exchange rates and acquisitions

Sales and income

SEK m 2005 2006 2007 +/- %

Net sales 5 109 5 542 6 078 9,7

Organic growth 12,2

Gross profit 2 486 2 784 3 112 11,8

Operating expenses -1 705 -1 895 -2 079 9,7

EBITA* 787 896 1 040 16,1

EBITA-margin*, % 15,4 16,2 17,1 0,9

* Before restructuring and integration costs



What is your overall view of financial 
year 2007?
Financial year 2007 was another good 
year for the Medical Systems business 
area. Organic growth in sales amounted 
to 12% after a strong performance in the 
two most recent quarters in which 
organic growth totalled 14 and 18%, 
respectively. Sales rose by a total of 
SEK 6.1 billion (5.5). The business area’s 
profitability also improved. EBITA 
amounted to SEK 1,040 m (896) and the 
EBITA margin (before restructuring 
costs) improved to 17.1% (16.2). We also 
launched a number of key products in 
2007, which are expected to contribute 
to the business area’s organic growth in 
future years. We established a new pro-
duction structure in the Cardiopul
monary division to strengthen competi-
tiveness in this product area. The acqui-
sition of the two divisions, Cardiac 
Surgery and Vascular Surgery from US 
company Boston Scientific Corporation 
entail a significant expansion of our 
operations and offer major opportunities 
for strong organic growth in this area. 

What were the most important product 
launches in 2007?
Our new anaesthesia system MAQUET 
FLOW-i was shown for the first time in 
the autumn of 2007. The global market 
for this type of product amounts to 
approximately SEK 5.5 billion and 
FLOW-I will be highly competitive with 
distinct clinical advantages. The product 
is scheduled for delivery during the latter 
half of 2008 and our ambition in the long 
term is to secure a substantial portion of 
the global anaesthesia market. In 2007, 
we also launched a new generation of 
oxygenators and have continued with 
the development of a new modular 
heart-lung machine. This new product 
will be used in heart surgery and in car-
diology. 

You also mentioned the efficiency 
enhancements in the business product 
structure.
Yes. At the beginning of the year we 

opened a new facility for the production 
of Cardiopulmonary’s disposables in 
Turkey. In the next two, years we plan to 
transfer the personnel-intensive part of 
this production from Germany to the 
new facility, which will lead to substantial 
improvements in the competitiveness of 
the products. Our ambition is also to 
expand local production in China. The 
new unit is expected to be deployed at 
the beginning of the second quarter and 
will initially focus on the production of 
ceiling service units for operating thea-
tres. Production of surgical tables will 
commence later in the year. The inten-
tion is that the unit will supply ceiling 
service units and surgical tables to both 
the Chinese and global markets.

The responsibility for sales of surgical 
workstations in the US has been trans-
ferred from Getinge Inc. to Maquet Inc. 
Why?
There are two reasons for this. Firstly, 
we want to combine the future anaes-
thesia launch with other products 

intended for operating theatres. 
Secondly, we believe that this change 
will result in a greater focus on sales of 
our surgical workstations in the US and 
thereby faster growth for this product 
group. Our market share for surgical 
workstations in the US amounts to 
about 15% and our aim is to increase 
this to 30% during the next few years. 
This new organisational structure is not 
unique to the US, but is a better reflec-
tion of how Getinge is organised in other 
markets. 

Which areas will be in focus on in 
2008?
Naturally, the integration of the divisions 
acquired from Boston Scientific 
Corporation is highly important. Our aim 
is to expand in the area of heart surgery 
both in the US and in other markets. In 
addition, we will continue our consistent 
drives in the globalisation of our market-
ing organisation and product develop-
ment.

INTERVIEW WITH EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT HERIBERT BALLHAUS 
AND EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT SALES AND MARKETING MICHAEL RIEDER 

”
	T he acquisition of the Cardiac Surgery and Vascular Surgery divisions 

from Boston Scientific offers major opportunities for favourable organic 
development in the area of cardio surgery in future years.
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Heribert Ballhaus, Executive Vice President Michael Rieder, Executive Vice President Sales 
and Marketing
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Orders received grew organically by 
3.5% for Medical Systems in 2007. 
Performance was strong in Asia/
Australia where organic growth 
amounted to 29%. Growth in Europe 
for the full-year amounted to 2%. 
Performance in the US/Canada was 
weaker after a very strong 2006 and 
fell by 11%. Other countries reported 
strong growth of 10% after a very 
strong fourth quarter of the year. The 
business area’s sales amounted to SEK 
6.1 billion, corresponding to organic 
growth of 12%.

Continued expansion of market 
organisation
In the past few years, Medical Systems 
has continuously expanded its interna-
tional market organisation. The aim is to 
strengthen the business area’s position 
in the North American market and 
establish an early presence in key 
emerging markets. 

During the year, the business area:
•	 expanded sales to Argentina, Chile, 

Turkey and Vietnam.
•	 continued expansion in China, India 

and Russia
•	 completed the establishment of 

sales companies in Poland and the 
Czech Republic that was initiated at 
the end of 2006. These companies 

are now fully operational and have 
reported good sales growth.

•	 Acquired the business area’s 
Danish distributor. 

Activities and sales successes
Medical Systems arranges periodical 
symposiums on mechanical ventilation 
to additionally strengthen the business 
area’s position as a leading supplier of 
ventilators. Two symposiums were held 
in 2007, one in Mumbai in India and one 
in New York in the US. The new 
advanced NAVA ventilation technology 
was one of the products presented at 
these symposiums. 
	 Sales of the MAGNUS surgical table 
and the PowerLED surgical light, both of 
which were launched during the last 
years, continued to perform well.
	 The pre-fabricated, modular operating 
theatre VARIOP often serves as an 
effective door-opener in key emerging 
markets. In 2007, the business area’s 
activities included establishing a larger 
installation at the hospital in Murmansk, 
Russia. VARIOP is also important for a 
number of projects in India, Indonesia 
and Vietnam.

MEDICAL SYSTEMS  |  MARKET 2007

•	Favourable organic growth in sales
• Continued internationalisation of market organisation
• Sales successes for MAGNUS surgical table

2007 2006

Sales companies 28 25

Sales representatives 404 366

Service engineers 400 378

Sales companies, % 84

Distributors, % 160
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The new NAVA technology attracted widespread 
interest at the symposium in Mumbai, India.

Sales of the MAGNUS surgical table that was 
launched in 2005 have developed well during the 
year. 

The pre-fabricated, modular operating theatre 
VARIOP often serves as an effective door-opener 
in key emerging markets.
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MEDICAL SYSTEMS  |  PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT 2007

• First of sales of new NAVA ventilation concept 
• New anaesthesia system
• New oxygenators and new heart-lung machines

The renewal, improvement and expan-
sion of the customer offering is central 
to Medical Systems’ operations. 
Approximately 7% of the business 
area’s sales is invested annually in 
product development and a total of 270 
employees work on product develop-
ment in the business area’s three divi-
sions, Surgical Workplaces, Cardio
pulmonary and Critical Care. The con-
sistent investments in product devel-
opment have resulted in continuous 
improvements of the business area’s 
product offering and good organic 
growth.

Two major investment projects
In the past year, the Critical Care divi-
sion has pursued two key development 
projects – the revolutionary NAVA tech-
nology (Neurally Adjusted Ventilatory 
Assist), which allows the patient’s own 
breathing requirements to control the 
ventilator via the brain’s ventilatory sig-
nals, and the new MAQUET FLOW-i 
anaesthesia system. 

Start of sales for NAVA
The NAVA technology was introduced at 
the ESICM congress in Barcelona in 
September 2006 (European Society of 
Intensive Care Medicine). Earlier versions 
of SERVO-i can also be easily updated 
with NAVA by upgraded the ventilator’s 
software and adding a complementary 
module. At present, there are about 

Dr Brendan O’Hare, Director of Intensive Care at Ireland’s largest children’s hospital, Our Lady’s 
Children’s Hospital Crumlin, in Dublin, has started to use NAVA in the care of young patents 

30,000 SERVO-i ventilators in use. NAVA 
has been introduced throughout the 
world and has attracted considerable 
interest. The market launch covers such 
aspects as the selection of reference 
hospitals each the market and the train-
ing of specialists at the local market 
companies.

MAQUET FLOW-i
The new anaesthesia system MAQUET 
FLOW-i was shown at Medica in 
November 2007 and generated great 
interest among visitors. MAQUET 
FLOW-i is based on the SERVO-i plat-
form and thereby combines advanced 
ventilator technology with a flexible and 
effective technology for the supply of 
anaesthetic gases. It is intended that it 
will be possible to use MAQUET FLOW-i 
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for most types of patients, from critically 
ill adults to newborns, and in all types of 
operations. The product is intended to 
provide anaesthesia personnel the pos-
sibility of continuously optimising the 
level of anaesthesia to the prevailing sit-
uation, at the same time as the patient’s 
breathing is continuously kept stable. 
Thanks to MAQUET FLOW-i being devel-
oped for a broad area of use, hospitals 
can use the same type of anaesthesia 
system for the majority of patients. This 
means an efficient utilisation of resourc-
es, at the same time as the personnel’s 
training is simplified if they only need to 
learn how to use one machine.
	 FLOW-i has an ergonomic design. Its 
many settings options and its functions 
create a good physical working environ-

ment for the anaesthesia personnel. The 
product is expected to be ready for 
delivery in the latter part of 2008. The 
global anaesthesia market is valued at 
approximately SEK 5,500 million and the 
business area has the ambition of win-
ning significant market share in the long 
term.

New Cardiopulmonary products
The Cardiopulmonary division is current-
ly rolling out a new generation of oxy-
genators. The roll-out is expected to 
continue until the end of 2008 and will 
replace today’s oxygenators for all 
patient categories. Both costs and per-
formance will be improved with the new 
generation of products. Cardio
pulmonary is also conducting a project 

with the aim of developing a new modu-
lar heart-lung machine for use in heart 
surgery and cardiology.

MAQUET FLOW-i is an entirely new anaesthesia system, designed for high clinical performance. 
The product was shown at the Medica medical fair in Germany in the autumn of 2007.
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The Medical Systems division’s manu-
facturing structure includes seven pro-
duction units located in France, China, 
Sweden, Turkey and Germany. In 
recent years, the business area has 
focused on improving the competitive-
ness of Cardiopulmonary’s disposables 
by establishing production in Turkey.

New production structure in 
Cardiopulmonary
The new production facility in Turkey for 
Cardiopulmonary’s disposables was 
brought into operation during the first 
quarter of 2007. Over the next two-year 
period, the intent is to transfer the per-
sonnel-intensive production of dispos-
ables from Germany to the Turkish unit, 
at the same time as the efficiency of the 
more capital-intensive production is 
enhanced at its current location in 
Germany.

Production in China
The expansion of the business area’s 

MEDICAL SYSTEMS  |  SUPPLY CHAIN 2007

• New production facility in Turkey
• Expanded production at facility in China

local production in China has pro-
gressed according to plan during the 
year. The new production unit was 
brought into operation at the beginning 
of 2008 and makes increased local pro-
duction possible. Previously, local 
Chinese production comprised ceiling 
service units. During 2008, basic surgi-
cal tables for the global market will also 
be a part of the locally produced prod-
uct range. 

Purchasing
The business area conducts continuous 
efforts to enhance the efficiency of pur-
chasing work by reducing and standard-
ising the number of components to 
establish larger purchasing volumes. 
Additionally, work is underway that aims 
to reduce the number of suppliers and 
broaden the geographic base of pur-
chasing efforts.

Facility Production Quality certification Environmental 
certification

Antalya, TR Cardiopulmonary disposables  ISO 13485 –

Ardon, FR Surgical lights and ceiling service units ISO 9001/ISO 13485 –

Hechingen, DE Cardiopulmonary disposables ISO 9001 –

Hirrlingen, DE Cardiopulmonary disposables ISO 9001 –

Rastatt, DE Surgical tables
Prefabricated OR theatres

ISO 9001/ISO 13485 ISO 14001

Solna, SE Ventilators and Heart-lung machines ISO 9001/ISO 13485 ISO 14001

Suzhou, CN Ceiling service units / Surgical tables ISO 9001 –

Production facilities
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Product area Surgical Workplaces Cardiopulmonary Critical Care

Products Surgical tables/lights, prefabricated 
OR theatres and ceiling service units 
for medical technical equipment.

Heart-lung machines with associated 
disposables.

Ventilators
Anaesthesia equipment to be laun-
ched in the second half of 2008, not 
included in market data below.

Market segment Hospitals Hospitals Hospitals

Market size SEK 7,400 m SEK 5,800 m SEK 5,000 m

Market growth 5  % 4  % 5  %

Market position # 1 # 3 # 1

Competitors Berchtold, DE
Dräger, DE
Mizuho, JP
Skytron, US
Steris, US
Trumpf, DE

Medtronic, US
Sorin, IT
Terumo, JP

Dräger, DE
Puritan Bennett, US, 
Viasys, US

Net sales, SEK m
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The average increase during the period 
amounted to 17,1%.

The average increase during the period 
amounted to 20,5%. 

FIVE-YEAR SUMMERY 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Comments

Orders received, SEK m 3 138 4 503 5 153 5 835 5 901

Medical Systems has performed very 
well in the period through a combina-
tion of acquisition-led expansion and a 
strong organic growth. The business 
area’s earnings also demonstrated a 
strong upwards trend with an annual 
increase in EBITA of 20,5 %.

Net sales 3 238 4 620 5 109 5 542 6 078

Share of Group’s net sales, % 35.4 42.4 43.0 42.6 37.0

Gross profit, SEK m 1 594 2 245 2 486 2 784 3 112.0

Gross margin, % 49.2 48.6 48.7 50.2 51.2

Operating cost, SEK m -1 219 -1 549 -1 705 -1 895 -2 079

EBITA* 493 699 787 896 1 040

Share of Group’s EBITA* 34.0 40.0 43.0 44.4 38.8

EBITA-margin*, % 15.2 15.1 15.4 16.2 17.1

Operating profit, SEK m 375 695 781 889 1 033

Share of Group’s operating profit, % 29.9 39.9 43.3 45.9 45.3

Operating margin, % 11.6 15.1 15.3 16.0 17.0

No. of employees 2 727 2 733 2 806 2 986 3 264
*Before restructuring and integration costs

*Before restructuring and integration costs

RR IFRS
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EXTENDED 
CARE 
2007

Extended Care’s product range comprises patient lifts, hygiene systems, hospital beds, 
products for wound-care, thrombosis and pressure ulcer prevention, as well as diagnostic 
products. The business area’s customers comprise institutions within elderly care, hospitals 
and home care.

In 2007, the business area integrated Huntleigh, implemented significant streamlining of 
production and launched a number of products with good market potential. 
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Orders received

SEK m 2005 2006 2007 +/- %*

Europe 1 822 1 948 3 818 5,1

US & Canada 1 203 1 130 1 692 4,8

Asia & Australia 105 101 500 6,0

Other countries 1 2 114 17,7

Total 3 131 3 181 6 124 5,0

*Adjusted for exchange rates and acquisitions

Sales and income  

SEK m 2005 2006 2007 +/- %

Net sales 2 982 3 183 6 009 88,8

Organic growth 3,4

Gross profit 1 397 1 500 2 775 85,0

Operating expenses -891 -977 -1 894 93,8

EBITA* 522 538 998 85,5

EBITA margin*, % 17,5 16,9 16,6 -0,3

*Before restructuring and integration costs
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What is your view of 2007?
Financial year 2007 was a very intensive 
year for Extended Care, primarily as a 
result of the Huntleigh acquisition. At the 
same time as we invested much energy 
in integrating Huntleigh into the business 
area’s structures, we succeeded in 
maintaining a strong focus on day-to-
day operations. Sales developed well. 
Organic sales for the “old Extended 
Care” increased by 5%. Huntleigh also 
had similar good development. 
Moreover, the business area’s profitabili-
ty developed well. EBITA before restruc-
turing costs increased by 86% to SEK 
998 m. The sharp rise is primarily attrib-
utable to the acquisition of Huntleigh, 
but in a pro-forma comparison, the 
EBITA margin before integration and 
restructuring costs was also strength-
ened from 14.4% to 16.4% for the busi-
ness area in its entirety.

What are the trends in the  
various markets?
In terms of organic growth, the trend 
was positive in Europe, US/Canada and 
in Asia/Australia, with increases in 
orders received of about 5%. In other 
parts of the world, organic growth in 
orders received amounted to nearly 
18%. Through the acquisition of 
Huntleigh, the business area distinctly 
moved its positions forward in Asia/
Australia.

The acquisition of British-owned 
Huntleigh was concluded in January 
2007. How was the integration work 
conducted during the year?
The integration largely followed the stra-
tegic objectives already set by the busi-
ness area, namely, strengthened market 
positions, improved product develop-
ment, enhanced competitiveness and 
streamlined processes. As regards the 
market organisation, this entailed the 
fusion of Arjo’s and Huntleigh’s sales 
companies in 14 markets. Consequently, 
we created a stable platform to increase 
sales of Arjo’s products to the hospitals 
segment and increase sales of 

Huntleigh’s range to the elderly care 
segment. In connection with the major 
Medica healthcare convention in 
November, we also launched our new 
ArjoHuntleigh brand. In terms of 
improvements to competitiveness in 
2007, we mainly focused on manufactur-
ing of our range of beds, wound-care 
products and products to prevent the 
onset of thrombosis. At the beginning of 
the year, these products were produced 
at four plants in the UK and the US. In 
the last two quarters of the year, pro-
duction was moved to the business 
area’s new production facility in Poznan, 
Poland. This will entail a substantial 
improvement in profitability for these 
products in 2008. 

You also mentioned product develop-
ment and more efficient processes as 
priority areas.
Precisely. In 2007, our work included the 
preparation of a common way of work-
ing for all five development centres in 
the business area and the establishment 
of product-generation plans, including 
plans for the Huntleigh product lines. We 
also launched a number of new prod-
ucts, including an entirely new product 
for the treatment of deep wounds with 
negative pressure. This product opens 
up an entirely new market segment for 

us, with a global market that grows 
quickly and is valued at approximately 
SEK 8 billion.
	 As regards our processes, work com-
menced during the year aimed at creat-
ing an efficient logistics solution with a 
coherent information flow from order to 
delivery. This project, also encompass-
ing one European and one North 
American central warehouse and a joint 
ERP system for the entire business area, 
will be implemented at all of the busi-
ness area’s sales companies and pro-
duction units in 2008/2009. When fully 
implemented, this will entail further sav-
ings, but primarily, even better service to 
our customers with shorter and more 
precise delivery times.

Which areas will be in focus in 2008?
During the first six months, we will con-
tinue to focus on realising the cost syn-
ergies of the Huntleigh acquisition, but 
from mid-2008, the integration work will 
increasingly involve sales synergies and 
growth. In 2008, we will also continue 
the increased investments in product 
development and expect to launch a 
large number of new or significantly 
improved products. In addition, we will 
continue the work focused on coordinat-
ing the business area’s IT structure and 
streamlining our logistics function. 

INTERVIEW WITH EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT MICHAEL BERG

”
	 The integration of Huntleigh has improved the business area’s positions in 

several areas: the customer offering has been broadened and the market 
organisation has been strengthened. At the same time the cost synergies 
have been significant .
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EXTENDED CARE  |  MARKET  2007

• Sharp increase in sales and earnings
• Integration of Huntleigh’s sales company 
• Launch of new brand

In 2007, organic growth in orders 
received amounted to 5%, excluding 
Huntleigh. Sales increased by 89%. 
The sharp increase was primarily due 
to the acquisition of Huntleigh, which 
was consolidated in the business area 
from 1 February 2007. EBITA before 
restructuring and integration costs also 
developed strongly from SEK 538 m to  
SEK 998 m, corresponding to an 
increase of 86%.

Integration of sales companies
One of the most important activities dur-
ing 2007 was the integration of 
Huntleigh’s sales companies. This work 
specifically entailed the fusion of Arjo’s 
and Huntleigh’s sales companies in the 
majority of markets where the business 
area is active. The fusion enables syner-
gies in terms of expenses, but it primari-
ly creates a strong platform for sales 
synergies. Arjo has always maintained 
strong positions in elderly care and has 
always been strong in the hospitals 
area. By developing a cohesive sales 
organisation, highly favourable opportu-
nities are created to increase sales of 

the Arjo range to hospitals and the 
Huntleigh range to the elderly care sec-
tor. Accordingly, the sales organisation 
is well positioned to realise the sales 
synergies that were one of the driving 
factors behind the acquisition of 
Huntleigh.

New brand
During the year, a comprehensive survey 
was performed that revealed that the 
Arjo and Huntleigh brands hold very 
strong positions in the market – first and 
third in the nine markets that were stud-
ied. The survey also showed that the 
business area’s (potential) customers 
have a highly positive attitude to both 
brands. Consequently, to maximise the 
value of both brands, the business area 
decided to establish the new, joint brand 
ArjoHuntleigh. The launch and imple-
mentation of the new brand will be car-
ried out within the entire business area 
during 2008. 

2007 2006

Sales companies 35 24

Sales representatives 722 338

Service engineers 1 094 577

Sales companies, % 95

Distributors, % 5

The new ArjoHuntleigh brand was launched at the 
Medica healthcare convention in Germany in the 
autumn of 2007. The new brand is founded on the 
overall strength and breadth in the new, integra-
ted organisation. 

Sales of the Maxi Sky ceiling lift continued to 
develop in a highly favourable manner in 2007, 
particularly in the European market. Large instal-
lations were completed in such countries as 
France, the Netherlands and Germany.  
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New products are a central driving 
force for Extended Care’s organic 
growth. Consequently, the business 
area plans to successively increase 
investments in new products and sys-
tem solutions in the next few years. 
About 2% of the business area’s sales 
is invested each year in product devel-
opment and 150 people work on the 
business area’s development projects.

New generation of passive lifts
During 2007, the business area devel-
oped a new generation of passive 
patient lifters. The new product family is 
based on three platforms that will 
replace the existing seven platforms. 
The ambition is that the new products 
shall have a higher degree of functionali-
ty, while also being more cost effective 

than the former product range. The new 
products will be launched in 2008.

New wound-care product
In the third quarter of the year, 
WoundASSIST® TNP was launched in 
the UK and Germany. The product offers 
deep wound treatment using negative 
pressure (so-called Negative Pressure 
Wound Therapy, NPWT). With NPWT, 
the wound is efficiently treated, while the 
blood circulation in the damaged area is 
stimulated. As a result, wound recupera-
tion occurs at a more rapid pace than 
with conventional treatments. The global 
NPWT market is estimated at approxi-
mately SEK 8 billion, of which the North 
American market accounts for some 
80%.
	 WoundASSIST® TNP is the business 

EXTENDED CARE  |  PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT  2007

• WoundASSIST®TNP opens up new market segment
• Development of new generation of passive lifts
• Continued investment in products for care of obese patients

In the third quarter, the new WoundASSIST® TNP wound-care product, for 
the treatment of wounds using negative pressure wound therapy, was intro-
duced in the UK and Germany and will successively be launched in additional 
markets. The product opens an entirely new area for Extended Care.

area’s first product for the NPWT seg-
ment. The product will be successively 
launched in more markets. 

New bed for the 
intensive care segment
The Enterprise 9000 medical bed, 
launched at the Medica healthcare con-
vention, has been developed for use in 
intensive care units and features several 
functions intended to increase patient 
safety. The US model is also equipped 
with controls for TV, radio and lighting. 

New products for 
care of obese patients
Treating excessively obese patients has 
long been a problem in healthcare. 
Accordingly, the business area has 
gradually expanded its product range in 

Through an agreement with the Danish manufacturer Pressalit, the business 
area has expanded its customer offering of private bathrooms for various 
types of elderly accommodation. 
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this area in recent years to also cover 
different types of patient handling solu-
tions and specially adapted medical 
beds. During 2007, two new products 
were launched in this segment: Carmina, 
a new shower and toilet stool with a 
weight capacity of 320 kilos and the 
Bari-Breeze Bariatric pressure-wound 
mattress with a weight capacity of 455 
kilos. Both products were launched at 
Medica in November.

Joint development process  
During the year, the development 
departments within each product line, in 
conjunction with the main technology 
centre in Lund, Sweden, adapted the 
product development process to also 
include Huntleigh’s operations. All prod-
uct lines now have product generation 
plans and are driving development in 

accordance with standardised princi-
ples. This, combined with a strengthen-
ing of personnel in the development 
organisation, will lead to a continuous 
flow of new, competitive products in the 
years ahead. 

New product range for private toilet 
and bathroom facilities
Within the elderly care sector, there has 
been a distinct trend in recent years 
toward creating private bathroom facili-
ties for residents instead of central bath-
room facilities, which dominated in the 
past. To broaden the current product 
offering for private toilet and bathroom 
facilities, which until now comprised var-
ious shower solutions, the business area 
signed a private label agreement with 
the Danish company Pressalit. Through 
the agreement, the business area has 

access to a sophisticated system, which 
can be easily adapted to changes in the 
resident’s mobility. The agreement cov-
ers ten geographical markets and the 
products were launched at the German 
Altenpflege Elderly Care Congress in 
February 2008. 

The new range of passive lifts will have a higher degree of functionality and be more cost efficient that 
the earlier range. The new products will be launched in 2008. 
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EXTENDED CARE  |  SUPPLY CHAIN 2007

•	Vigorous streamlining of the production structure with 
	 new plants in Poland and China
	

The transfer of production to the new plant i Poznan, Poland as gone according to plan. 

In 2007, the business area implement-
ed a sweeping change of much of 
Huntleigh’s production structure to 
strengthen competitiveness.

The change entailed the closure of the 
UK production facilities for wound-care 
mattresses (Luton and Waterlooville), 
and medical beds (Wednesbury) and the 
relocation of production to Poznan, 
Poland. In addition, the production of 
so-called DVT products (preventive 
treatment of deep vein thrombosis) in 
Eatontown, New Jersey, in the US, was 
discontinued and relocated to Poznan. 
These measures create a highly cost-
efficient and competitive production 
structure with stable conditions for 
favourable sales development. 

Social consequences of closures 
In total, the closures resulted in the loss 
of 750 jobs in the UK and US. The clo-
sures were implemented following con-
structive negotiations with employee 
union representatives and the business 
area has taken a number of measures to 
mitigate the effects for the individuals 
affected. These included organising job 
shops to match employees’ skills with 
demands of local employers, arranging 
training courses and assistance with 
applications. Some of the employees 
also received help to start their own 
company.

New facility in Poznan
The facility in Poznan was put into oper-
ation at the end of the second quarter of 
2007 and production volumes increased 
gradually during the last two quarters. 
At year-end, the extensive transfer of 
production from the UK and US was 
fully implemented. The facility has 
15,000 m2 of production floor space and 
is optimised for an efficient production 
flow. In the fourth quarter, production in 
Poznan was certified in accordance with 
the medical device quality standard ISO 
13485. The number of employees 
totalled 370 at year-end.

Continued focus on improvements
The business area will continue the work 
focused on establishing world-class pro-
duction, purchasing and logistics solu-
tions. An experienced production direc-
tor with responsibility for all of the busi-
ness area’s production units was recruit-
ed during the year

Production in China
In 2008, the business area will construct 
a production facility on the Group’s 
campus in Suzhou, China, where 
Infection Control and Medical Systems 
already have manufacturing. The plant 
will be completed at the end of the third 
quarter of 2008.

Facility Production Quality certification Environmental 
certification

Cardiff, GB Diagnostics ISO 9001/ISO 13485 ISO 14001

Eslöv, SE Patient handling: hygiensystem ISO 9001/ISO 13485 ISO 14001

Hamont-Achel, BE Patient handling: lyftar ISO 9001 –

Ipswich, GB Medical beds ISO 9001/ISO 13485 –

Luton, GB Therapy & Prevention ISO 9001/ISO 13485 –

Magog, CA Patient handling: lyftar ISO 13485 –

Perth, AU Medical beds – –

Pretoria, ZA Medical beds – –

Poznan, PL Medical beds, Therapy & Prevention ISO 13485 –

Wetzlar, DE Patient handling: hygiensystem – –

Production plants
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Product area Patient handling Medical beds Therapy & Prevention Diagnostics

Products • Patient hygiene (shower/
bath)

• Lifts and transfer

• Hospital beds
• Stretchers
• Couches

• Pressure ulcer prevention
• Thrombosis prophylaxis

• Dopplers
• Foetal monitors

Market segment Hospitals and elderly care Hospitals Hospitals and elderly care Hospitals

Market size SEK 6,300 m SEK 14,000 m SEK 21,500 m SEK 1,100 m 

Market growth Patient hygiene 	 4 %
Lifts and transfer	 7 %

	 3 % Pressure ulcer prevention 	6 %
Thrombosis prophylaxis 	4 %

Dopplers	 4 %
Foetal monitors	 4 %

Market position Patient hygiene	 # 1
Lifts and transfer	 # 1

	 # 4 Pressure ulcer prevention 	# 3
Thrombosis prophylaxis	# 1

Dopplers	 # 1
Foetal monitors	 # 3

Competitors Liko (SE)  
Sakai/OG Giken/Amano (JP) 
Waverly Glen/Westholme (CA) 
Sunrise/Joerns (US)

Hill-Rom (US)
Stryker (US)
Paramount Beds (JP)
Linet (CZ)

Hill-Rom (US)
KCI (US)
Kendall (US)

Nicolet (US)
Hadeko (US)
Phillips (NL)
GE (US)

Net sales, SEK m 
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The average increase during the period 
was 24.1%

The average increase during the period 
was 21.0%

Five-year summary 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Comments

Orders received, SEK m 2 602 2 693 3 131 3 181 6 124

Extended Care has had a somewhat 
uneven financial development in recent 
years. In 2006 and 2007, the business 
area implemented comprehensive 
streamlining measures, which will be 
reflected in an increased level of profi-
tability in the years ahead. Combined 
with increased investments in product 
development and sales, the acquisi-
tion of the British company Huntleigh, 
which was concluded in January 2007, 
will contribute to good development.  

Net sales, SEK m 2 535 2 701 2 982 3 183 6 009

Share of Group’s net sales, % 27.7 24.8 25.1 24.5 36.5

Gross profit, SEK m 1 224 1 286 1 397 1 500 2 775

Gross margin, % 48.3 47.6 46.8 47.1 46.2

Operating costs, SEK m -789 -775 -891 -977 -1 894

EBITA*, SEK m 466 514 522 538 998

Share of Group’s EBITA, % 32.2 29.4 28.5 26.7 37.3

EBITA margin*, % 18.4 19.0 17.5 16.9 16.6

Operating profit, SEK m 435 511 506 488 624

Share of Group’s operating profit, % 34.6 29.3 28.1 25.2 27.3

Operating margin, % 17.2 18.9 17.0 15.3 10.4

No. of employees 1 621 1 677 1 776 1 754 4 228
*Before restructuring and integration costs

*Before restructuring and integration costs

RR IFRS
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Infection Control’s systems include disinfection and sterilisation products, loading solutions, as 
well as IT-based data and quality systems. The business area’s customers are active within the 
healthcare sector, Life Science industry and institutional elderly care.  

In 2007, the business area reported very good organic growth and rising profitability, launched 
several new products, expanded production in China and further streamlined the purchasing 
work. A new and cohesive business area organisation structure was also established. 
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INFECTION 
CONTROL

2007

Orders received

SEK m 2005 2006 2007 +/- %*

Europe 1 970 2 236 2 414 8,1

US & Canada 1 436 1 449 1 448 8,2

Asia & Australia 413 525 546 6,4

Other countries 77 75 86 23,4

Total 3 896 4 285 4 494 8,2

*Adjusted for exchange rates and acquisitions

Sales and income  

SEK m 2005 2006 2007 +/- %

Net sales 3 745 4 262 4 358 2,2

Organic growth 5,6

Gross profit 1 429 1 605 1 659 3,4

Operating expenses -918 -1 044 -1 034 -1,0

EBITA* 518 577 640 10,9

EBITA margin*, % 13,8 13,5 14,7 1,2

*Before restructuring and integration costs



How do you view the year for
Infection Control in 2007? 
It was a good year for Infection Control. 
Organic growth in orders received 
amounted to 8.2% and sales increased 
to SEK 4,358 m (4,262). Profitability also 
developed favourably. EBITA increased 
by 10.9% to SEK 640 m and the EBITA 
margin rose from 13.5% to 14.7%. 

You took up your position at Infection 
Control in the autumn of 2007. How do 
you view the business area? 
Infection Control has a first-rate opera-
tion with world-class products and many 
highly skilled employees. At the same 
time, I can see several areas where we 
have the possibility to be even stronger. 
Among other activities, we will expand 
our sales organisation and further inten-
sify investments in innovation and prod-
uct development. 
	 The market conditions for more rapid 
growth are good at present. To begin 
with, the focus on infection control is 
growing in pace with an increase in 
awareness of these matters throughout 
the world. The ever-increasing demands 
on efficiency means that we can 
observe a trend toward larger sterile 
centres in many locations. This in turn 
means that customers seek to identify 
suppliers with the expertise and capaci-
ty to deliver complete systems and pro-
fessional service – which, combined 
with a clear customer focus, is the hall-
mark of Infection Control. Customers 
within Life Science increasingly seek to 
work with global suppliers and we can 
observe a growing trend toward green 
products in the US. In view of this, we 
within Infection Control view the future 
positively and expect to be able to 
achieve organic growth that is higher 
than market growth in the next few 
years.   

What were the most important events 
and activities in 2007?
There are several to mention. We 
expanded our production in China, 
implemented significant improvements 

at our plant in Rochester, in the US, and 
streamlined our purchasing activities. 
Since the end of 2007, production at our 
plant in Suzhou City also covers pres-
sure vessels for sterilizers for the local 
Chinese market. Improvements in our 
purchasing activities were significant 
and these, combined with the effects 
from more efficient logistics solutions, 
contributed to a strengthening of our 
margins. 
	 We also enjoyed great successes 
with our new products, including the 
new AirGlide system for sterilizers, which 
was warmly received in the market. In 
addition, all market areas reported a 
favourable trend during the year as a 
whole. 

Which areas will be in focus in 2008?
We have three areas that we will focus 
on in 2008. Growth is the first of these. 
We will establish new sales companies 
in the Middle East and Brazil and, sub-
sequently, India. All of these markets 
have good potential. Furthermore, we 

will work to improve penetration in a 
number of important markets, particular-
ly Japan, China and the US, by focusing 
and streamlining our sales organisations 
in these countries. 
	 The second focus area for 2008 also 
involves growth, but in a longer per-
spective. We will further increase our 
investments in product innovation and 
product development to move positions 
forward in terms of our customer offer-
ing. As an addition to this, we will work 
with structured business development 
within both our Healthcare and Life 
Science market segments. 
	 The third area is best described using 
the term “operational excellence.” In 
2008 we will commence the long-term 
work for further enhance our service 
and quality. This is one of the reasons 
we recruited a director for quality and 
regulatory issues. The concept of opera-
tional excellence also means more effi-
cient management of our margins than 
current practice.           

INTERVIEW WITH EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT CHRISTER STRÖM

”
	 In 2007, we established a new, cohesive organisation that will focus on 

growth, both through expansion of the market organisation and through 
increased investments in innovation.
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INFECTION CONTROL  |  MARKET 2007

•	Good organic development 
•	Expansion of market organisation in Europe, Japan and China
•	New organisation for system accessories

Organic orders received rose by a 
healthy 8.2% for infection Control in 
2007. Development was strong in all 
market areas. Organic growth in 
Europe amounted to 8.1%, in US/
Canada to 8.2%, in Asia/Australia to 
6.4% and in other countries to 23.4%. 
The business area’s sales increased to 
SEK 4,357 m (4,262), which corre-
sponds to an organic increase of 5.6%. 

Among European markets, the trend 
was particularly favourable in 
Scandinavia, Southern and Eastern 
Europe. In Southern Europe, the suc-
cess of the business area’s Life Science 
organisation contributed to develop-
ment. In Eastern Europe, where the 
business area is present with its own 
sales company in Poland and the Czech 
Republic, orders received increased by 
65%. Development was particularly 
strong in Russia and Serbia. Sales in the 
Chinese market also developed favoura-
bly in 2007. In the US and Canada, the 
trend was particularly strong during the 
last two quarters of the year, with organ-
ic order growth of 16.3% and 30.6%, 
respectively. 

Expansion of market organisation       
In 2007, Infection Control strengthened 
its market organisation in several areas. 
The sales organisation was expanded in 
a number of European markets, but the 
Japanese organisation for the hospitals 
segment also expanded with the addi-
tion of new resources during the year. 
The business area also continued its 
efforts to grow in the Life Science seg-
ment. This included such activities as 
the establishment of a dedicated Life 
Science organisation in Southern 
Europe, while the corresponding organi-
sation in China was expanded. The busi-
ness area also established an organisa-
tion to increase sales of system acces-
sories in line with the ambition to offer 
customers efficient and complete solu-
tions. Combined, these measures con-
tributed to the favourable trend in 2007, 
but will primarily drive the business 
area’s organic growth in the years 
ahead. 

2007 2006

Sales companies 26 28

Sales representatives 234 226

Service engineers 708 686

Sales companies, % 78

Distributors, % 220

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Orders received, SEK m Organic order growth, % Market organisation 

Sales by distribution channel

0

2

4

6

8

10

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Sales of the GETINGE 88 TURBO washer disin-
fector were very strong in 2007. 

The T-DOC documentation and quality system 
achieved significant success in the US market in 
2007.  
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A continuous flow of new and innova-
tive products are important for 
Infection Control’s competiveness and 
organic growth. Accordingly, the busi-
ness area established more efficient 
processes for, and assigned more 
resources to product development over 
the past two years. About 2% of sales 
is currently invested in research and 
development and some 100 people 
work on the business area’s product 
development. 

Product successes 
In 2006, the business area launched the 
POKA YOKE AER, a low-temperature 
disinfector for flexible endoscopes, and 
GETINGE 88 TURBO, a washer disinfec-
tor that offers such advantages as halv-
ing of the process time. Both products 
were well received by the markets and 
achieved significant sales successes in 
2007. During the year, sales of the busi-
ness area’s T-DOC documentation and 
quality system grew by nearly 25% due, 
among other things, to successes in the 
North American market. 

Focus on customers’ processes
Each competence centre – sterilisation, 
disinfection, isolators, electron beam 
sterilisation, ethylene oxide sterilisation – 
is responsible for product development 
within their product groups. Information 
and competence is exchanged via glo-
bal product committees. The focus of 
product development is on complete 
solutions, which means that our custom-
ers can enhance efficiency in their proc-
esses and strengthen operations in 
other ways. 

More efficient product development
In recent years, the business area has 
established more efficient processes for 
its product development with a solid 
product generation plan based on care-

INFECTION CONTROL  |  PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT 2007

•	Increased pace of product development
•	Several exciting product launches
•	Good growth in T-DOC sales
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ful analysis of the current product range 
and the needs that exist in the market. 
This product-generation plan governs 
what products are to be developed. The 
actual product-development process 
was also improved through measures 
that include involving, in a clearer man-
ner and at an earlier stage, the market 
and purchasing functions. The business 
area expects that the new product-gen-
eration plan and the new development 
process, combined with greater resourc-
es, will lead to a higher pace in product 
development in the coming years. The 
business area identified a number of 
promising projects and its product port-
folio is highly attractive. 

Product launches at Medica
At the large German healthcare conven-
tion, Medica, the business area 
launched, among other products, the 
world’s first automatic AIR GLIDE sys-
tem for autoclaves, four new software 
modules for T-DOC and a broadened 
rang of AER products (Automatic 
Endoscope Reprocessing). The business 
area also launched new flusher disinfec-
tors, new washer disinfectors and new 
solutions for the Life Science market 
during the year.

Many of this year’s new products were launched 
internally at the business area’s “Product launch 
Days” in September 2007. 

Getinge LS 3200 for the Life Science market was 
previously only sold in the US, but has now been 
adapted for sale in all markets. 

Sales of the POKA YOKE low-temperature disin-
fection unit, launched in 2006, developed positi-
vely in 2007. 
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The business area launched the world’s first AIR GLIDE system for autoclaves in 2007.
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INFECTION CONTROL  |  SUPPLY CHAIN 2007

•	Local production of pressure vessels for the Chinese market
•	More efficient purchases leading to cost savings
 

Infection Control’s manufacturing 
structure comprises 12 producing units 
in Denmark, France, China, the UK, 
Sweden, Germany and the US. In 2007, 
the business area’s activities included 
the expansion of production in China 
and the conclusion of the NICEDS 
logistics project. 

Expanded production in China
In 2007, production was expanded at 
the business area’s facility in Suzhou, 
China, to also include pressure vessels 
for sterilizers. The pressure vessels are 
intended for the Chinese market and 
through this measure, the business 
area’s competiveness in this important 
market will be further strengthened. 

Investments in Rochester
In 2007, the business area also invested 
in the assembly plant in Rochester, in 
the US, to enhance efficiency in opera-
tions. The result is more rapid through-
put times, a lower level of tied-up capi-

tal, enhanced utilisation of office and 
production space, and ultimately, a sig-
nificant improvement in the work envi-
ronment. 

More efficient purchasing 
and logistics
During the year, the business area con-
solidated the base of suppliers to create 

greater combined purchasing volumes, 
but also to increase the element of pur-
chases from low-cost countries. This, 
combined with enhancements in the 
business area’s logistics function and 
good utilisation of the plant, resulted in 
significant margin improvements. 

Facility Production Quality certification Environmental 
certification

Getinge, SE Pressure vessel production ISO 9001 ISO 14001

Lynge, DK Pure steam generators ISO 9001 ISO 14001

Paris, FR Electron-beam sterilisation ISO 9001 ISO 14001

Peiting, DE Disinfection equipment, Sterilizers ISO 9001 & ISO 13485 –

Rochester, US Assembly ISO 9001 & ISO 13485 ISO 14001

Rush City, US Assembly ISO 9001 –

Skärhamn, SE Tabletop sterilizers ISO 9001 & ISO 13485 ISO 14001

Sutton-in-Ashfield, GB Assembly ISO 9001 –

Suzhou, CN Assembly ISO 9001 –

Toulouse, FR Disinfection ISO 9001 & ISO 13485 ISO 14001

Vendôme, FR Isolators ISO 9001 –

Växjö, SE Disinfection ISO 9001 & ISO 13485 ISO 14001

Production plants
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Product area Disinfection Sterilisation

Products • Washer disinfectors
• Flusher disinfectors

• Sterilisation equipment     • Loading equipment 
• IT-systems

Market segment Healthcare, Life Science and Elderly care Healthcare and Life Science

Market size SEK 5,000 m SEK 8,000 m 

Market growth 4-6 % 3-5 %

Market position # 1 # 1

Competitors Steris (US)
Miele (DE)
Belimed (CH)

Steris (US)
Sakura (JP)
Belimed (CH)

Net sales, SEK m 
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Five-year summary 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Comments

Orders received, SEK m 3 371 3 570 3 896 4 286 4 494

In the first few years of the new millen-
nium, Infection Control consolidated 
operations in terms of its production 
structure, organisation and brand. 
Since 2005, the business area has 
concentrated on increasing organic 
growth. In 2007, the market organisa-
tion was strengthened in several areas 
and the business area forecasts good 
development in the years ahead.   

Net sales, SEK m 3 344 3 525 3 745 4 262 4 358

Share of Group’s net sales, % 36.5 32.4 31.5 32.8 26.5

Gross profit, SEK m 1 287 1 352 1 429 1 605 1 659

Gross margin, % 38.5 38.4 38.2 37.7 38.1

Operating costs, SEK m -840 -818 -918 -1 044 -1 034

EBITA*, SEK m 491 534 518 577 640

Share of Group’s EBITA*, % 33.9 30.5 28.3 28.6 23.9

EBITA margin*, % 14.7 15.2 13.8 13.5 14.7

Operating profit, SEK m 447 534 511 552 625

Share of Group’s operating profit, % 35.6 30.6 28.4 28.5 27.4

Operating margin, % 13.4 15.2 13.6 13.0 14.3

No. of employees 2 204 2 389 2 737 2 791 2 866
*Before restructuring and integration costs

*Before restructuring and integration costs

RR IFRS
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adopting the company’s balance sheets and 
income statements, deciding on the alloca-
tions of earnings in the company and deciding 
on discharging the members of the Board and 
the CEO from liability. The General Meeting 
also decides on remuneration to the Board of 
Directors and auditors fees and guidelines for 
remuneration to senior executives.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2007
A total of 670 shareholders, representing 
43.7% of the number of shares and 64.9% of 
the total number of votes, participated at 
Getinge’s Annual General Meeting on April 19, 
2007, in Halmstad. The entire Board of 
Directors (except the resigning Fredrik Arp), 
the CEO, the Chief Financial Officer and the 
Company’s auditor were present at the meet-
ing. 

The Annual General Meeting re-elected Carl 
Bennet, Rolf Ekedahl, Carola Lemne, Johan 
Malmquist, Margareta Norell-Bergendahl and 
Johan Stern. Johan Bygge was elected onto 
the Board of Directors. In addition, Carl 
Bennet was re-elected as Chairman of the 

share register maintained by VPC AB. The 
share capital of Getinge at the end of the year 
comprised 201,873,920 shares, of which 
13,502,160 shares were Class A and 
188,371,760 shares were Class B. One Class 
A share carries ten votes and one Class B 
share carries one vote. A full lot consists of 
200 Class B shares. Trading in Getinge’s sha-
res is executed on the OMX Nordic Exchange 
Stockholm AB. Getinge’s market capitalisation 
amounted to SEK 35.6 billion as of 31 
December 2007. Information regarding 
Getinge’s ownership structure, share trend, 
etc., is presented on pages 8-9.

GENERAL MEETINGS
Getinge’s governance and development acti-
vities are governed by decisions in a number 
of company bodies, with the General Meeting 
as the highest decision-making body. At the 
General Meeting, shareholders exercise their 
voting rights in accordance with Swedish cor-
porate legislation and Getinge’s Articles of 
Association. The General Meeting elects the 
Board of Directors and auditors. The other 
tasks of the General Meeting also include 

The corporate governance of Getinge is 
based on Swedish legislation (primarily the 
Swedish Companies Act), the Articles of 
Association, the rules and regulations of 
OMX Nordic Exchange Stockholm AB and 
the regulations and recommendations 
issued by relevant organisations. Getinge 
applies the Swedish Code of Corporate 
Governance (”the Code”). The Code is based 
on the principle “comply or explain.” This 
means that a company that applies the Code 
may deviate from regulations of the Code, 
but must provide explanations for each devi-
ation. Getinge complies with the Code’s 
regulations and presents explanations below 
for any deviation from the Code’s regula-
tions in 2007. This report does not form a 
part of the formal annual report and has not 
been reviewed by the company’s auditors. 

The articles of association are available on 
Group’s website www.getingegroup.com. 

SHAREHOLDERS
At the end of 2007, Getinge had slightly more 
than 35,000 shareholders according to the 
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Getinge’s Board of Directors 

Name Elec-
ted 

Assignments on Getinge’s 
Board

Current assignments Previous assignments Education/title Shareholdings

Carl Bennet
born 1951

1989 Chairman of the Board since 
1997. Chairman of the Nomination 
Committee. Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee.

Chairman of Elanders AB, the University of Gothenburg and 
Lifco AB. Deputy Chairman of Boliden AB. Board member 
of SSAB. Member of governmental research committee.  

President and CEO of 
Getinge

B.Sc. 
(Economics), 
Dr. Tech. h.c

Holds 13,502,160 
Class A shares and
22,837,124 Class 
B shares through 
company

Johan Bygge
born 1956

2007 Board member elected by AGM
Member of the Auditing Com-
mittee.
  

CFO of Investor AB. Board member of HI3G, Isaberg Rapid 
AB, the Industry and Commerce Stock Exchange Commit-
tee, the Association for Generally Accepted Principles in the 
Securities Market and the Listed Companies Association, 
Novare Holding AB. 

Executive Vice President of 
Electrolux 

B.Sc. (Econo-
mics)

1,000 Class B shares

Sten Börjesson
born 1967

2007 Deputy member on behalf of the Swedish  
white-collar trade union (Unionen). 
Employed in Arjo Hospital Equipment AB

Technical sup-
port

Holds no shares.

Jan Forslund
born 1972

2006 Deputy member on behalf of the 
Swedish Metalworkers’ Union. 
Employed in Arjo Hospital Equipment AB 

Ytbehandlare Holds no shares.

Rolf Ekedahl
born 1949

2004 Board member elected by AGM
Member of the Auditing Com-
mittee.

Chairman of ROL International AB, NJ Holding AB and 
Garpco AB. Board member of Rörvik Timber AB, Arcam 
AB, Västervik Framåt AB and BMK Holding AB.

President of Munksjö AB Economist 4,000 Class B shares

Arild Karlsson
born 1968

2004 Deputy member on behalf of the 
Swedish Metalworkers’ Union 
since 2004 and representative 
member since 2006. Employed in 
Getinge Disinfection AB 

Assembler Holds no shares.

Carola Lemne
born 1958

2003 Board member elected by AGM
Member of the Auditing Com-
mittee.

President and CEO of Praktikertjänst AB and Asso-
ciate professor at Karolinska Institutet. Board member of 
Praktikertjänst AB, the Strategic Research Foundation 
and Apoteket AB. Member of Industrifonden’s Scientific 
Advisory Board. 

CEO of Danderyd Sjukhus 
AB.

M.D, Ph.D., 
senior lecturer

Holds no shares.

Johan 
Malmquist
born 1961

1997 Board member elected by AGM. 
President and CEO.

M.Sc. 
(Economics)

40,000 Class B 
shares
125,000 call options.

Margareta 
Norell 
Bergendahl

2004 Board member elected by AGM
Member of the Remuneration 
Committee.

Professor of Integrated Product Development at the Royal 
Institute of Technology in Stockholm (KTH), Sweden. 
Chairman of Centrum för Teknik i Medicin och Hälsa. Board 
member of VINNOVA. 

Deputy Vice Chancellor 
at the Royal Institute of 
Technology, Stockholm.
Professor at the Norwe-
gian University of Science 
and Technology (NYNU), 
Trondheim 

M.Sc. 
(Engineering)
Ph.D. Engine-
ering.

2,000 Class B 
shares.

Bo Sehlin
born 1953

2006 Deputy member on behalf of the Swedish 
white-collar trade union (Unionen) since 2006 
and representative member since 2007. 
Employed in Maquet Critical Care AB. 

Quality Assu-
rance Engineer

Holds no shares.

Johan Stern
born 1951

2004 Board member elected by AGM
Member of the Auditing Com-
mittee and Remuneration 
Committee. 

Chairman of Healthinvest Partners AB. Board member 
of Carl Bennet AB, Elanders AB, Lifco AB, Sigtunaskolan 
Humanistiska Läroverket and Strand Kapitalförvaltning AB. 

Active within SEB’s 
operations in Sweden and 
the US.

B.Sc. 
(Economics)

25,000 Class B 
shares.

Getinge’s Board of Directors, from left to right: Margareta Norell Bergendahl, Carl Bennet, Sten 
Börjesson, Johan Bygge, Johan Malmquist (front row), Rolf Ekedahl, Carola Lemne, Bo Sehlin, Jan 
Forslund, Johan Stern and Arild Karlsson.
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and 50,000 each to the other members.

The role of the Chairman of the Board is to 
lead the Board’s work and ensure that the 
Board fulfils its mandate. The Board’s work 
follows an annual agenda programme, dedi-
cated to securing the Board’s information 
needs, and is otherwise determined by the 
formal work plan approved each year by the 
Board concerning the distribution of assign-
ments between the Board and the CEO, inclu-
ding important issues requiring a Board deci-
sion. Content and presentation of the informa-
tion provided to the Board by management is 
strictly regulated and the formal work plan 
ensures that the Board annually reviews its 
own routines.

The Secretary of the Board meetings has 
been Ulf Grunander, Chief Financial Officer. At 
its ordinary meetings, the Board addresses 
set items in compliance with the Board’s for-
mal work plan, including the business posi-
tion, budget, year-end accounts and interim 
reports, as well as comprehensive issues rela-
ted to company acquisitions and other invest-
ments, long-term strategies, structural and 
organisational changes.

In order to increase the efficiency and broa-
den the Board’s work in certain issues, two 
committees have been established: the 
Auditing Committee and the Remuneration 
Committee. The delegation of responsibilities 
and duties, and decision rights held by these 
committees are stipulated in the Board’s for-
mal work plan. Minutes are prepared to 
record the issues addressed and the deci-
sions made at these committee meetings, and 
reports are then made at the subsequent 
Board meeting.

Getinge fulfils the requirements for indepen-
dent Board members as stipulated in the 
OMX Nordic Exchange Stockholm AB’s 
Listing Agreement and the Code. It is the opi-
nion of the Nomination Committee that Johan 
Malmquist, in his capacity as CEO, and Carl 
Bennet as he has been a Board member of 
the Company for more than 12 years, are to 
be regarded as dependent in relation to the 
Company and executive management, and 
that Carl Bennet and Johan Stern, as the 
representatives of and Board members of 
Getinge’s principal owner Carl Bennet AB are 
not to be regarded as independent in relation 
to the largest shareholders. The Nomination 
Committee deems other Board members 
elected by the General Meeting – Johan 
Bygge, Rolf Ekedahl, Carola Lemne and 
Margareta Norell Bergendahl – to be indepen-
dent in relation to the Company, executive 
management and the largest shareholders.

The Board met on 11 occasions during 2007. 
The Board also met in January 2008 to review 
and thereafter publish the results for 2007.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Board annually appoints Getinge’s 
Remuneration Committee and in 2007, it con-
sisted of Board members Carl Bennet 
(Chairman), Margareta Norell Bergendahl and 
Johan Stern. 

All committee members were present at all 

Carl Bennet, Chairman and contact person, 
representing Carl Bennet AB.
Marianne Nilsson, representing Swedbank 
Robur AB. 
Anders Oscarsson, representing SEB Wealth 
Management.
Joachim Spetz, representing Handelsbanken.
Olle Törnblom, representing minority share-
holders.
Torgny Wännström, representing AFA 
Försäkring.

The Chairman of the Board Carl Bennet was 
appointed Chairman of the Nomination 
Committee prior to the Annual General 
Meeting 2008, which deviates from the rules 
of the Code. The company’s largest sharehol-
ders have explained that the reason for this 
appointment is that the Chairman of the 
Board is very well suited to lead the 
Nomination Committee in an effective manner 
to achieve the best results for the Company’s 
shareholders. 

As a basis for its proposal to the 2008 Annual 
General Meeting, the Nomination Committee 
has made an assessment as to whether the 
current Board of Directors is suitably compo-
sed and meets the demands that are placed 
on the Board in view of the Company’s situa-
tion and future focus. The Nomination 
Committee’s proposal will be published not 
later than in conjunction with the notice of the 
Annual General Meeting.

THE BOARD AND ITS WORK
The Board is the Company’s highest adminis-
trative body under the General Meeting. The 
Board is responsible for the organisation of 
the Company and the management of its 
affairs. It is also the Board’s duty to ensure 
that the organisation of the accounts and 
management of assets includes satisfactory
controls. 

According to the Articles of Association, 
Getinge’s Board of Directors shall comprise 
not fewer than three and not more than seven 
members. The Board members are elected 
annually at the Annual General Meeting to 
serve for the period up to and including the 
next Annual General Meeting. The Board held 
its first meeting on 19 April 2007 and conve-
ned 11 times during the year with an average 
attendance rate of 95%. With the exception of 
the CEO, no member of Getinge’s Board 
holds an operative role in the Company. A 
more detailed description of the Board of 
Directors and CEO is presented on pages 43 
and 46. 

At the 2007 Annual General Meeting, it was 
decided that fees would be paid to the Board 
in the total amount of SEK 2,450,000, of 
which SEK 700,000 to the Chairman and SEK 
350,000 each to the other Board members, 
who are elected by the Annual General 
Meeting and not employees of the Group. 
Furthermore, it was decided that fees for the 
work of the Auditing Committee were to be 
paid in the amount of SEK 375,000 of which 
SEK 150,000 to the Chairman and SEK 
75,000 each to the other members, and that 
fees for the work of the Remuneration 
Committee were to be paid in the amount of 
SEK 175,000 of which 75,000 to the Chairman 

Board. The Vice Chairman Fredrik Arp had 
declined re-election prior to the meeting.

The Annual General Meeting resolved to decla-
re a dividend of SEK 2.20 per share in accor-
dance with the proposal of the Board of 
Directors and discharged the members of the 
Board and the CEO from liability regarding the 
financial year of 2006. The Annual General 
Meeting approved remuneration to the Board 
of Directors and approved the Board’s propo-
sal of guidelines for remuneration to senior 
executives as well as the Board’s proposal 
regarding a call options programme for senior 
executives. For additional information regarding 
this call options programme, see pages 79-80. 

Minutes from the General Meeting are avai-
lable at www. getingegroup.com.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
It was resolved at the 2005 Annual General 
Meeting that a Nomination Committee shall 
be established, consisting of the Chairman of 
the Board and members representing each of 
the Company’s five largest shareholders as 
per 31 August each year and a representative 
of the minority shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board will annually during the 
fourth quarter convene the Nomination 
Committee. If any of the five largest sharehol-
ders should waive their right to appoint a 
representative to the Nomination Committee, 
or if a member leaves the Nomination 
Committee before his/her work is complete, 
that right shall be transferred to the sharehol-
der who, after these shareholders, has the 
largest shareholding in the Company. The 
Nomination Committee’s composition shall be 
announced to the Company in such time that 
it can be made public at least six months 
before the Annual General Meeting. The 
Nomination Committee’s task shall be to put 
forward proposals regarding the election of 
the chairman at the Annual General Meeting, 
the Chairman, Vice Chairman and other mem-
bers of the Board, election of auditors as well 
as fees for Board members and auditors. The 
majority of the Nomination Committee’s mem-
bers shall not be Board members, and the 
CEO or any other member of the Company’s 
executive management shall not be members 
of the Nomination Committee. The 
Nomination Committee shall choose a 
Chairman among its own members.

The composition of the Nomination 
Committee prior to the Annual General 
Meeting 2008 was made public on 16 
October 2007 and all shareholders have had 
the opportunity to submit nomination propo-
sals to the committee. The Nomination 
Committee conducts an evaluation of the 
Board and its work. Thereafter, a proposal for 
the new Board is drawn up and submitted 
with the notice of the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.

The Nomination Committee holds meetings as 
required, with at least one meeting per year. 
Prior to the 2008 Annual General Meeting, the 
Nomination Committee was convened on two 
occasions. For the 2008 Annual General 
Meeting, the Nomination Committee consists 
of the following representatives of the largest 
shareholders:
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services and the fees for such services. It is 
Getinge’s assessment that the performance of 
these services has not jeopardised Deloitte 
AB’s independence. Such services have pri-
marily concerned in-depth reviews and speci-
al examination assignments. Note 5 on page 
67 presents the full amounts of remuneration 
paid to auditors in the past three years. 

The Company’s auditors have participated in 
all of the Auditing Committee’s meetings and 
one Board meeting. In conjunction with the 
Board meeting, the auditors held a meeting 
with the Board in which no members of exe-
cutive management participated.

SHARE/SHARE-PRICE RELATED INCENTIVE 
PROGRAMME
There are no outstanding share or share-price 
related incentive programmes for Board mem-
bers, with the exception of the CEO. Share-
price related incentive programmes to certain 
senior executives in Getinge are presented on 
pages 78-80.

media, owners and financial institutions.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
Auditors are elected by the General Meeting 
every four years. The tasks of the auditors are 
to examine on behalf of the shareholders the 
annual report and accounts and the adminis-
tration of the Board of Directors and CEO. At 
the Annual General Meeting 2004, Getinge 
elected accounting firm Deloitte AB as auditor 
for Getinge. 

Authorised public accountant Jan Nilsson is 
the auditor in charge. Jan Nilsson has a B.Sc. 
(Economics), is an employee of Deloitte and 
has been the company’s auditor since 2000. 
Jan Nilsson does not hold any shares in the 
company. 

When Deloitte is engaged to provide services 
other than auditing services, such assignme-
nts take place in accordance with the regula-
tions determined by the Auditing Committee 
for approval of the nature and scope of the 

meetings during the year. A total of two meet-
ings were held in 2007, at which minutes were 
taken, with informal contact between these 
meetings as necessary.

The committee is a body within the 
Company’s Board with the task of drafting 
matters related to remuneration and other 
terms of employment for executive manage-
ment. The committee also has the task of 
preparing guidelines regarding remuneration 
for executive management, which the Board 
will present as a proposal to the Annual 
General Meeting.

AUDITING COMMITTEE
The Board annually appoints Getinge’s 
Auditing Committee and in 2007, it consisted 
of Board members Rolf Ekedahl (Chairman), 
Johan Bygge, Carola Lemne and Johan Stern. 
All members were present at all meetings 
during the year. 

The committee is a body within the 
Company’s Board, with the task of drafting 
matters for the Board related to the quality 
assurance of the Company’s financial 
reporting on behalf of the Board and to main-
tain ongoing contact with the auditors to keep 
informed of the focus and scope of the audit. 
The committee assists the Board in these 
matters and reports its observations, recom-
mendations and proposed measures and 
decisions to the Board. In addition, the 
Auditing Committee establishes guidelines for 
other services than auditing for which the 
Company may engage its auditors. The 
committee’s tasks are also to assess the 
auditing activities and pass on this information 
to the Nomination Committee and to assist 
the Nomination Committee in producing pro-
posals for auditors and fees for auditing servi-
ces.

The committee held four meetings in 2007, at 
which minutes were taken, with informal con-
tact between these meetings as necessary. 
The Auditing Committee also held a meeting 
in January 2008, at which the audit of 2007 
was addressed. The Company’s auditors par-
ticipated in all of the Auditing Committee’s 
meetings. The committee discussed and 
established the scope of the audit together 
with the auditors.

During the year a quotation process for the 
election of auditing firm was completed and 
the Auditing Committee has decided to 
recommend PricewaterhouseCoopers as new 
elected auditors for the Group.

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Board of Directors monitors the quality of 
the financial reporting by issuing instructions 
to the CEO and the Auditing Committee and 
by establishing requirements concerning the 
content in the reports on financial conditions, 
which are regularly submitted to the Board 
through the instructions issued for financial 
reporting. The Board considers and quality 
assures financial reporting, such as the year-
end report and annual report, and has dele-
gated to the executive management the task 
of ensuring the quality of press releases con-
taining financial information and presentation 
material in conjunction with meetings with the 

Attendance of Board Members at Board Meetings, 2007
Name Board meetings

Carl Bennet 11 of 11

Johan Bygge (elected at Annual General Meeting April, 2007) 7 of 8

Rolf Ekedahl 11 of 11

Carola Lemne 10 of 11

Johan Malmquist 11 of 11

Margareta Norell Bergendahl 10 of 11

Johan Stern 10 of 11

Total 95 % attendance 

The Board’s Fees and Remuneration
Name Board fee Remuneration for  

committee work 
Total

Carl Bennet 700 000 75 000 775 000

Johan Bygge 350 000 75 000 425 000

Rolf Ekedahl 350 000 150 000 500 000

Carola Lemne 350 000 75 000 425 000

Johan Malmquist – – –

Margareta Norell Bergendahl 350 000 50 000 400 000

Johan Stern 350 000 125 000 475 000

Total 2 450 000 550 000 3 000 000

Independence of the Board Members 
Name Independent in relation to the 

Company
Independent in relation to the 
Company’s largest shareholders

Carl Bennet No – Board member in the Company for 
more than 12 years

No – representative of Getinge’s main 
shareholder Carl Bennet AB

Johan Bygge Yes Yes

Rolf Ekedahl Yes Yes

Carola Lemne Yes Yes 

Johan Malmquist No – President and CEO Yes

Margareta Norell Bergendahl Yes Yes

Johan Stern Yes No – Board member of Getinge’s main 
shareholder Carl Bennet AB

Total 5 out of 7 Board Members are
deemed independent in relation to the 
Company

5 out of 7 Board Members are deemed 
independent in relation to the largest 
shareholders

Board meetings 2007
Meeting Key Points

1 Annual Financial Statements 2006

2 Investments/Product development projects/Annual General Meeting Matters

3 Quarterly Financial Statements Q1, 2007/Integration of Huntleigh

4 Quarterly Financial Statements Q2, 2007

5 Acquisition

6 Acquisition

7 Strategic focus

8 Acquisition

9 Quarterly Financial Statements Q3, 2007

10 Acquisition

11 Budget
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company and business-area level, whereas 
overall decisions on strategy and focus are 
made by Getinge’s Board of Directors and 
Group management.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that an 
effective system for internal control and risk 
management is in place. The CEO has been 
delegated the responsibility of creating the 
necessary prerequisites to work with these 
issues. Both Group management and mana-
gers at various levels in the company have 
this responsibility in their respective areas. 
Authorities and responsibilities are defined in 
policies, guidelines and descriptions of duties.

The CEO and other members of Group mana-
gement continuously hold meetings to review 
monthly results, update forecasts and plans 
and discuss strategic matters. Getinge’s 
Group management comprises eight individu-
als, who are presented below. 

Group management deals with Group-wide 
issues in addition to operative matters related 
to each business area. The Group manage-
ment consists of the CEO and the business 
area managers as well as the Chief Financial 
Officer and Vice President of Human 
Resources.

Getinge’s organisation is designed such that it 
is able to react quickly to changes in the mar-
ket. Operative decisions are therefore made at 

CEO AND GROUP MANAGEMENT
The CEO is responsible for ensuring that the 
ongoing management of the Company is 
handled in accordance with the guidelines 
and instructions provided by the Board. The 
CEO shall obtain assurance that, on the basis 
of a satisfactory control system, the Company 
complies with legislation and ordinances, the 
OMX Nordic Exchange Stockholm AB’s rules 
and regulations and the Code. The CEO is 
also to ensure that the Board receives as fac-
tual, detailed and relevant information as 
required by the Board in order to make well-
founded decisions. In addition, the CEO is to 
maintain a continuous dialogue with the 
Chairman of the Board and keep him infor-
med of the progress and financial position of 
the Company and the Group. 

Getinge’s Group Management

Name Position Education/title Citizenship Employment Shareholdings

Johan Malmquist
born 1961

President and CEO M.Sc. (Economics) Swedish citizen Employed since 1990 40 000 Class B 
125 000 call options

Heribert Ballhaus
born 1952

Executive Vice President
Medical Systems

Master of Engineering, PhD German citizen Employed since 2001 15 692 Class B
40 000 call options

Michael Berg
born 1964

Executive Vice President
Extended Care

M.Sc. (Economics) Swedish citizen Employed since 2005 125 000 call options

Ulf Grunander
born 1954

Chief Financial Officer M.Sc. (Economics) Swedish citizen Employed since 1993 28 000 Class B 
75 000 call options

Magnus Lundbäck
born 1969

Vice President Human 
Resources

PhD (Economics) Swedish citizen Employed since 2008 –

Mats Ottosson
born 1962

Chief Operating Officer
Infection Control

M.Sc. (Engineering) Swedish citizen Employed since 2001 2 000 Class B 
45 000 call options

Michael Rieder
born 1952

Executive Vice President 
Sales and Marketing Medi-
cal Systems

Economist German citizen Employed since 2001 25 000 call options

Christer Ström
born 1955

Executive Vice President
Infection Control

M.Sc. (Economics) Swedish citizen Employed since 2007 3 000 Class B

Johan Malmquist
President and CEO 

Magnus Lundbäck
Vice President Human Resources

Heribert Ballhaus
Executive Vice President Medical Systems

Mats Ottosson
Chief Operating Officer Infection Control

Michael Berg
Executive Vice President Extended Care

Michael Rieder
Executive Vice President Sales and Marketing 
Medical Systems

Ulf Grunander
Chief financial officer 

Christer Ström
Executive Vice President Infection Control
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financial targets. The overall financial targets 
have been defined and are mostly industry-
specific. By conducting quantitative and quali-
tative risk analyses based on the consolidated 
balance sheet and income statement, Getinge 
can identify what key risks can threaten the 
achievement of business and financial targets. 
In addition, several units within each business 
area are analysed to gain a more detailed 
understanding of the actual application of the 
existing rules and regulations. Accordingly, 
measures to minimise identified risks are for-
mulated centrally within the Group. 

During 2007, the annual risk analysis was exe-
cuted by the financial officers from the three 
business areas. The purpose was to identify 
areas that could be improved and possible 
new risk areas in the Company’s own organi-
sational structure, in internal processes or in 
accounting regulations. The previous risk ana-
lyses conducted in 2005 and 2006 were 
essentially deemed to be of interest.

CONTROL ACTIVITIES
The identified risks related to financial 
reporting are handled by the Company’s con-
trol activities. For example, there are automa-
ted controls in IT-based systems handling aut-
hority levels and rights to authorisation, as 
well as manual controls, such as duality in the 
current recording of transactions and closing 
entries. Detailed financial analyses of results 
and follow-ups against budget and forecasts 
supplement the operation-specific controls 
and provide overall confirmation of the quality 
of the reporting.

With a focus on materiality and risk, in 2006, 
Getinge divided the Group’s reporting units 
into groups, in which materiality and risk had 
a direct impact on the requirement placed on 
the degree of maturity of control documenta-
tion. In accordance with this focus, the com-
panies subsequently documented the busi-
ness-critical processes in a Group-wide man-
ner. An important element of the work has 

ted in the form of the Code of Conduct (inclu-
ding the Social Responsibility Programme), 
HR policies, Financial Policy, Accounting 
Manual and work descriptions.

Each year, the Board adopts a formal work 
plan that regulates the duties of the Chairman 
and the CEO. The Board has established an 
Auditing Committee to increase knowledge of 
the level of transparency and control of the 
Company’s accounts, financial reporting and 
risk management, and has established a 
Remuneration Committee to manage remune-
ration to company management. 

Each business area has one or more adminis-
trative centres that are responsible for the 
day-to-day handling of transactions and 
accounting. Each business area has a financi-
al manager, who is responsible for the financi-
al control of the business unit and for ensur-
ing that the financial reports are accurate, 
complete and are submitted in good time 
prior to consolidated reporting.

To provide the Board of Directors with infor-
mation upon which they can base the level of 
internal governance and control, Getinge con-
tinued its thorough review and analysis of 
existing governance processes and internal 
control during 2007. The review was based on 
analyses of how the significant areas of the 
COSO framework are reflected in Getinge’s 
organisation. 

In practical terms, this meant that the Group 
assessed and verified the steering documents 
and guidelines forming the basis of Getinge’s 
business control, that is, the Group-wide con-
trols. This review was based on the principles 
of the components of the COSO framework 
(Control Environment, Risk Assessment, 
Control Activities, Information & 
Communication, Follow-up/Monitoring).

RISK ASSESSMENT
Risk assessment is based on the Group’s 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
internal control in accordance with the 
Swedish Companies Act and the Code. This 
report has been prepared in accordance 
with Section 3.7.2 and 3.7.3 of the Code, as 
well as the Swedish Corporate Governance 
Board’s recommendation no. 1-2006, and is 
therefore limited to internal control of the 
financial reporting. This report does not 
form a part of the formal annual report and 
has not been reviewed by the company’s 
auditors.

DESCRIPTION
Within Getinge, internal control over financial 
reporting is an integral part of corporate 
governance. It comprises processes and met-
hods to safeguard the Group’s assets and 
accuracy in the financial reporting, and in this 
manner, protects the owners’ investment in 
the Company. To organise the work, Getinge 
proceeds from the COSO framework (“Internal 
Control – Integrated Framework” launched in 
1992 by The Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(COSO)), which constitutes a structured basis 
for its evaluation and follow-up of the internal 
control of financial reporting.

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT
Getinge’s organisation is designed to quickly 
respond to changes in the market. 
Operational decisions are therefore made at 
company or business area level, while deci-
sions on strategy, focus, acquisitions and 
general financial issues are made by Getinge’s 
Board and Group management. The internal 
control of financial reporting within Getinge is 
designed to handle these conditions. 

The basis of the internal control of the financi-
al reporting comprises the control environme-
nt with the organisation, decision chains, aut-
horities and responsibilities documented and 
communicated in steering documents. Some 
of the most significant components of the 
control environment in Getinge are documen-

INTERNAL CONTROL 
REPORT 

SCOPE Risk assessments Financial
reporting

Production
and inventory

Purchasing Revenue:
Products

Revenue:
Services

ACTIVITIES The business areas’ 
controllers analyse each 
item in the business 
area’s income statement 
and balance sheet.

Self-assessment: about 40 of the Group companies conduct an annual web-based self-assessment of their operations. The assess-
ment is primarily aimed at ensuring that all central processes and routines are documented in a reliable manner and that procedures are 
followed.

Validation of self-assessment: each year, self-assessment is validated at about 10 of the 40 companies. 

REPORTING The risk analyses, the completed self-assessments and validation of self-assessments are reported to the Auditing Committee

The Auditing Committee reports on the Group’s internal control to the Board of Getinge AB.

Publication of the Company’s internal control report in the Annual Report and on the Group website.



48	 |	 Corporate Governance

OUTCOME 2007
The comprehensive follow-up and thorough 
assessment has shown that the documenta-
tion and control activities of the companies on 
which validity checks were performed are 
sound and correct. No significant deviations 
have been identified.

Based on the above-mentioned work with 
internal control that was concluded during the 
year, the Board has decided that there is no 
need to introduce a separate audit function 
(an internal audit function).

FOLLOW-ON WORK
In 2008, the continuing work with internal 
control within Getinge will principally be 
focused on the COSO areas of Risk 
Assessment, Control Activities and Follow-up/
Monitoring. An update of the risk analysis as 
regards relevant control processes and risk 
areas is conducted as a recurring annual acti-
vity and it is likely that the major acquisitions 
made by the Group in 2007 will significantly 
impact the internal control work in 2008. The 
Group’s IT system and processes will be 
included in the self-assessments and valida-
tions in 2008. 

Within the Control activities COSO area, 
resources will be used to document future 
processes resulting from the annual risk ana-
lysis. Depending on the outcome of the imple-
mented self-assessment, it may be necessary 
to correct reported deficiencies.

cial reporting at its meetings and the 
Company’s auditors report on their observa-
tions and recommendations. The Board recei-
ves financial reports on a monthly basis and 
the Company’s financial situation is discussed 
at every Board meeting. 

The efficiency of the internal control activities 
is regularly followed up at different levels in 
the Group and comprises assessment of the 
design and operative function of key control 
elements that have been identified and docu-
mented.

SELF-ASSESSMENT AND VALIDITY 
CHECKS
Since 2006, Getinge works with a formalised 
process for follow- up and evaluation of the 
effectiveness of documentation and control 
activities. The control consists of both a 
Group-wide IT-based tool for self-assessment 
and validity checks of the self-assessments. 
The validity checks are carried out by control-
lers from one of the other business areas. 
Validity checks are never executed by control-
lers from the same business area as the com-
pany under review.

During 2007, self-assessment was conducted 
at 38 of the most important operating units 
within the Group. Thorough validity checks 
were performed at approximately 20% of 
these companies. The self-assessment and 
the validity check function encompass the 
processes relating to financial reporting, pro-
duction, inventories, purchasing and revenues 
from products and services. 

Huntleigh, which was acquired in January 
2007, will be included in the self-assessment 
system in the future. The Huntleigh compa-
nies worked within a similar framework in the 
past.

The system of self-assessment and validation 
provides the Board with a good view of how 
the Group handles different flows of informa-
tion, how the Group reacts to new information 
and how the various control systems function.

been to identify and describe the business-
related control activities deemed critical to 
limit significant errors in the financial 
reporting.

The Group follows standardised templates 
and models to identify and document proces-
ses and controls. These were developed 
through a number of pilot projects within each 
business area during the spring of 2006. The 
experiences from these projects were jointly 
analysed by all business areas and were sub-
sequently converted into simplifications and 
improvements for the users. In conjunction 
with the initiation of each local documentation 
project, special training activities were also 
implemented for project participants in prepa-
ration of the work. 

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION
The Group has information and communica-
tion procedures to promote completeness 
and accuracy in the financial reporting. 
Policies, manuals and work descriptions are 
available on the Company’s intranet and/or in 
printed form. Information channels to monitor 
how efficiently the internal controls in the 
Group function were established and data 
from these will be regularly presented to the 
relevant parties within the organisation via 
implemented reporting tools. 

During 2006 and 2007, Getinge’s manage-
ment worked actively to structure the informa-
tion requirement and distribution channels to 
facilitate the internal control work and to 
ensure efficient communication throughout 
the organisation. Examples of this work inclu-
de an improved intranet, the development and 
communication of practical guidelines for 
internal control work and the introduction of a 
Group-wide reporting system for internal con-
trol.

FOLLOW-UP AND MONITORING
The finance department and the management 
perform monthly analyses of the financial 
reporting at a detailed level. 

The Auditing Committee follows up the finan-

Activities 2005 Activities  2006 Activities 2007 Planned activities 2008

Overall risk analysis Annual risk analysis Annual risk analysis Annual risk analysis

Documentation of business-critical operatio-
nal processes

Self-assessment at 38 companies pertaining 
to processes relating to financial reporting, 
production and inventory, purchasing, and 
revenue from products and services

Continued self-assessment pertaining to 
processes relating to financial reporting, pro-
duction and inventory, purchasing, revenue 
from products and services, and IT

Development of uniform templates for self-
assessment

First validation of self-assessment at eight of 
the 38 companies

Continued validation of self-assessment at a 
number of companies

Selection of companies to be included in 
self-assessment in 2007

Decision to also include processes relating 
to the Group’s IT systems in future self-
assessments

Training of appropriate personnel

First self-assessment at 38 companies
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tively weak position of the Extended Care 
business area within wound care and to 
strengthen the business area’s presence in 
the hospitals segment. The acquisition also 
offered significant synergy opportunities 
within administration, production, purchas-
ing and logistics. 

On 31 October 2007, the Medical Systems 
business area acquired the Danish com-
pany  N.C. Nielsen Equipment A/S. The 
company has been the business area’s 
distributor of surgical work stations since 
2003. The acquisition is part of the busi-
ness area’s expansion of its market organi-
sation. 

On 5 November 2007, Getinge entered a 
binding agreement covering the acquisi-
tion of the Cardiac Surgery and Vascular 
Surgery divisions of the US Boston 
Scientific Corporation. The acquisition 
creates a strong base that enables the 
business area to build a strong and glo-
bally leading operation within the cardiac 
surgery area. The acquisition was finalised 
on 7 January 2008 following approval by 
the relevant competition authorities. The 
acquisition price for the two divisions 
amounted to SEK 4,850 m on a debt-free 
basis (“Enterprise value”). Excluding costs 
for integration, which are not anticipated 
to exceed SEK 100 m for 2008 and 2009, 
the acquisition is expected to contribute 
with a positive effect on earnings per share 
already in 2008. The structure of the trans-
action is estimated to enable a favourable 
tax position relating to future profits, since 
the goodwill arising from the acquisition 
will be fully tax deductible. The present 
value of the positive tax effects amounts to 
approximately SEK 760 m, which will entail 
a positive effect on cash flow.

Integration of Huntleigh
The integration of the British company 
Huntleigh into the Extended Care business 
area commenced at the beginning of 2007 
and has progressed further than expected. 
During the year, activities aimed at ensur-
ing the realisation of cost and revenue syn-
ergies in the next few years commenced, 
and in certain cases, were concluded. 
These activities included the relocation 
of a significant portion of Huntleigh’s 
production from the UK and the US to 
the business area’s new production plant 
in Poznan, Poland, which will improve 
the competitiveness of  these products. 
Extended Care also combined the busi-
ness area’s existing sales companies with 
Huntleigh’s sales companies in 14 markets 
and grouped sales to emerging markets 
under one joint international division.

Competitive production structures
In 2007, Getinge continued the long-term 
work focused on strengthening the Group’s 
competitiveness. Among the principle 
measures taken is Extended Care’s com-
prehensive production relocation to a new 
plant in Poland, Medical System’s new facil-
ity for disposables in Turkey and Infection 
Control’s expansion of production in China. 

Continued expansion of the market 
organisation 
In 2007, Getinge continued the internation-
alisation of its market organisation. The 
number of sales companies amounted to 
89 (77) and the number of sales represent-
atives increased to 1,360 (1,182) in 2007. 

Product launches 
Getinge launched a significant number 
of new and updated products in 2007. 
Among the most significant of these 

MARKET OVERVIEW AND 
SALES DEVELOPMENT
Demand for the Getinge Group’s products 
remained strong in 2007 with organic sales 
growth totalling 7.9%. 

Within Extended Care, sales grew by 88% 
to SEK 6,009 m (3,183). The sharp increase 
is mainly attributable to the acquisition 
of the British company Huntleigh. On an 
organic basis, the sales growth amounted 
to 3.4%. 

Sales for Medical Systems developed 
strongly and increased from SEK 5,542 m in 
2006 to SEK 6,079 m in 2007. The increase 
corresponds to a very healthy organic 
growth of 12.2%. 

The Infection Control business area also 
reported a favourable organic sales trend 
of 5.6%. Sales totalled SEK 4,358 m 
(4,262). 

Europe remains the Group’s largest mar-
ket with 59% of sales, followed by North 
America with 26%, Asia/Australia repre-
sents 12% of sales, while the remaining 3% 
is derived from other countries.        

The hospitals segment is Getinge’s domi-
nant market with 73% of sales. Elderly 
Care represents 18%, while the Life 
Science industry represents 9%. 

IMPORTANT EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES  
Acquisitions
On 3 January 2007, the Getinge Group 
concluded the acquisition of the British 
Group Huntleigh. The acquisition price 
totalled SEK 5,631 M. The acquisition 
was conducted to strengthen the rela-
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(5,575) and the cash flow after investments 
in tangible fixed assets was SEK 895 m 
(1,346). Shareholders’ equity at year-end 
was SEK 6,623 m (6,005), giving an equity/
assets ratio of 28.8% (37.8%). 

Operating cash flow
The operating cash flow before restructur-
ing and integration costs increased by 
19.4% to SEK 2,553 m (2,139). 

Shareholders’ equity
For information regarding trading of shares 
in the company, the number of shares, the 
classes of shares and the rights associated 
with these in the company, see the section 
The Getinge Share on pages 8-9. 

Shareholders’ agreements
To the best knowledge of Getinge’s Board 
of Directors, no shareholders’ agreements 
or equivalent agreements exist between 
shareholders in Getinge with the objective 
of creating a joint influence over the com-
pany. Furthermore, to the best knowledge 
of Getinge’s Board of Directors, there are 
no agreements or equivalent arrangements 
that may lead to a change in the control of 
the company.  

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT 
Product development is one of the cor-
nerstones of the Group’s organic growth. 
Getinge does not intend to perform all 
development in-house, and ideally works 
with competent external partners. In this 
manner, the Group gains access to new 
and commercially viable technology. 

Global trends are continuously monitored 
and a large number of potential projects 
are evaluated each year. The acquisition of 

Operating profit
The Group’s operating profit increased by 
17.9% to SEK 2,282 m (1,936), which cor-
responds to 13.9% (14.9) of net sales. 

Net financial items
Net financial items amounted to a loss of 
SEK 507 m (loss: 208), of which net inter-
est items comprised a loss of SEK 488 m 
(loss: 195). 

Profit before tax
The Group’s profit before tax increased by 
2.7% to SEK 1,775 m (1,728), correspond-
ing to 10.8% (13.3) of net sales.

Taxes
The Group’s total taxes amounted to SEK 
514 m (469), corresponding to 29.0% 
(27.1%) of profits before tax (see Note 9). 
Paid tax amounted to SEK 528 m (387), 
representing 29.7% (22.4) of profits before 
tax.

Tied-up capital
Inventories amounted to SEK 2,913 m 
(2,083) and accounts receivable amounted 
to SEK 4,756 m (3,723). The average work-
ing capital within the Group was SEK 
10,778 m (10,217). The return on working 
capital was 19.7% (19.2). Goodwill totalled 
SEK 8,128 m (4,707) at the end of the 
financial year.

Investments
Gross investments in machinery, equip-
ment and buildings, but excluding equip-
ment for rental, amounted to SEK 467 m 
(315). Investments refer primarily to pro-
duction facilities, production tools and IT.

Financial position and equity/assets ratio
The Group’s net debt was SEK 10,366 m 

is Medical Systems’ new anaesthesia 
equipment FLOW-i and Extended Care’s 
WoundASSIST TNP. FLOW-i, which was 
displayed for the first time in November at 
the German healthcare exhibition Medica, 
is expected to be ready for commercial 
delivery in the second half of 2008. The 
new NAVA ventilator technology, intro-
duced in 2006, is deemed to have good 
potential to reduce time in care and 
enhance care quality. In 2007, several clini-
cal studies were conducted in Europe. 

Two new members of 
Getinge’s Group management
In 2007, two new persons were recruited 
to Getinge’s Group management. Christer 
Ström, with solid international experi-
ence from such positions as CEO of 
the Berendsen Group, was recruited as 
Executive Vice President of the Infection 
Control business area in the second quar-
ter. The aim of this recruitment is to further 
increase the rate of growth and profitability 
by enhancing coordination within the busi-
ness area. In the fourth quarter of the year, 
Magnus Lundbäck was recruited as new 
Vice President of Human Resources with 
the primary task of focusing on the Getinge 
Group’s succession management. Most 
recently, he worked at Volvo Cars, where 
he was employed as Vice President HR for 
the research and development operation. 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
Revenue
Consolidated revenue increased by 26.5% 
to SEK 16,445 m (13,001). Adjusted for 
acquisitions and exchange-rate fluctua-
tions, net sales rose by 7.9%. 

2005 2006 2007 Change, % 

Net sales, SEK m 11 880 13 001 16 445 26,5

Operating profi t, SEK m 1 803 1 936 2 282 17,9

Net fi nancial items, SEK m -201 -208 -507 143,8

Profi t before tax, SEK m 1 602 1 728 1 775 2,7

Tax, SEK m -452 -469 -514 9,6

Profi t for the year, SEK m 1 150 1 259 1 261 0,2

Earnings per share, SEK 5,64 6,21 6,24 0,5

Gross investments, SEK m 236 315 467 48,3

Net debt, SEK m 5 104 5 575 10 366 85,9

Operating cash fl ow*, SEK m 1 842 2 139 2 553 22,1

Shareholders’ equity, SEK m 5 381 6 005 6 623 10,3

Equity/assets ratio, % 37,0 37,8 28,8 -9,0

The acquisition of the Cardiac and Vascular 
Surgery divisions from the US-based Boston 
Scientifi c Cooperation was fi nalised on 7 January 
2008. 

* Before restructuring and integration costs
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kets by reducing grants or deferring them. 
Since Getinge is active in a large number 
of countries, the risk for the Group as a 
whole is limited. 

Customers
Customer activities are generally financed 
directly or indirectly by public funds and 
ability to pay is usually very good, although 
payment behaviour can vary between dif-
ferent countries. All transactions outside 
the OECD area are covered by letters of 
credit or other trade finance instruments, 
unless the customer’s ability to pay is well 
documented.

Authorities and control bodies
Parts of Getinge’s product range are 
covered by legislation stipulating rigor-
ous assessments, quality assurance and 
documentation. It cannot be ruled out that 
Getinge’s operations, earnings and finan-
cial position may be negatively impacted 
in the future by difficulties in complying 
with current regulations and demands of 
authorities and control bodies or changes 
of such regulations and demands. To 
limit these risks to the greatest possible 
extent, Getinge conducts extensive work 
focused on quality and regulatory issues. 
Each business area has an appointed 
person with overall responsibility for QRM. 
These three individuals also comprise the 
Group’s “Quality and Regulatory Council,” 
which reports to Group management on 
a regular basis, on, among other issues, 
the Company’s compliance with the US 
FDA’s legal framework. The majority of the 
Group’s production facilities are certified 
according to the medical device quality 
standard ISO 13485 and/or the general 
quality standard ISO 9001.
 
Research and development
To a certain extent, Getinge’s future 
growth depends on the Company’s ability 
to develop new and successful products. 
Research and development efforts are 
costly and it is impossible to guarantee 
that developed products will be com-
mercially successful. As a means of 
maximising the return on research and 
development efforts, the Group has a very 
structured selection and planning proc-
ess to ensure that the Company prioritises 
correctly when choosing which potential 
projects to pursue. This process comprises 
thorough analysis of the market, techni-
cal development and choice of production 
method and subcontractors. The develop-
ment work is also conducted in a struc-

suitable companies is also a complement 
to internal product development. In 2007, 
research and development costs amounted 
to SEK 648 m (480). Of this amount, SEK 
313 m (198) was capitalised as intangible 
assets, as it was deemed that it will gener-
ate financial benefits in the future.

PERSONNEL
There were 10,358 (7,531) employees on 
31 December 2007, of whom 1,391 (1,306) 
were employed in Sweden. 

In 2007, the Extended Care business area 
conducted a comprehensive streamlining 
of the production structure. This process 
has resulted in the loss of about 750 jobs 
in the business area’s production plants in 
the UK and US. The closures were imple-
mented following constructive negotiations 
with employee union representatives and 
the business area has taken a number of 
measures to mitigate the social effects 
of the closures. These included organis-
ing job shops to match employees’ skills 
with demands of local employers. In addi-
tion, the business area arranged training 
courses and assisted individuals with 
applications. Some of the employees also 
received help to start their own company.

In 2007, Getinge continued the long-term 
leadership-training programme. During the 
year, 19 persons commenced the second 
of these courses. 

For information regarding remuneration 
to senior executives adopted at the 2007 
Annual General Meeting, see the Corporate 
Governance Report on page 46. Regarding 
paid remuneration to senior executives for 
2007, see Note 27. 

The Board’s proposal for guidelines for 
remuneration to senior executives to the 
2008 Annual General Meeting corresponds 
in all parts to the guidelines adopted by 
the 2007 Annual General Meeting with 
the exception of the variable remunera-
tion to the President, which is proposed to 
amount to not more than 80% of basic sal-
ary instead of the earlier ceiling of 50%.   

RISK MANAGEMENT
Reimbursement system
Political decisions represent the single 
greatest market risk for Getinge. Changes 
to the healthcare reimbursement system 
can have a major impact on individual mar-
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The FLOW-i anaesthesia system was intro-
duced in the market in November 2007. 

The WoundASSIST® TNP opens an entirely 
new market segment within wound care for 
Extended Care. 

The new NAVA technology was launched 
worldwide in 2007. 
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permit requirements. The company’s envi-
ronmental impact is detailed in the reports 
submitted to the regulatory authorities 
each year.

EXPECTED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
The demand situation for the Group’s 
products is still considered to be very good 
in most geographic regions in which the 
Group operates. The Group’s order book 
contains a high level of orders. 

Medical Systems continues to expect to 
grow faster than the market for the current 
year. Growth is underpinned by a strong 
and innovative product portfolio and by a 
strengthened market organisation. A con-
tinued focus on production in China and 
Turkey is strengthening long-term competi-
tiveness. Infection Control also anticipates 
continued strong growth in invoicing. 
The launch of several new products and 
extended market presence, primarily in the 
Far East, will contribute to volume growth. 

In Extended Care, volume growth is 
expected to improve compared with the 
level in 2007. At the same time, restruc-
turing costs are declining and the syner-
gies from the Huntleigh integration are 
becoming more visible in the business 
area’s earnings. The main emphasis of 
the Huntleigh integration will remain on 
the cost structure for the beginning of 
2008, but will be increasingly focused on 
revenue synergies in the latter half of the 
year.  The acquisition of Boston Scientific’s 
Cardiac and Vascular surgery divisions 
will be consolidated in the Group from 1 
January 2008 and, excluding integration 
costs, are expected to contribute to both 
consolidated profit before tax and to the 
continued expansion of the consolidated 
EBITA margin. 

On the whole, the Group expects organic 
invoicing growth in line with 2007 lev-
els. The EBITA margin will continue to 
be strengthened, even excluding the 
acquisition of the cardiac and vascular 
surgery divisions from Boston Scientific. 
Exchange-rate changes will negatively 
impact earnings for the current year. The 
tax rate for the current year will improve by 
1 percentage point and amount to 28%.

Currency  Budgeted net  Impact in 
  volume 2008, SEK m for 5%
  millions   fluctuation
CAD 6.59 20 +/-  7 
EUR 9.47 88 +/-  42 
GBP 12.91 34 +/-  22 
USD 6.47 66 +/-  21

Sensitivity analysis
Getinge’s earnings are affected by a series 
of external factors. The table below shows 
how changes to some of the key factors 
that are important to Getinge would have 
affected the Group’s profits before tax in 
2007. No consideration was given to the 
effect of the various risk-management 
measures that Getinge applies in accord-
ance with its established policy.

Change in profits before tax   SEK m
Price change +/- 1 %  +/-  165
Cost of goods sold  +/- 1 %  -/+  89
Salary costs   +/- 1 %  -/+  52
Interest rates +/- 1 %-point  -/+  95

The effect of a +/- 1 percentage-point 
change in interest rates on the Group’s 
profits before tax was calculated based on 
the Group’s liabilities to credit institutions 
at year-end 2007.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
The company’s environmental policy and 
the international environmental standard 
ISO 14001 form the basis of Getinge’s 
environmental work. The long-term ambi-
tion of the Group is to certify all of the 
Group’s production facilities in accordance 
with this environmental standard. In all 
ongoing development projects, the product 
undergoes an examination in order to max-
imize its recycling possibilities. Recycling 
stations for production waste are installed 
in all production companies and the emis-
sions from the Group’s surface treatment 
plants are below permitted levels. There 
are four Swedish companies in the Getinge 
Group that conduct operations requiring a 
permit under the Swedish Environmental 
Code. The permits pertain to the products 
for which each company is responsible. 
In addition to a general permit for the 
engineering industry, permits have also 
been acquired for spray-painting facilities, 
transporting waste and storing LPG. The 
external environmental impact consists of 
emissions to air and water, as well as noise 
from the plants. The external environmental 
impact of all of the Swedish production 
facilities lies below the relevant official and 

tured manner and each project undergoes 
a number of fixed control points.

Product liability and damage claims
Healthcare suppliers run a risk, like other 
players in the healthcare industry, of being 
subject to claims relating to product liabil-
ity and other legal claims. Such claims 
can involve large amounts and significant 
legal expenses. Getinge cannot provide 
any guarantees that its operations will 
not be subject to compensation claims. 
A comprehensive insurance program is in 
place to cover any property or liability risks 
(i.e. product liability) to which the Group is 
exposed. Over the years, Getinge has been 
the subject of only very limited claims relat-
ing to property infringement and liability 
damages.

Protection of intellectual property
Getinge is a market leader in the areas in 
which it operates and invests significant 
amounts in product development compared 
to the majority of its competitors. To secure 
returns on these investments, the Group 
actively upholds its rights and follows com-
petitors’ activities closely. If required, the 
Group will protect its intellectual property 
rights through legal processes. 

Financial risk management
In its business, Getinge is exposed to a 
range of financial risks. Financial risks 
principally pertain to risks related to cur-
rency and interest risks, as well as credit 
risks. Risk management is regulated by the 
finance policy established by the Board. 
The overriding responsibility to manage 
the Group’s financial risks and develop 
methods and policies to manage financial 
risks lies with Group management and 
the finance function. The most significant 
financial risks the Group is exposed to are 
currency risks, interest risks, credit risks 
and counter-party risks. For further infor-
mation concerning these risks, see Note 
26 Financial risk management and financial 
derivative instruments.

Impact of exchange-rate fluctuations on 
profits
The exchange-rate effect is calculated 
using forecast volumes and earnings in 
foreign currency, taking into consideration 
currency hedging that has been conduct-
ed. In addition, there is the exchange-rate 
impact on net financial items related to 
interest expenses in foreign currencies. 
The calculation is based on the exchange 
rates stated in the table below:
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PROPOSED ALLOCATION OF PROFITS

FoR GE TINGE AB (PUBL) 556408-5032

The Group’s potential profits available for distribution amount to SEK 4,164 m.

The following profits in the Parent Company are at the disposal of the Annual General Meeting:
Unappropriated profits brought forward 				    633
Net profit for the year 				    570
Total 				    1 203

The Board and Chief Executive Officer propose that a dividend of SEK 2.40 per share shall be distributed to shareholders 	 484
To be carried forward 				    719
Total 				    1 203

For information regarding the results and financial position of the Group and the Parent Company, refer to the following accounts. The 
income statements and balance sheets will be presented for approval to the Annual General Meeting on 17 April 2008.

The Board of Directors and President affirm that the annual report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles for stock market companies, the submitted information is concurrent with the actual circumstances and no item of significant 
importance, which may affect the view of the company created by this annual report, has been excluded. The consolidated accounts have 
been prepared in accordance with the international accounting standards that are referred to in regulation no 1906/2002 of the European 
Parliament and of the Council adopted on 10 July 2002 concerning the application of international accounting standards and provide a 
true and fair view of the Group’s profit and financial position. The statutory administration report for the Group provides a true and fair 
overview of the development of the Group’s operations, profit and financial position and describes significant risks and uncertainty factors 
faced by the companies included in the Group.

Getinge, 7 March 2008

Carl Bennet	 Johan Bygge	 Rolf Ekedahl

Chairman	 Board member elected by AGM	 Board member elected by AGM

Arild Karlsson	 Carola Lemne	 Bo Sehlin

Representative of the 	 Board member elected by AGM	 Representative of the 

Swedish Metalworkers’ Union		  Swedish white-collar trade
		  union, Unionen

Margareta Norell Bergendahl	 Johan Stern	 Johan Malmquist

Board member elected by AGM	 Board member elected by AGM	 Board member elected by AGM
		  CEO	

Our auditor’s report was submitted on 7 March 2008.			 

Deloitte AB

Jan Nilsson

Public Authorised Accountant
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

AMOUNTS IN SEK m

		  2007	 2006	 2005

Net sales 	 Note 2, 3	 16 445	 13 001	 11 880
Cost of goods sold* 		  -8 899	 -7 108	 -6 555
Gross profit		  7 546	 5 893	 5 325

Selling expenses*		  -3 072	 -2 467	 -2 205
Administrative expenses*		  -1 604	 -1 191	 -1 056
Research and development costs		  -335	 -282	 -257
Restructuring and integration costs 	 Note 20	 -257	 -45	 –
Other operating income 		  47	 78	 14
Other operating expenses 		  -43	 -50	 -18
Operating profit 	 Note 3, 4, 5, 6	 2 282	 1 936	 1 803

				  
Interest income and similar profit items 	 Note 7	 42	 18	 26
Interest expenses and similar loss items 	 Note 8	 -549	 -226	 -227
Profit after financial items 		  1 775	 1 728	 1 602

Tax on profit for the year 	 Note 9	 -514	 -469	 -452
Net profit for the year 		  1 261	 1 259	 1 150

Attributable to:
Parent Company’s shareholders 		  1 260	 1 254	 1 139
Minority interest 		  1	 5	 11
Net profit for the year 		  1 261	 1 259	 1 150

Earnings per share for profits attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders during the year 				  
before dilution 	 Note 11	 6,24	 6,21	 5,64
after dilution 	 Note 11	 6,24	 6,21	 5,64
weighted average number of shares for calculation  
of earnings per share before dilution, 000s 	 Note 11	 201 874	 201 874	 201 874
weighted average number of shares for calculation  
of earnings per share after dilution, 000s 	 Note 11	 201 874	 201 874	 201 874

* 	 As a result of a change in the categorisation of certain costs, reclassifications 
	 were conducted from Cost of goods sold to Selling and Administrative expenses 
	 in the figures from the preceding year. A total of SEK 28 m was reclassified.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

AMOUNTS IN SEK m

		  2007	 2006	 2005

ASSETS				  
Fixed assets

Intangible assets 	 Note 4, 12	 10 396	 5 516	 5 530
Tangible fixed assets 	 Note 4, 12, 19	 2 327	 1 397	 1 498
Financial instruments, long-term 	 Note 26	 8	 12	 28
Long-term financial receivables 		  94	 1 298	 25
Deferred tax assets 	 Note 9	 653	 566	 597
Total fixed assets 		  13 478	 8 789	 7 678

Current assets

Inventories 	 Note 13	 2 913	 2 083	 2 156
Accounts receivable – trade 	 Note 14	 4 756	 3 723	 3 577
Current tax receivables 	 Note 9	 74	 15	 9
Financial instruments, current 	 Note 26	 109	 135	 13
Other receivables 		  324	 260	 207
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 	 Note 15	 443	 199	 209
Cash and cash equivalents 	 Note 17	 894	 673	 684
Total current assets 		  9 513	 7 088	 6 855

TOTAL ASSETS 		  22 991	 15 877	 14 533

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	
Shareholders’ equity				  

Share capital 	 Note 16	 101	 101	 101
Other capital provided 		  2 524	 2 524	 2 524
Other reserves 		  -191	 10	 184
Profits carried forward including net profit for the year  
attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders 		  4 164	 3 348	 2 498
Shareholders’ equity attributable to the  

Parent Company’s shareholders		  6 598	 5 983	 5 307

Minority interest 		  25	 22	 74
Total shareholders’ equity 		  6 623	 6 005	 5 381

Long-term liabilities				  
Interest-bearing long-term loans 	 Note 18, 19	 9 146	 4 384	 4 104
Other long-term liabilities		  2	 9	 94
Provisions for pensions, interest-bearing	 Note 18, 22	 1 805	 1 639	 1 690
Provisions for pensions, non-interest-bearing 	 Note 22	 135	 90	 59
Financial instruments, long-term 	 Note 26	 263	 191	 9
Deferred tax liabilities   	 Note 9	 390	 80	 75
Other provisions, long-term	 Note 21	 188	 175	 128
Total long-term liabilities 		  11 929	 6 568	 6 159

Current liabilities				  
Restructuring reserve 	 Note 20	 71	 9	 10
Other provisions, short-term 	 Note 21	 261	 190	 221
Interest-bearing short-term loans 	 Note 18, 19	 67	 34	 5
Advance payments from customers 		  368	 357	 206
Accounts payable – trade 		  1 418	 1 011	 921
Current tax liabilities 	 Note 9	 429	 254	 138
Financial instruments, current 	 Note 26	 70	 11	 152
Other liabilities 		  394	 343	 347
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 	 Note 23	 1 361	 1 095	 993
Total current liabilities 		  4 439	 3 304	 2 993

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 		  22 991	 15 877	 14 533

See Note 24 for information concerning the Getinge Group’s pledged assets. 
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CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE GROUP 

AMOUNTS IN SEK m 

	 Share capital	 Other 	 Reserves 	 Hedging 	Translation	 Profit/loss 	 Share- 	 Minority 	 Total 

		  capital 		  reserves	 reserve	 brought  	 holders’  	 interest	 Share-

		  provided				    forward	 equity  		  holders’

							      attributable 		  equity

						      to Parent  

						      Company

Shareholders’ equity, 31 December 2004 	 101	 700	 1 825	 –	 -98	 1 692	 4 220	 49	 4 269

Effect of conversion to  
accounting principle IAS 39 	 –	 –	 –	 97	 –	 –	 97	 –	 97
Adjusted opening balance 2005 	 101	 700	 1 825	 97	 -98	 1 692	 4 317	 49	 4 366

Translation differences attributable  
to foreign subsidiaries 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 369	 –	 369	 14	 383
Income and expenses for the period  
reported directly against shareholders’ equity 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 369	 –	 369	 14	 383
Cash-flow hedging:									       
Dissolved in income statement 	 –	 –	 –	 -93	 –	 –	 -93	 –	 -93
Change in value of hedging  
instruments for period 	 –	 –	 –	 -92	 –	 –	 -92	 –	 -92
Net profit for the year 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 1 139	 1 139	 11	 1 150
Total income and expenses for the period	 –	 –	 –	 -185	 369	 1 139	 1 323	 25	 1 348
Dividend 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -333	 -333	 –	 -333
Shareholders’ equity, 31 December 2005 	 101	 700	 1 825	 -88	 271	 2 498	 5 307	 74	 5 381

Transfer of share premium reserve to statutory  
reserve in accordance with  
Annual Accounts Act 5:14 	 –	 -700	 700	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Translation differences attributable  
to foreign subsidiaries 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -334	 –	 -334	 -5	 -339
Income and expenses for the period reported  
directly against shareholders’ equity 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -334	 -	 -334	 -5	 -339
Cash-flow hedging:									       
Dissolved in income statement 	 –	 –	 –	 32	 –	 –	 32	 –	 32
Change in value of hedging instruments for period 	 –	 –	 –	 128	 –	 –	 128	 –	 128
Net profit for the year 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 1 254	 1 254	 5	 1 259
Total income and expenses for the period 	 –	 –	 –	 160	 -334	 1 254	 1 080	 –	 1 080
Dividend 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -404	 -404	 –	 -404
Dividend to minority 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -1	 -1
Non-acquired portion of corporate acquisition 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -51	 -51
Shareholders’ equity, 31 December 2006 	 101	 –	 2 525	 72	 -63	 3 348	 5 983	 22	 6 005

Translation differences attributable  
to foreign subsidiaries 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -143	 –	 -143	 2	 -141
Income and expenses for the period  
reported directly against shareholders’ equity 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -143	 –	 -143	 2	 -141
Cash-flow hedging:									       
Dissolved in income statement 	 –	 –	 –	 -10	 –	 –	 -10	 –	 -10
Change in value of hedging  
instruments for period 	 –	 –	 –	 -48	 –	 –	 -48	 –	 -48
Net profit for the year 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 1 260	 1 260	 1	 1 261
Total income and expenses for the period 	 –	 –	 –	 -58	 -143	 1 260	 1 059	 3	 1 062
Dividend 	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -444	 -444	 –	 -444
Shareholders’ equity, 31 December 2007 	 101	 -	 2 525	 14	 -206	 4 164	 6 598	 25	 6 623
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CONSOLIDATED CASH-FLOW STATEMENT 

AMOUNTS IN SEK m

		  2007	 2006	 2005

Operating activities				  
Operating profit 		  2 282	 1 936	 1 803
Adjustments for non-cash items 	 Note 31	 761	 277	 329
		  3 043	 2 213	 2 132

Interest received and similar items 		  42	 18	 24
Interest paid and similar items 		  -549	 -221	 -220
Taxes paid		  -528	 -387	 -476
Cash flow before changes in working capital 		  2 008	 1 623	 1 460

Changes in working capital				  
Inventories 		  -341	 -75	 -130
Equipment for rental		  -168	 -11	 -14
Current receivables 		  -458	 -484	 -126
Current liabilities 		  287	 451	 -20
Cash flow from operating activities 		  1 328	 1 504	 1 170

				  
Investing activities				  
Acquisition of subsidiaries 	 Note 31	 -5 622	 -272	 -265
Acquisition of intangible assets 		  -348	 -206	 -167
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 		  -467	 -315	 -236
Divestment of tangible fixed assets 		  34	 157	 11
Cash flow from investing activities 		  -6 403	 -636	 -657

				  
Financing activities				  
Changes in interest-bearing loans 		  4 518	 568	 142
Change in long-term receivables 		  1 249	 -1 277	 108
Net change in minorities 		  -	 51	 -
Dividend paid 		  -444	 -405	 -333
Cash flow from financing activities 		  5 323	 -1 063	 -83

Cash flow for the year 		  248	 -195	 430

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 		  673	 684	 485
Cash flow for the year 		  248	 -195	 430
Translation differences 		  -27	 184	 -231
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 	 Note 31	 894	 673	 684
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CONSOLIDATED OPERATING CASH-FLOW STATEMENT 

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE, AMOUNTS IN SEK m

		  2007	 2006	 2005

Business activities

Operating profit 		  2 282	 1 936	 1 803
Restructuring costs		  257	 45	 -
Adjustments for items not included in the cash-flow statement	 694	 277	 329
Cash operating surplus 		  3 233	 2 258	 2 132

Change in operating capital			 
Inventories 		  -341	 -75	 -130
Equipment for rental 		  -168	 -11	 -14
Current receivables 		  -458	 -484	 -126
Current liabilities 		  287	 451	 -20
Operating cash flow before restructuring and integration	 2 553	 2 139	 1 842

Restructuring and integration – affecting cash flow		  -190	 -45	 -
Operating cash flow after restructuring and integration		  2 363	 2 094	 1 842

			 
Interest received and similar items 		  42	 18	 24
Interest paid and similar items 		  -549	 -221	 -220
Paid tax 		  -528	 -387	 -476
Business activities’ cash flow 		  1 328	 1 504	 1 170

			 
Investments 			 
Acquisition of intangible assets 		  -348	 -206	 -167
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets		  -467	 -315	 -236
Divestment of tangible fixed assets 		  34	 157	 11
Acquisition of subsidiaries 		  -6 106	 -273	 -544
Cash flow after investments		  -5 559	 867	 234

			 
Dividend paid		  -444	 -405	 -333
Change in long-term receivables 		  1 249	 -1 277	 108
Change in net debt not affecting the cash flow 		  45	 86	 -100
Translation differences 		  -82	 258	 -308
Change in net debt 		  -4 791	 -471	 -399

Net debt at the beginning of the year 		  5 575	 5 104	 4 705
Net debt at year-end 		  10 366	 5 575	 5 104

The Getinge Group works continuously to improve its cash flow in all business areas. These efforts have led to significant improvements in 
the operating cash flow. It is therefore deemed to be valuable to report the operating cash flow in a separate disclosure.
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1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

GENERAL INFORMATION
Getinge AB, which is the Parent Company of the Getinge Group, is a 
limited liability company with its registered offices in Getinge, 
Sweden. The company’s address can be found on page 93. A 
description of the company’s operations is included in the Director’s 
Report on page 50. 

ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION PRINCIPLES
Getinge’s consolidated accounts have been prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), including interpre-
tations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (IFRIC) approved by the European Commission for appli-
cation. In addition, the Swedish Financial Accounting Standards 
Council’s recommendation RR 30, Supplementary Accounting 
Regulations for Groups, has been applied. The consolidated 
accounts include the accounts for Getinge AB and its subsidiaries 
and were prepared in accordance with the cost method, except for 
cases described below, primarily financial derivative instruments, 
which are reported at market value.

The Parent Company applies the same accounting principles as the 
Group, except in the instances stated below in the section “Parent 
Company’s accounting principles.” The differences that arise bet-
ween the Parent Company and the Group’s accounting policies are 
attributable to the limited opportunities for the application of IFRS in 
the Parent Company, primarily as a result of the Swedish Annual 
Accounts Act, the Act on Safeguarding of Pension Obligations, and in 
certain cases, for tax reasons. 

The Parent Company’s functional currency is Swedish kronor (SEK), 
which is also the Parent Company’s and Group’s reporting currency. 
This means that the financial reports are presented in Swedish kro-
ner. Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are is given in millions of 
Swedish kroner (SEK m). 

New accounting principles. IFRS 7, “Financial instruments: 
Disclosures,” and the associated amendment to IAS 1, “Presentation 
of financial statements” have been applied in these financial reports. 
The new regulations have entailed increased disclosure requirements 
regarding capital and financial instruments as well as financial risks, 
but have had no effect on profit or financial position. During the finan-
cial year, a number of IFRIC interpretations have taken effect, but 
none of these have entailed any effect on profit and financial position.   

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND ASSESSMENTS
To prepare the accounts in accordance with IFRS accounting princip-
les, the company management is required to make assessments and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and other information, such as contingent liabilities and so forth, in 
the accounts and for revenues and expenses reported during the 
period. Assumptions, assessments and estimates are reviewed on a 
regular basis. The actual outcome may diverge from these assump-
tions, assessments and estimates. The Board of Directors and Group 
management have deemed that the following areas may have a signi-
ficant impact on the Group’s earnings and financial position:

Valuation of identifiable assets and liabilities 
in connection with acquisitions
In connection with acquisitions, all identifiable assets and liabilities in 
the acquired company are identified and valued at fair value, inclu-
ding the value of and liabilities in the share already owned, including 
any minority share. 

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an 
indeterminable useful life
The impairment requirement for goodwill and other intangible assets 

with an indeterminable useful life is tested annually by Getinge in 
accordance with the accounting principle described here in note 1. 
The recoverable value for cash-generating units has been established 
through the calculation of value in use. For these calculations, certain 
estimations must be made (see Note 12).

Pension obligations
Accounting for the costs of defined-benefit pensions and other appli-
cable retirement benefits is based on actuarial valuations, relying on 
key assumptions for discount rates, future salary increases, person-
nel-turnover rates and mortality tables. In turn, the discount rate 
assumptions are based on rates for high-quality fixed-interest invest-
ments with durations similar to the pension schemes (see Note 22).

Obsolescence reserve
Inventories are recorded at the lower of the acquisition value (cost) 
according to the first in/first out principle, and net realisable value. 
The value of inventories is adjusted for the estimated decrease in 
value attributable to products no longer sold, surplus inventory, phy-
sical damage, lead times for inventory, and handling and sales over-
heads. If the net selling price is lower than the acquisition value, a 
valuation reserve is established for inventory obsolescence.

Unless otherwise stated, the accounting principles detailed below for 
the Group and Parent Company have been applied consistently in all 
periods presented in the Group’s financial reports. 

Deferred tax
The valuation of loss carryforwards and Getinge’s ability to utilise 
unutilised loss carryforwards is based on our assessments of future 
taxable income in various tax jurisdictions and includes assumptions 
regarding whether expenses that have not yet been subject to taxa-
tion are tax deductable. Deferred tax is reported in the income state-
ment. 

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
Getinge’s accounts comprise the Parent Company, Getinge AB, and 
all companies in which Getinge AB owns, either directly or indirectly, 
more than half of the shares’ voting rights or where Getinge exercises 
a controlling influence on the basis of agreements. 

Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated accounts from the point 
in time at which the controlling influence is transferred to the Group 
and are no longer included in the consolidated accounts from the 
point in time at which the controlling influence ceases. The controlling 
influence is usually transferred at the date of acquisition.

Acquired companies are consolidated in the consolidated accounts in 
accordance with the purchase method, which means that the acqui-
sition value (cost) of the shares in subsidiaries is eliminated against 
their shareholders’ equity at the date of acquisition. Accordingly, only 
the portion of the subsidiary’s shareholders’ equity that has arisen 
after the acquisition is included in consolidated equity. Getinge app-
lies IFRS 3, Business Combinations, for acquisitions after 1 January 
2004, in accordance with transitional rules in IFRS 1. Getinge has 
chosen not to restate earlier acquisitions. Accordingly, shareholders’ 
equity in the subsidiaries is determined on a market-based value of 
identifiable assets, liabilities, provisions and contingent liabilities at 
the time of the acquisition. If the acquisition values of the shares in 
the subsidiaries exceed the acquired amount of shareholders’ equity, 
calculated as described above, the difference is assigned to goodwill. 
If the acquisition cost falls below the fair value of the acquired 
subsidiary’s net assets, the negative goodwill is reported directly in 
the income statement as other operating income. If assets are inclu-
ded in the subsidiary at the time of acquisition – for example, proper-
ty, participations or other operations – that will not be retained but 
sold in the near future, these assets are accounted for in the acquisi-
tion analysis at the amount received or, if the assets remain in the 
subsidiary at the closing of the books, they are reported at the 
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amount expected to be received. The merger with the Arjo Group in 
1995 is reported in accordance with the pooling method. Deferred 
tax is calculated on the difference between the calculated market 
values of assets and liabilities and the fiscal residual values.

Intra-Group transactions and unrealised inter-company profits are eli-
minated in the consolidated accounts, except with respect to minority 
shares. The fiscal effect is also calculated when eliminating internal 
transactions, based on the nominal tax rate. 

The accounting principles in subsidiaries and associated companies 
have been adjusted as necessary so as to ensure consistent accoun-
ting within the Group. 

In the income statement, net profit/loss is reported without deduc-
tions for minority shares in profit/loss for the year. Minority shares in 
the subsidiaries’ equity is reported as a separate item in the consoli-
dated shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.   

REPORTING OF INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Associated companies are defined as companies associated with the 
Group’s operations in which the Group, either directly or indirectly, 
has a long-term holding usually corresponding to at least 20% and a 
maximum of 50% of the voting rights and on the basis of which the 
Parent Company has had a significant influence during the year, 
unless it can be clearly proven otherwise. Companies in which the 
Group has a significant and long-term influence, although ownership 
is lower than 20% of the voting rights, are also defined as associated 
companies. Holdings in associated companies are reported in accor-
dance with the equity method, meaning that shares in a company are 
reported at acquisition value at the date of acquisition and subse-
quently adjusted with the Group’s share of earnings in associated 
companies. The Group’s share of the associated companies’ net pro-
fit/loss after tax is included in the consolidated income statement. 
The Group has a significant influence in, but not control of, these 
companies. The Group’s holdings in associated companies are repor-
ted in the consolidated balance sheet at an amount corresponding to 
the Group’s share of the associated companies’ identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities, including goodwill on consolidation 
and any impairment. When the Group’s share of any accumulated 
losses exceeds the acquisition value of an investment, the book value 
is set to zero and the reporting of future losses ceases, unless the 
Group is committed on the basis of guarantees or other obligations to 
the company in question. The portion of unrealised profits and losses 
corresponding to the Group’s participation in the associated compa-
ny is eliminated in conjunction with transactions between Group com-
panies and associated companies, except in the case of unrealised 
losses due to impairment of a sold asset.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Functional currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional cur-
rency of the accounts according to the exchange rate on the date of 
the transaction. When preparing the consolidated accounts, the 
balance sheets of the Group’s foreign operations are translated from 
their functional currencies to Swedish kronor (SEK), based on the 
exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date.

Translation of foreign operations 
Getinge applies the current method for translation of foreign subsidia-
ries’ balance sheets and income statements. This means that all 
assets and liabilities in subsidiaries are translated at balance sheet 
date rates, and all income statement items are translated at average 
annual exchange rates. Translation differences arising in this context 
are due to the difference between the average exchange rates and 
balance sheet date rates, and to the net assets being translated at a 
different exchange rate at year-end than at the beginning of the year. 
Translation differences are booked directly under shareholder’s equi-
ty. The total translation differences in conjunction with divestments 

are reported together with the profits/losses arising from the transac-
tion. Hedge accounting is applied to external loans raised in order to 
reduce translation differences in exposed currencies to meet the net 
assets in foreign subsidiaries. Exchange rate differences for these 
loans are booked directly under consolidated shareholder’s equity.

Receivables and liabilities in foreign currencies
Receivables and liabilities in foreign currencies are valued at balance 
sheet date rates, and unrealised exchange rate profits and losses are 
included in income. Exchange rate differences attributable to opera-
ting receivables and liabilities are reported as other operating income 
(operating expenses). Exchange rate differences regarding financial 
assets and liabilities are reported under “Other financial items”. 
Advance payments from customers are booked at the exchange rates 
applicable when each advance payment was received, since a liability 
to repay is not anticipated.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Sales include products, services and rents, excluding indirect turno-
ver tax and discounts provided. Income is reported when practically 
all risks and rights connected with ownership have been transferred 
to the buyer. This usually occurs in connection with delivery, after the 
price has been determined and collection of the receivable is appro-
priately secured. If delivery of finished goods is postponed at the 
buyer’s request, but the buyer assumes the proprietary rights and 
accepts the invoice (a “bill and hold” sale), income is recognised 
when the proprietary rights are transferred. Income is normally 
recognised once the buyer has accepted delivery and after installa-
tion and final inspection. However, income is recognised immediately 
after delivery if the installation and final inspection are of a simple 
nature, and after establishing provisions for estimated residual expen-
ses. Income recognition for services takes place as and when the 
services are performed. Income from rental is allocated to a particular 
period over the term of the rental agreement. Interest income is 
reported continuously and dividends received are reported after the 
right to the dividend is deemed secure. In the consolidated accounts, 
intra-group sales are eliminated.

For larger assignments extending over more than one accounting 
period, where outcome can be measured in a reliable manner, inco-
me and expenses are reported in relation to the degree of completion 
of the assignment on the balance sheet date. The degree of comple-
tion of an assignment is established in a ratio between accrued 
assignment costs for work completed on the balance sheet date and 
the calculated total assignment costs, except in those instances this 
does not correspond to the degree of completion. Changes in the 
scope and claims of the assignment are included only if there is an 
agreement with the customer. When the outcome of an assignment 
cannot be calculated in a reliable manner, only the amount cor-
responding to the accrued assignment expenses that will probably be 
paid by the client are recognised as revenue. Other accrued assign-
ment expenses are reported as costs in the period in which they 
occur. If it is probable that the total amount of accrued assignment 
costs will exceed total revenues from the assignment, the expected 
loss is reported as a cost in its entirety.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government grants are recorded at fair value when it is probable that 
the terms associated with the grants will be met and that the grants 
will be received. Government grants relating to costs are recognised 
in the income statement. The income is recorded in the same period 
as the cost that grants are intended to compensate. Government 
grants relating to the acquisition of assets reduce the assets’ carrying 
amounts. Grants affect reported earnings over the assets’ useful life 
by reducing depreciation.

DIVESTMENT OF OPERATIONS
Divestment of operations entails that an operation comprising a sepa-
rate part is sold according to a determined plan, provided that the 
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company’s assets and net results can be separated from other ope-
rations in physical, business and accounting terms. Any effects on 
profits from the discontinued operations before tax are reported 
separately in the consolidated income statement.

FINANCIAL INCOME AND COSTS
Financial income and costs include interest income on bank deposits 
and receivables, interest expense on loans, income from dividends, 
unrealised and realised profits and losses on financial investments, 
exchange rate differences, and derivative instruments used in financi-
al activities.

Borrowing costs are recognised in the period to which they relate, 
regardless of how the funds have been utilised.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
Goodwill comprises the portion of a purchase price for an acquisition 
that exceeds the market value of the identifiable assets, with deduc-
tions for liabilities and contingent liabilities, calculated on the date of 
acquisition, on the share of the acquired company’s assets acquired 
by the Group. In a business acquisition whereby the acquisition costs 
are less than the net value of acquired assets, assumed liabilities and 
contingent liabilities, the difference is recorded directly in the income 
statement.

Goodwill arising in conjunction with an acquisition of foreign entities 
is treated as an asset in the foreign unit and translated at the exchan-
ge rate on the balance sheet date. Goodwill arising from the acquisi-
tion of associated companies is included in the value of the holdings 
in the associated company. Goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite 
useful life and is reported at acquisition value with deduction for 
accumulated impairments. An impairment test of goodwill is conduc-
ted once per year or more often if there is an indication of a decrease 
in value. The impairment loss on goodwill is reported in the income 
statement. Profit or loss in connection with the divestment of a unit 
includes the residual carrying amount of goodwill that pertains to the 
divested unit.

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets comprise capitalised development costs, customer 
relations, technical know-how, trademarks, agreements and other 
assets. Intangible assets are reported at acquisition value with 
deductions for accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 
Amortisation takes place proportionally over the asset’s anticipated 
useful economic life, which usually varies between 3 and 15 years. 
Acquired intangible assets are reported separately from goodwill if 
they fulfil the criteria for qualifying as an asset, implying they can be 
separated or they are based on contractual or other legal rights and 
that their market value can be established in a reliable manner. 
Intangible assets that are reported separately from goodwill in the 
context of acquisitions of operations are customer relations, technical 
know-how, trademarks and agreements. Acquired intangible assets 
are valued at market value and amortised on a straight-line basis over 
their expected useful economic life. The useful life can, in certain 
cases, be indefinite. These intangible assets are not amortised, ins-
tead they are subject to an impairment test every year or more often 
if there is an indication of a decrease in value.

Costs for development, whereby research results or other knowledge 
is applied to produce new products, are recorded as an asset in the 
balance sheet to the extent that these products are expected to 
generate future financial benefits. These costs are capitalised when 
the management deems that the product is technically and financially 
viable, which is usually when a product-development project has 
reached a defined milestone in accordance with an established pro-
jection model. The capitalised value includes expenses for material, 
direct expenses for salaries and indirect expenses that can be assig-
ned to the asset in a reasonable and consistent manner. In other 

cases, development costs are expensed as they arise. Research 
costs are charged to earnings as they arise.

Development costs booked in the income statement for a period are 
never capitalised in future periods. Capitalised expenses are amorti-
sed on a straight-line basis from the point in time at which the asset 
is put into commercial operation and during the asset’s estimated 
useful life. The useful life for strategic development projects exceeds 
five years. The amortisation period is 3 – 15 years.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Properties, machinery, equipment and other tangible fixed assets 
acquired by Group companies are reported at acquisition value, with 
deductions for accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 
The acquisition value includes the purchase price and expenses 
directly attributable to the asset to bring the asset to the site and in 
the working condition for its intended use. Examples of directly attri-
butable expenses included in the acquisition value are delivery and 
handling costs, installation, legal services and consultancy services. 
Borrowing expenses are not included in the acquisition value for fixed 
assets produced by the Group. Assets provided to the company in 
conjunction with the acquisition of new subsidiaries are reported at 
market value on the acquisition date. Depreciation is adjusted propor-
tionally for decreases in value and divestment costs. The value in the 
balance sheet represents acquisition costs with deduction for accu-
mulated depreciation according to plan and any impairment losses. 
Land is not depreciated since it is deemed to have an infinite econo-
mic life. Depreciation of other assets is based on the following antici-
pated economic lives.

Class of assets 	 Depreciation, number of years
Land improvements 	 40-50
Buildings 	 10-50
Machines 	 5 -25
Equipment 	 10
Production tools 	 5
Equipment for rental	 5
Cars 	 4
Computer equipment 	 3

Tangible fixed assets comprising parts with different useful lives are 
treated as separate components of tangible fixed assets. Standard 
maintenance and repair costs are expensed during the periods in 
which they arise. More extensive repair and upgrading costs are capi-
talised and depreciated over the item’s remaining economic life. 
Disposals, sales or divestments of properties are accounted for by 
eliminating the acquisition costs and accumulated depreciation and 
reporting any final depreciation adjustment in the income statement 
as a decrease in value. Capital gains/losses are reported under 
“Other operating income/expenses.”

FINANCIAL LEASING AGREEMENTS
Financial leasing
Leasing of properties, machines and equipment, whereby the Group 
essentially assumes the same rights as for direct ownership of the 
asset, is classified as financial leasing. Financial leasing is capitalised 
from the date on which the lease agreement is entered into, at the 
lower amount of the assets’ market value or the calculated present 
value of the underlying leasing payments. Each leasing payment is 
divided between liabilities and financial expenses so that interest pay-
ments on outstanding liabilities are proportional. The corresponding 
rental liability, after deduction for financing costs, is attributed to inte-
rest-bearing liabilities, while the interest portion of leasing costs is 
recognised in revenue during the lease period. Properties, machines 
and equipment acquired by leasing are depreciated over their econo-
mic lives.

Operational leasing
Leasing of assets whereby the lessor essentially remains the owner of 
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the asset is classified as operational leasing, and payments made 
according to operational leasing contracts or rental agreements are 
expensed proportionally during the lease or rental period, respective-
ly. Any compensation, according to agreement, that the lessee is 
obliged to pay to the lessor if the leasing contract is terminated pre-
maturely is expensed during the period in which the contract is termi-
nated. Profits arising as a result of the termination of the leasing 
agreement are reported on a discounted basis. Financial agreements 
for company cars, copying machines and similar items are reported 
as operational agreements due to their importance.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At the end of each accounting period, the book value of the assets is 
assessed to determine whether there is any indication that impair-
ment is required. If there is such an indication, the asset’s recovera-
ble value is established. The recoverable value is deemed to be the 
higher of the asset’s net realisable fair value and its value in use, for 
which the impairment loss is reported as soon as the book value 
exceeds the recoverable value. Earlier reported impairment losses on 
machines and equipment are reversed if the recoverable value is dee-
med to have increased, although the impairment losses are not rever-
sed to an amount greater than what the book value would have been 
if no impairment losses had been reported in earlier years. Reported 
decreases in the value of goodwill are not reversed.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at the lower of the acquisition value and pro-
duction cost, according to the first in/first out (FIFO) principle, and net 
realisable value. Inventories include a share of indirect costs related 
to this. The value of finished products includes raw materials, direct 
work, other direct costs and production-related expenses including 
depreciation. The net realisable value is calculated as the estimated 
sales price less estimated completion and selling costs.

An assessment of obsolescence in inventories is conducted regularly 
during the year. The value of inventories is adjusted for the estimated 
decrease in value attributable to products no longer sold, surplus 
inventory, physical damage, lead times for inventory, and handling 
and sales overheads. If the net realisable value is lower than the 
acquisition cost, a valuation reserve is established for inventory obso-
lescence. 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A financial asset or financial liability is reported in the balance sheet 
when the company is party to the contractual conditions of the instru-
ment. A financial asset is eliminated from the balance sheet when the 
rights contained in the contract are realised, mature or when the 
company loses control over them. A financial liability is eliminated 
from the balance sheet when the commitment in the agreement has 
been completed or has in any other manner been terminated.

Acquisitions and sales of financial assets are reported on the trade 
date, which is the date on which the company commits itself to 
acquire or sell the assets, apart from cases in which the company 
acquires or sells listed securities when liquidity date reporting is app-
lied. 

At the end of each accounting period, the company assesses 
whether there are objective indications that a financial asset or group 
of financial assets requires impairment.

Financial instruments are reported at accrued acquisition value or fair 
value, depending on the initial classification according to IAS 39 (see 
below). Further information about financial instruments can be found 
in Note 14 Accounts receivable, Note 18 The Group’s interest-bearing 
net debt and Note 27 Financial risk management and financial deriva-
tive instruments.

Fair value
Reported fair values for derivative instruments have been conducted 
based on the most reliable market prices available. This means that 
all instruments traded in an effective market, such as currency-for-
ward contracts, are valued market-to-market at their current rate. In 
cases where an instrument lacks a reliable, available market price, 
such as interest swaps, the cash flow is discounted using deposit 
and swap interests for the currency in question. Translation to SEK is 
based on the quoted exchange rate on the balance sheet date.

Interest-bearing liabilities 
Liabilities to credit institutions and issued bonds are classified as 
“Other liabilities” and are valued at amortised cost. Interest-bearing 
liabilities to which hedge accounting has been applied in accordance 
with the method for fair value hedging are valued at fair value regar-
ding the certain risk. Long-term liabilities have an expected term 
longer than one year while current liabilities have a term of less than 
one year.

Derivative instruments
All derivative instruments are reported at fair value in the balance 
sheet. The changes of value in derivative instruments fulfilling the 
hedge-accounting requirements according to the cash-flow hedging 
method or hedging of net investments in foreign currency are repor-
ted in separate categories under shareholders’ equity and are 
recognised as revenue in conjunction with the reporting of the hed-
ged item in the income statement. Changes in value of derivative 
instruments fulfilling hedge-accounting requirements according to the 
method of hedging fair value are reported in the income statement to 
meet the changes in value of the hedged item. The changes in value 
of derivative instruments that are not subject to hedge accounting 
and of derivative instruments included in a fair-value hedge are repor-
ted in the income statement.

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are classified as “Accounts receivable and loan 
receivables,” meaning that they are reported at accrued acquisition 
value. Accounts receivable are reported in the amounts that are 
expected to be received after deductions for bad debts, which are 
assessed on an individual basis. The expected term of accounts 
receivable is short, which is why the amount is reported at nominal 
value without discounting. Any impairment of accounts receivable is 
reported in operating expenses.

Other current receivables
Other current receivables are classified as “Loan receivables and 
accounts receivable,” meaning that they are reported at accrued 
acquisition value. The expected term of other current receivables is 
short, which is why the amount is reported at nominal value without 
discounting.  

Other short-term liabilities are classified as “Other liabilities,” and are 
reported at accrued acquisition value. The expected term of accounts 
receivable is short, which is why the liability is reported at nominal 
value without discounting.  

Accounts payable
Accounts payable are classified as “accounts payable,” meaning that 
they are reported at accrued acquisition value. The expected term of 
accounts payable is short, which is why the amount is reported at 
nominal value without discounting.

Cash and cash equivalents
The major portion of cash and cash equivalents comprises cash 
funds held at financial institutions, and only a minor portion compri-
ses current liquid investments with a term from the date of acquisition 
of less than three months, which is exposed to only an insignificant 
risk of value fluctuations. Cash and cash equivalents are reported at 
nominal value, which is approximately equivalent to fair value.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Reporting of pensions. Getinge has both defined-contribution and 
defined-benefit pension plans, of which some have assets in special 
funds or similar securities. The plans are usually financed by pay-
ments from the respective Group companies and the employees. The 
Group’s Swedish companies are generally covered by the ITP plan, 
which does not require any payments from employees.

Defined-benefit plans
Pension expenses for defined-benefit plans are calculated using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method in a manner that distributes expenses 
over the employee’s working life. The calculation is performed annu-
ally by independent actuaries. These commitments are valued at the 
present value of expected future payments, with consideration for 
calculated future salary increases, utilising a discount rate correspon-
ding to the interest rate of first-class company or government bonds 
with a remaining term that is almost equivalent to the actual commit-
ments. The defined-benefit plans, with deductions for the fair value of 
plan assets and adjustments for actuarial gains/losses not reported 
for service in earlier periods, are recognised under the heading 
“Pension provisions.” Actuarial profits and losses outside the 10% 
corridor are distributed over the employees’ calculated average 
remaining period of employment. The calculations are performed 
under the supervision of qualified actuaries who annually perform the 
calculations of the pension plan. Costs for defined-benefit plans in 
the income statement comprise the total costs for service during the 
current and earlier years, interest on commitments and expected 
return on plan assets. Costs for service during the current period and 
previous periods are reported as personnel costs. The portion of the 
interest component of pension costs related to the deficit in pension 
funds is reported under financial expenses.

Defined-contribution plans. 
These are plans in which the company pays fixed fees to a separate 
legal entity and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay 
additional fees. The Group’s payments for defined-contribution plans 
are reported as expenses during the period in which the employees 
perform the services that the fee covers.

The part of the ITP plan concerning family pension, disability pension, 
and employment group life insurance financed by insurance with 
Alecta is a defined-benefit pension multi-employer scheme. For this 
pension scheme, according to IAS 19, a company is primarily to 
report its proportional share of the defined-benefit pension commit-
ment and the plan assets and expenses associated with the pension 
plan. The accounts shall also include disclosure required for defined-
benefit pension plans. Alecta is currently unable to provide the 
necessary information and therefore the above pension schemes are 
reported as defined-contribution pension schemes in accordance 
with item 30 of IAS 19. This means that premiums paid to Alecta will 
also be reported on an ongoing basis as expenses in the future.

SHARE-RELATED REMUNERATION
IFRS 2, Share-based remuneration, prescribes that share-related 
remuneration shall be classified as cash-regulated or equity regula-
ted. Getinge’s programme comprises only cash-regulated remunera-
tions. The market value of cash-regulated programs, including 
social-security expenses, is allocated to a particular period over the 
period of service. The allocation to a particular period is based on 
market valuation of the obligation at the end of each accounting peri-
od. From the end of the period of service to redemption or maturity, 
these programs are valued at market prices at the end of each 
accounting period. The change in market value, including social-
security fees, is recognised in personnel expenses as an expense/
income and in the balance sheet as a provision.

PROVISIONS
Provisions are reported when the Group has a legal or informal obli-

gation as a result of past events and it is probable that payment will 
be required to fulfil the commitment and if a reliable estimation can 
be made of the amount to be paid. Provisions for the restoration of 
the environment are established when a project is put into operation 
and capitalised expenses for the provision are amortised over the 
asset’s useful life, together with the acquisition cost of the asset. 
Pensions, deferred tax liabilities, restructuring measures, guarantee 
commitments, close-down provisions for non-consolidated activities 
and similar items are recorded as provisions in the balance sheet. 
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each accounting period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Contingent liabilities are commitments not reported as liabilities/provi-
sions either because it is not certain that an outflow of resources will 
be required to regulate the commitment or because it is not possible 
to make a reliable estimate of the amount.

INCOME TAXES
Getinge’s income taxes include taxes on the Group companies’ pro-
fits reported during the accounting period and tax adjustments attri-
butable to earlier periods and changes in deferred taxes. Valuation of 
all tax liabilities/receivables is conducted at nominal amounts and in 
accordance with enacted tax regulations and tax rates or those that 
have been announced and will almost certainly be enacted. Tax is 
recognised directly in equity if the tax is attributable to items that are 
recognised directly in equity.
Deferred tax is calculated to correspond to the tax effect arising 
when final tax is determined. Deferred tax corresponds to the net 
effect of tax on all existing differences between fiscal and book 
values of assets and liabilities by applying applicable tax rates. 
Temporary differences primarily arise from the depreciation of proper-
ties, machines and equipment, the market valuations of identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities in acquired companies, the 
market valuation of investments classified as held for sale and finan-
cial derivatives, gains from intra-Group inventory transactions, untax-
ed reserves and tax loss carryforwards, of which the latter is reported 
as an asset only to the extent that it is probable that these loss carry-
forwards will be matched by future taxable profits. 

The deferred tax liability pertaining to temporary differences that are 
attributable to investments in subsidiaries and affiliates is not recor-
ded, since the Parent Company, in each instance, can control the 
point in time of reversal of the temporary differences and a reversal in 
the foreseeable future has been deemed improbable.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Getinge’s operations are controlled and reported primarily by busi-
ness area and secondarily by geographic area. Each segment is con-
solidated according to the same principles as for the Group in its 
entirety.

The earnings of the segments represent their contribution to the 
Group’s earnings and include distributed central head office expen-
ses.

Assets in a segment include all operating assets used by the segment 
and primarily comprise intangible fixed assets, tangible fixed assets, 
inventories, external accounts receivable, other receivables and pre-
paid expenses and accrued income. Liabilities in a segment include 
all operating liabilities used by the segment and primarily comprise 
provisions excluding interest-bearing pension provisions and deferred 
tax liabilities, external accounts payable, other current liabilities, 
accrued expenses and deferred income. Non-distributed assets and 
liabilities include all tax items and all items of a financial, interest-bea-
ring nature.

CASH-FLOW STATEMENTS
Cash-flow statements are prepared in accordance with IAS 7 – Cash-
flow statements, indirect method. The cash flows of foreign subsidia-
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ries are translated at average exchange rates. Changes in the Group 
structure, acquisitions and divestments, are reported net, excluding 
cash and cash equivalents, under “Acquisitions and divestments of 
subsidiaries” and are included in cash flow from investing activities.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share before dilution are calculated by dividing net profits 
for the year attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders by the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

DIVIDEND
Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are not deducted from 
distributable earnings until the dividend has been approved by the 
General Meeting.

NEW AND REVISED IFRS STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
THAT WILL BE APPLIED IN FORTHCOMING PERIODS
New and revised IFRS standards and interpretations
From 1 January 2007, the Group has applied IFRS 7– Financial instru-
ments: Disclosure and the supplementary amendment to IAS 1 – 
Presentation of financial statements. IFRS 7 entails expanded disclo-
sure requirements regarding the significance of financial instruments 
for the Group’s financial position and results and the nature and 
extent of the risks that derive from the financial instruments. The 
amendment in IAS 1 involves new disclosure requirements regarding 
the extent of external financing and the company’s goal, policy and 
methods for the management of capital. 

Four interpretations issued by the IASB’s International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) are obligatory for the 
2007 financial year. These are: IFRIC 7 – Applying the Restatement 
Approach under IAS 29 – Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary 
Economies; IFRIC 8 – Scope of Application of IFRS 2; IFRIC 9 – 
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and  IFRIC 10 – Interim 
Financial Reporting and Impairment. Corporate management deems 
that the introduction of these interpretations will not entail any signifi-
cant financial effect on the Group’s financial reports.

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has issued the 
following new and revised standards. These had not yet taken effect 
when this annual report was prepared.

Standard Effective from financial year 
beginning:

IFRS 8 – Operating segments 1 January 2009 or later 

Amendment to IFRS 2 – Share-
based payment *

1 January 2009 or later

Amendment to IAS 1 – 
Presentation of financial state-
ments *

1 January 2009 or later

Amendment to IAS 23 – 
Borrowing costs *

1 January 2009 or later

Amendment to IAS 32 –Financial 
instruments: Classification * 

1 January 2009 or later

Amendment to IFRS 3 – 
Business combinations

1 July 2009 or later 

Amendment to IAS 27 – 
Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements *

1 July 2009 or later

The IASB’s International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (IFRIC) has issued the following new interpretations, 
which have not yet taken effect.

Interpretation Effective from financial year 
beginning:

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2: Group and 
Treasury Share Transactions

1 March 2007 or later

IFRIC 12 Service Concession 
Arrangements *

1 January 2008 or later

IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty pro-
grams 

1 July 2008 or later 

IFRIC 14 The limit on a defined-
benefit asset, minimum funding 
requirements and their interac-
tion 

1 January 2008 or later 

* Not yet approved for application by the EU.

The above new and amended standards and interpretations have not 
yet been applied. The company has not yet investigated how the 
introduction of these new standards and interpretations will affect the 
Group’s financial reports. 

2	 NET SALES PER REVENUE CLASSIFICATION

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Product sales 	 12 244	 9 722	 8 920
Spare parts 	 1 682	 1 542	 1 331
Service assignments 	 1 718	 1 573	 1 445
Leasing 	 801	 164	 184
Total  	 16 445	 13 001	 11 880
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3	 SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting is prepared in accordance with the same principles as described in the section concerning Group reporting. Throughout the 
world, Getinge’s operations are organised into three business areas: Medical Systems, Infection Control and Extended Care. These business areas 
form the basis for the Group’s segment information. Getinge’s operation is controlled and reports primarily by business area and secondarily, by 
geographical areas. Business terms and conditions as well as market-regulated pricing apply for delivery of products and services between Group 
companies. No sales are conducted between the various business areas in the Group.

THE REPORTING SEGMENTS CONDUCT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:
Medical Systems: Supplies complete systems for surgical workstations, as well as products for cardiac surgery and intensive care. The product 
range comprises surgical workstations, ventilators and heart-lung machines with related disposables, service and consulting. Production is conduc-
ted at eight plants in five countries. Sales are conducted through 28 sales companies and through distributors in markets where the business area 
has no representation.

Infection Control: Supplies complete systems to prevent the onset and spread of infection. The product range comprises disinfectors, sterilizers, 
documentation systems and related equipment, as well as service and consulting. Production is conducted at 12 plants in seven countries. Sales 
are conducted through 26 sales companies and through distributors in markets where the business area has no representation.

Extended Care: Supplies systems for hygiene and the transfer of the elderly and disabled, as well as products that prevent and treat pressure 
sores. The product range comprises bath and shower solutions, lifting equipment and mattresses for the treatment and prevention of pressure 
sores, as well as service and consulting. Production is conducted at ten plants in eight countries. Sales are conducted through 35 sales companies 
and through distributors in markets where the business area has no representation.

	 Net sales 	 Operating profit 	 Depreciation	

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005

Medical Systems	 6 078	 5 542	 5 109	 1 033	 889	 782	 159	 140	 132
Infection Control	 4 358	 4 262	 3 745	 625	 552	 511	 105	 113	 107
Extended Care	 6 009	 3 183	 2 982	 624	 488	 506	 419	 81	 89
Other 	 –	 14	 44	 –	 7	 4	 –	 –	 1
Total  	 16 445	 13 001	 11 880	 2 282	 1 936	 1 803	 683	 334	 329 
 

									       

	 Assets 	 Liabilities 	 Net investments   

			   in fixed assets	

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005

Medical Systems	 9 204	 7 206	 6 974	 2 036	 1 696	 1 406	 408	 326	 226
Infection Control	 3 933	 3 724	 3 750	 1 150	 1 079	 1 094	 153	 47	 108
Extended Care	 8 131	 2 382	 2 463	 1 099	 512	 624	 220	 -9	 58
Other 	 –	 1	 12	 1	 3	 7	 –	 –	 –
Total segment assets/liabilities  	 21 268	 13 313	 13 199	 4 286	 3 290	 3 131	 781	 364	 392
Undistributed assets/liabilities	 1 723	 2 564	 1 334	 12 083	 6 582	 6 021	 –	 –	 –
Total  	 22 991	 15 877	 14 533	 16 369	 9 872	 9 152	 781	 364	 392

GEOGRAPHIC AREA
Getinge’s business activities are reported secondarily by geographic area. The geographic areas’ consolidation is conducted in accordance with the 
same principles as for the Group in its entirety.
								      

	 Net sales 	 Operation profit 

SEK m				    2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005

Europe				    9 656	 7 218	 6 706	 1 476	 1 388	 1 307
US and Canada 				    4 223	 3 824	 3 436	 649	 469	 416
Asia and Australia				    2 017	 1 492	 1 429	 152	 71	 71
Other countries 				    549	 467	 309	 5	 8	 9
Total 				    16 445	 13 001	 11 880	 2 282	 1 936	 1 803

								      

	 Assets	 Investments in 

		  fixed assets	

SEK m				    2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005

Europe				    16 572	 9 965	 9 518	 642	 316	 345
US and Canada 				    3 019	 2 425	 2 737	 86	 31	 19
Asia and Australia				    1 032	 615	 657	 41	 13	 25
Other countries 				    645	 308	 287	 12	 4	 3
Total geographic market 				    21 268	 13 313	 13 199	 781	 364	 392
Undistributed assets 				    1 723	 2 564	 1 334	 -	 -	 -
Total				    22 991	 15 877	 14 533	 781	 364	 392
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4	 DEPRECIATION ACCORDING TO PLAN

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Buildings and land improvements 	 -57	 -44	 -45
Machinery and other technical plants 	 -91	 -73	 -70
Equipment, tools and installations 	 -137	 -105	 -134
Equipment for rental	 -178	 -28	 -26
Total depreciation,  
tangible fixed assets 	 -463	 -250	 -275
Goodwill	 0	 0	 0
Capitalised development costs 	 -58	 -41	 -22
Patents	 -6	 -6	 -5
Customer relations 	 -54	 -8	 -6
Technical competence 	 -29	 -10	 -9
Trademarks 	 -43	 -7	 -3
Agreements 	 -6	 -6	 -2
Other 	 -24	 -6	 -7
Total depreciation of  
intangible fixed assets 	 -220	 -84	 -54
Total depreciation of fixed assets 	 -683	 -334	 -329

Cost of goods sold 	 -393	 -202	 -185
Selling expenses 	 -180	 -62	 -65
Administrative expenses 	 -91	 -55	 -68
Research and development costs 	 -19	 -15	 -11
Total 	 -683	 -334	 -329

5	 AUDITING

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Fees to Deloitte AB:			 
Auditing assignments 	 16	 10	 9
Other assignments 	 20	 18	 13

Deloitte is the Company’s auditor. Auditing assignments refer to the 
auditing of the annual report and accounts, including the Board’s and 
the President’s administration, other assignments that the company’s 
auditors are required to perform and advice or other support brought 
about by observations from auditing or conducting similar tasks. 
Other assignments refer mainly to advice concerning auditing and 
taxation issues as well as assistance in connection with corporate 
acquisitions.

6 Exchange rate GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Exchange rate differences were reported in the income statement as 
follows:
SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Other operating income 	 8	 11	 3
Interest income and other  
similar profit items (note 7) 	 –	 –	 1
Interest expenses and  
similar loss items (note 8)	 -2	 –	 –
Total 	 6	 11	 4

7	 INTEREST INCOME AND SIMILAR PROFIT ITEMS

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Interest income *	 40	 16	 23
Currency gains	 –	 –	 1
Others	 2	 2	 2
Total  	 42	 18	 26

*All interest income is attributable to financial assets not valued at fair 
value in the income statement.

8	 INTEREST EXPENSES AND SIMILAR LOSS ITEMS

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Interest expenses*	 -528	 -211	 -212
Currency losses 	 -2	 –	 –	
Others 	 -19	 -15	 -15
Total  	 -549	 -226	 -227

*All interest expenses are attributable to financial expenses not valued 
at fair value in the income statement.

9	 TAXES

Tax cost, SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Actual tax cost 	 -623	 -532	 -376
Deferred tax 	 109	 63	 -76
Total tax cost 	 -514	 -469	 -452

In Sweden, tax on profit for the year was calculated at 28%. In other 
countries, tax was calculated in accordance with local tax rates. 

The relationship between the year’s  
tax costs and the reported profit  
before tax: SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Reported profit before tax 	 1 775	 1 728	 1 602
Tax according to current tax rate 28% 	 -497	 -484	 -449
Adjustment of tax costs  
from earlier years 	 -16	 22	 22
Tax effect of non-deductible costs	 -105	 -33	 -14
Tax effect of non-taxable income 	 17	 11	 12
Utilised loss carryforwards  
not previously capitalised 	 27	 20	 4
Changed value of  
temporary differences 	 73	 53	 -14
Adjustment for tax rates  
in foreign subsidiaries 	 -13	 -58	 -13
Reported tax cost 	 -514	 -469	 -452

Deferred tax assets relate to the  
following temporary differences  
and loss carryforwards: SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Deferred tax assets relating to:
  Temporary differences in  
  fixed assets 	 118	 90	 119
  Temporary differences in  
  long-term financial receivables 	 1	 9	 20
  Temporary differences in  
  current assets 	 154	 69	 78
  Deductible temporary  
  differences in provisions 	 160	 175	 234
  Loss carryforwards 	 309	 349	 311
  Other deductible  
  temporary differences 	 118	 38	 37
Deferred tax liabilities relating to:
Temporary differences in fixed assets 	 -97	 -98	 -97
Deferred tax on untaxed reserve 	 -29	 -20	 -39
Other taxable temporary differences 	 -81	 -46	 -66
Deferred tax assets, net 	 653	 566	 597
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Deferred tax liabilities relate to  
the following temporary differences  
and loss carryforwards, SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Deferred tax assets relating to:
  Temporary differences  
  in fixed assets 	 -319	 -	 4
  Temporary differences  
  in current assets 	 18	 4	 -
  Deductible temporary differences  
  in provisions 	 42	 -	 2
  Loss carryforwards	 -	 1	 -
  Other deductible  
  temporary differences 	 15	 9	 7
Deferred tax liabilities relating to:
  Temporary differences in  
  fixed assets 	 -130	 -82	 -72
  Temporary differences in  
  current assets 	 -4	 -2	 -3
  Deferred tax on untaxed reserves 	 -3	 -2	 -3
  Other taxable temporary differences 	 -9	 -8	 -10
Deferred tax liabilities, net 	 -390	 -80	 -75

Maturity structure for  
loss carryforwards, SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Due within 1 year 	 1	 1	 –
Due within 2 years 	 –	 –	 –
Due within 3 years 	 3	 1	 1
Due within 4 years 	 –	 –	 –
Due within 5 years 	 –	 –	 –
Due in more than 5 years 	 –	 23	 77
No due date 	 305	 325	 233
Total	 309	 350	 311

Non-reported tax assets, SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Temporary differences 	 6	 7	 10
Loss carryforwards 	 551	 508	 602
Total 	 557	 515	 612

It has been assessed that the non-reported tax assets cannot be uti-
lised in the foreseeable future.

Getinge is currently involved in a tax dispute regarding claimed 
deductible losses of SEK 1,600 m, on which there is a tax impact of 
SEK 448 m. The tax authorities have refused to allow the deduction 
and Getinge has therefore appealed against this decision and the 
case is expected to be concluded during 2009 at the earliest. Taking 
into account the above, no tax asset has been accounted for mea-
ning that if the deduction is ultimately refused there will be no negati-
ve impact on the Group’s result.

Taxable temporary differences exist for interests in subsidiaries. 
Because there are no plans to sell the companies in the foreseeable 
future, the deferred tax item was not reported. 

10	 DIVIDENDS

On 27 April 2007, shareholders were paid a dividend of SEK 2.20 per 
share (SEK 444 m in total) relating to 2006. On 27 April 2006, a divi-
dend of SEK 2.00 per share (SEK 404 m in total) was paid relating to 
2005.

The Board and the CEO propose to the Annual General Meeting that 
a dividend of SEK 2.40 per share be paid to shareholders, which 
amounts to SEK 485 m. The proposed record date is 22 April 2008. 
VPC anticipates that the dividend can be sent to the shareholders on 
25 April. The dividend for the 2007 financial year is not included 
among the company’s liabilities.

11	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share relating to the Parent 
Company’s shareholders, before and after dilution, is based on the 
following information:

Earnings (numerator) SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Earnings relating to the Parent  
Company’s shareholders, which form  
the basis for calculation of earnings  
per share before dilution	 1 260	 1 254	 1 139
Dilution effect of  
potential ordinary shares:	 –	 –	 –
Earnings relating to the Parent  
Company’s shareholders, which form  
the basis for calculation of earnings  
per share after dilution	 1 260	 1 254	 1 139

Number of shares  
(denominator)	 2007	 2006	 2005
Weighted average number of  
ordinary shares for calculation of  
earnings per share  
before dilution 	 201 873 920	 201 873 920	 201 873 920
Dilution effect of  
potential ordinary shares:	 –	 –	 –
Weighted average number of  
ordinary shares for calculation  
of earnings per share  
after dilution 	 201 873 920	 201 873 920	 201 873 920

The denominator used in the calculation of earnings per share rela-
ting to the Parent Company’s shareholders, both before and after 
dilution, has been adjusted taking into account the split that took 
place in 2003. 
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12	 FIXED ASSETS’ ACQUISITION VALUE, ETC.									 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, SEK m 

NON-AMORTISABLE  	 AMORTISABLE  
INTANGIBLE ASSETS	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
	 Goodwill	 Trademarks	 Capitalised  	 Intangible 	 Patents	 Customer 	 Technical 	 Trademarks	 Agreements 

			   development 	 assets,		  relations	 competence 

			   costs	 other

ACQUISITION VALUE										        
At 1 January 2006 	 5 552	 48	 329	 65	 92	 146	 104	 42	 42
Investments 	 136	 –	 198	 8	 –	 4	 8	 –	 1
Sale/disposals 	 -3	 –	 –	 -4	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Reclassifications 	 -1	 –	 2	 -2	 -1	 -4	 –	 -1	 9
Translation differences 	 -281	 -8	 -9	 -3	 -3	 -14	 -17	 -2	 -3
At 1 January 2007 	 5 403	 40	 520	 64	 88	 132	 95	 39	 49
Investments	 3 478	 –	 313	 35	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
In new companies at time of acquisition 	 5	 –	 –	 –	 –	 383	 167	 781	 –
Sale/disposals 	 –	 –	 -2	 -3	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Reclassifications	 –	 –	 -4	 146	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Translation differences 	 -72	 4	 9	 5	 3	 -10	 1	 -43	 –
At 31 December 2007	 8 844	 44	 836	 247	 91	 505	 263	 777	 49

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION										        
At 1 January 2006	 -742	 –	 -37	 -45	 -40	 -8	 -13	 -3	 -2
Amortisation for the year 	 –	 –	 -41	 -6	 -6	 -8	 -10	 -7	 -6
Sale/disposals	 3	 –	 –	 3	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Reclassifications 	 –	 –	 –	 3	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -1
Translation differences 	 43	 –	 1	 2	 1	 1	 3	 –	 1
At 1 January 2007	 -696	 –	 -77	 -43	 -45	 -15	 -20	 -10	 -8
Amortisation for the year 	 –	 –	 -58	 -24	 -6	 -54	 -29	 -43	 -6
In new companies at time of acquisition 	-14	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 -4	 –
Sale/disposals	 –	 –	 2	 2	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Reclassifications 	 –	 –	 5	 -104	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Translation differences 	 -6	 –	 -1	 -3	 -2	 –	 -2	 1	 –
At 31 December 2007	 -716	 –	 -129	 -172	 -53	 -69	 -51	 -56	 -14

Book value 31 December 2006	 4 707	 40	 443	 21	 43	 117	 75	 29	 41
Book value 31 December 2007	 8 128	 44	 707	 75	 38	 436	 212	 721	 35

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS, SEK m 

ACQUISITION VALUE			  Balance sheet  	 Investments	 Sale/ 	 Acquired  	 Reclass-	 Translation 	 Balance  

			   2006		  disposals	 and divested  	 ifications	 differences	 sheet   

						      operations			   2007

Buildings and land 1) 			   1 151	 81	 -19	 321	 102	 19	 1 655
Plant and Machinery 			   983	 87	 -27	 290	 28	 11	 1 372
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings			   998	 177	 -76	 476	 -135	 5	 1 445
Equipment for rental			   245	 176	 -97	 1 189	 –	 -43	 1 470
Constructions in progress 			   110	 58	 –	 16	 -120	 3	 67
Advance payments for tangible assets 			   24	 64	 –	 8	 -21	 1	 76
Total 			   3 511	 643	 -219	 2 300	 -146	 -4	 6 085

1) of which land amounts to SEK 128 m (81).

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 			  Balance sheet 	 This year’s	 Sale/	 Acquired 	 Reclass-	 Translation	 Balance 

			   2006	 depreciation 	 disposals	 and divested 	 ifications	 differences	 sheet  

						      operations			   2007

Buildings and land 			   -531	 -57	 6	 -55	 –	 -11	 -648
Plant and Machinery			   -705	 -91	 23	 -201	 2	 -5	 -977
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings			   -708	 -137	 62	 -351	 102	 3	 -1 029
Equipment for rental 			   -170	 -178	 78	 -868	 –	 34	 -1 104
Total 			   -2 114	 -463	 169	 -1 475	 104	 21	 -3 758

The total tax assessment value of the Group’s properties in Sweden amounts to SEK 117 m (121), of which SEK 19 m (21) is for land. Pledged fixed 
assets used as security for financial obligations are presented in note 19.
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Depreciation
Goodwill and intangible fixed assets with an indeterminate useful life 
are distributed among the cash-generating units, which are identified 
per business area.
	 2007	 2006	 2005
Infection Control	 688	 688	 709
Extended Care	 4 049	 730	 741
Medical Systems	 3 435	 3 329	 3 408
Total 	 8 172	 4 747	 4 858

Impairment testing of goodwill is conducted annually and whenever 
conditions indicate that impairment may be necessary. 

The recoverable value for cash-generating units is based on the cal-
culated value in use. For impairment-testing purposes, goodwill rela-
ting to acquisition is allocated to the various business areas and 
divisions that are separate cash-generating units.

Sensitivity analysis
Assumptions for which impairment testing is most sensitive:

Assumptions 
The value in use of goodwill and intangible fixed assets with an inde-
terminate useful life pertaining to Infection Control, Extended Care 
and Medical Systems was calculated based on discounted cash 
flows. For the first year, the cash flow is based on the budget deter-
mined by the Board, or in certain instances, a forecast, if the budget 
is out of date. The cash flows for the following four years are based 
on the company’s best assessment and growth comprises approx-
imately 5% for Infection Control and Medical Systems and approxima-
tely 6% for Extended Care. For subsequent periods, cash flow 
pertaining to this operation is estimated to have a growth correspon-
ding to 2%. This growth is based on reasonable prudence and does 
not exceed long-term growth for the industry as a whole.

A discount rate of 9.3% before tax was applied when calculating the 
value in use for all business areas.

Infection Control Extended Care Medical Systems

Carrying amount * 2 783 8 105 6 095

Recoverable value 6 756 10 296 10 734

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Growth rate between year two 
and year five decreases by 1%.

Growth rate decreases from 5% to 
4%, the change involves no impair-
ment requirement. The value in use 
decreases by SEK 179 m, but despite 
this, exceeds the carrying amount.

Growth rate decreases from 6% to 
5%, the change involves no impair-
ment requirement. The value in use 
decreases by SEK 482 m, but despite 
this, exceeds the carrying amount.

Growth rate decreases from 5% to 
4%, the change involves no impair-
ment requirement. The value in use 
decreases by SEK 439 m, but despite 
this, exceeds the carrying amount.

Growth rate after year five de-
creases by 1%.

Growth rate decreases from 2% to 
1%, the change involves no impair-
ment requirement. The value in use 
decreases by SEK 895 m, but despite 
this, exceeds the carrying amount.

Growth rate decreases from 2% 
to 1%, the change involves no 
impairment requirement. The value 
in use decreases by SEK 1,731 m, 
but despite this, exceeds the carrying 
amount.

Growth rate decreases from 2% 
to 1%, the change involves no 
impairment requirement. The value 
in use decreases by SEK 1,575 m, 
but despite this, exceeds the carrying 
amount.

Discount rate after tax increases 
by 1%.

Discount rate after tax increases from 
6.5% to 7.5%, the change involves 
no impairment requirement. The value 
in use decreases by SEK 1,546 m, 
but despite this, exceeds the carrying 
amount by a good margin.

Discount rate after tax increases from 
6.5% to 7.5%, the change involves 
no impairment requirement. The value 
in use decreases by SEK 2,987 m, 
but despite this, exceeds the carrying 
amount by a good margin.

Discount rate after tax increases from 
6.5% to 7.5%, the change involves 
no impairment requirement. The value 
in use decreases by SEK 2,719 m, 
but despite this, exceeds the carrying 
amount by a good margin.

*) The carrying amount corresponds with the segments’ net assets in note 3.

Intangible assets
There are only a small number of intangible assets, except for trademarks valued at SEK 44 m (40), for which the useful life has been designated as 
indeterminable. For the trademarks, there is no foreseeable limit for the time period during which the trademarks are expected to generate net reve-
nues for Getinge. 

The useful life for other intangible assets is three to 15 years. For strategic acquisitions, the useful life exceeds five years.
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13  STOCK-IN-TRADE

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Raw materials 	 1 326	 927	 893
Work in progress 	 302	 282	 277
Finished products 	 1 285	 874	 986
Total 	 2 913	 2 083	 2 156

Part of stock-in-trade valued at fair  
value less sales value 	 15	 18	 30
Depreciation of stock-in-trade reported  
as an expense in the income statement	 -33	 -30	 -38

14 	ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

SEK m		  2007	 2006
Accounts receivable before provision		  4 940	 3 868
Provision against bad debts		  -184	 -145
Total 		  4 756	 3 723

Accounts receivable net, after provisions for bad debts, theoretically 
constitutes maximum exposure for the calculated risk of losses. The 
reported value of accounts receivable represents the assessed fair 
value. It is the Group’s opinion that there is no significant concentra-
tion of accounts receivable on any single client or in any market. 
Letters of credit or equivalent guarantees cover sales to countries 
outside the OECD.

As per 31 December 2007, accounts receivable amounting to SEK 
4,756 m (3,723) had fallen due without the need to recognise any 
impairment loss. These relate to a number of independent customers 
that have previously not had any payment difficulties. A maturity ana-
lysis of these accounts receivable is presented below: 

SEK m 		  2007	 2006
Fallen due 1-30 days 		  794	 585
Fallen due 31-60 days 		  319	 222
Fallen due 61-90 days 		  220	 160
Fallen due, more than 90 days		  609	 596
Total		  1 942	 1 563

At 31 December 2007, the Group reported accounts receivable in 
which there is a need to recognise an impairment loss of SEK 184 m 
(145). A provision has been made for all of these accounts receivable. 
A maturity analysis of these is presented below:  

SEK m 		  2007	 2006
Not fallen due 		  -18	 -10
Fallen due 1-30 days 		  -2	 -2
Fallen due 31-60 days 		  -3	 -3
Fallen due 61-90 days 		  -2	 -4
Fallen due, more than 90 days		  -159	 -126
Total		  -184	 -145

Reported amounts, by currency, for the Group’s accounts receivable 
are as follows:

SEK m 		  2007	 2006
EUR		  2 487	 2 059
GBP		  1 014	 848
CAD		  479	 258
USD		  174	 160
SEK		  75	 120
Other currencies		  711	 423
Total		  4 940	 3 868

Changes in provisions for bad debts are as follows: 

SEK m 		  2007	 2006
At 1 January 		  -145	 -152
In new companies at time of acquisition 		  -38	 -3
Change for the year reported in the  
income statement		  -17	 -37
Receivables written off during the  
year that cannot be recovered 		  19	 41
Reclassifications		  -1	 -4
Exchange rate gains/losses on  
receivables in foreign currencies		  -2	 10
At 31 December   		  -184	 -145

15  PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Accrued income 	 227	 31	 49
Prepaid financial expenses 	 18	 19	 12
Prepaid rental expenses 	 13	 15	 16
Prepaid insurance expenses 	 26	 27	 27
Prepaid commissions 	 18	 3	 2
Accrued interest income 	 1	 1	 1
Other prepaid expenses  
and accrued income 	 140	 103	 102
Total  	 443	 199	 209

16	 SHARE CAPITAL

Class of shares 	 A	 B	 Total
Par value per share	 0,50	 0,50
Number of shares outstanding: 
1 January 2007 	 13 502 160	 188 371 760	 201 873 920
31 December 2007	 13 502 160	 188 371 760	 201 873 920
Share’s voting rights in % 	 41,8	 58,2	 100,0

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the company’s share 
capital shall amount to not less than SEK 75 m and not more than 
SEK 300 m. Within these limits, the share capital can be raised or 
lowered without requiring a change in the Articles of Association. The 
maximum number of shares is 600 million. One series A share carries 
ten votes and one series B share carries one vote. Both classes of 
share have the same par value, which is SEK 0.50. At 1 December 
2007, the company’s share capital totalled SEK 100.1 m (100.1).

17	 UNUTILISED OVERDRAFT FACILITIES & CREDIT FACILITIES

At 31 December 2007, the total granted, unutilised overdraft facilities 
were SEK 755 m (465 m). In addition, there were unutilised short-term 
credit facilities of SEK 1,433 m (2,339 m) and committed, unutilised 
facilities for long-term credit, which may be utilised without qualifica-
tion, of SEK 1,790 m (2,116). 

In addition to the above-mentioned credit facilities, the Group entered 
into a separate acquisition credit agreement for SEK 6,250 m to 
finance the acquisition of the Cardiac Surgery and Vascular Surgery 
divisions from Boston Scientific Inc. The agreement extends to July 
2009 and the company plans to refinance the loan in 2008.
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18	 THE GROUP’S INTEREST-BEARING NET DEBT AND LIQUIDITY RISK

SEK m 	 2007	 Change 	 2006	 Change 	 2005	 Change 	 2004

Short-term liabilities to credit institutions 	 67	 33	 34	 29	 5	 –	 5
Long-term liabilities to credit institutions 	 9 146	 4 762	 4 384	 280	 4 104	 410	 3 694
Interest-rate/currency derivatives – hedging of fair value  	 242	 51	 191	 202	 -11	 -11	 –
Pension liabilities, interest-bearing 	 1 805	 166	 1 639	 -51	 1 690	 199	 1 491
Cash and cash equivalents 	 -894	 -221	 -673	 11	 -684	 -199	 -485
Total  	 10 366	 4 791	 5 575	 471	 5 104	 399	 4 705

Liquidity risk
At 31 December 2007, the Group’s long-term interest-bearing liabilities amounted to SEK 9,146 m, which is included in the company’s medium-term 
committed credit facilities of EUR 810 m and a private placement of USD 232 m and EUR 15 m, respectively, conducted in 2003, and a bond issue 
amounting to SEK 500 m implemented in 2007. The fair value of interest-bearing loans, excluding the pension liability, amounted to approximately 
SEK 9,213 m. 

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and net settled derivative instruments that comprise financial liabilities, subdivided into the 
periods remaining on the balance sheet date until the agreed date of maturity. The amounts stated in the table comprise contractual, undiscounted 
cash flows.

At 31 December 2007 	 Less than 1 year		 Between 1 and 2 years		 Between 2 and 5 years  	 More than 5 years 

Bank loans and bond loans (including interest) 	 514		  1 062		  8 521		  897
Derivative instruments (net flows) 	 3		  4		  11		  –
Accounts payable	 1 418		  –		  –		  –
Total 	 1 935		  1 066		  8 532		  897

19	 Leasing						 

FINANCE LEASES, SEK M 	 Leasing fees, 	 Present value of 
	 minimum	 financial leasing
		  2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005
Future payments:							     
  Due within 1 year 		  10	 9	 13	 9	 7	 11
  Due within 2 to 5 years 		  16	 22	 36	 15	 21	 33
  Due within 2 to 5 years 		  15	 14	 17	 15	 14	 17
Total 		  41	 45	 66	 39	 42	 61
Less interest charges 		  -2	 -3	 -5	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a
Present value of future minimum leasing fees 		  39	 42	 61	 39	 42	 61
Less short-term portion 					     -9	 -8	 -11
Payments due after more than one year 					     30	 34	 50

The interest rate is determined when the contract is entered into. All leasing agreements have fixed repayments and no agreement exists with vari-
able fees. The fair value of Getinge’s leasing obligations corresponds with their carrying amount. Assets under financial leases are burdened with 
ownership restrictions to the lessor.

FIXED ASSETS HELD THROUGH			   Buildings  	  	 Machines 		  Equipment   
FINANCIAL LEASES			   and land		  and plant		  and tools
Acquisition value 			   107		  3		  5
Accumulated depreciation 			   -50		  -3		  -3
Book value 			   57		  –		  2

OPERATING LEASES 
Leasing costs for assets held via operating leases such as leased  
premises, machinery and mainframe computers and office  
equipment are recorded among operating costs.					     2007	 2006	 2005
Costs relating to operating leases 					     179	 131	 123

ON THE Balance sheet DATE, FUTURE LEASING FEES FOR  
NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASING AGREEMENTS  
AMOUNTED TO THE FOLLOWING: 					     2007	 2006	 2005
Due within 1 year 					     141	 107	 112
Due within 2 to 5 years 					     145	 150	 170
Due in more than 5 years 					     34	 21	 15
Total					     320	 278	 297

GETINGE AS A LESSOR UNDER OPERATING LEASES: 					     2007	 2006	 2005
Due within 1 year 					     4	 2	 3
Due within 2 to 5 years 					     1	 1	 1
Total					     5	 3	 4
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20	 RESTRUCTURING RESERVES 

SEK m 				    Huntleigh	 Siemens LSS	 Other 	 Total

Value according to balance sheet 2005				    –	 9	 1	 10
Utilised funds 				    –	 –	 -1	 -1
Value according to balance sheet 2006				    –	 9	 –	 9
Provisions*				    257	 –	 –	 257
Utilised funds 				    -186	 -9	 –	 -195
Value according to balance sheet 2007				    71	 –	 –	 71

Production restructuring that has been implemented and announced relates to a major part of Huntleigh’s production that was located in the UK 
and the US and has been moved to the new plant in Poland. In mid-January, the business area initiated negotiations with employee representatives 
concerning the relocation of the remaining production in Luton to China, and the relocation of production at the plant in Ipswich to Poland. 

*Provisions relate to the integration of sales companies in the amount of SEK 104 m, restructuring of production in the amount of SEK 127 m and 
the closure of Huntleigh’s head office in the amount of 26 m. 

21	 OTHER PROVISIONS

Opening 
balance 

Provisions Utilised 
funds 

In new com-
panies on 
acquisition 

Unutilised 
funds resto-
red

Reclassi-
fications 

Translation 
differences 

Closing 
balance 

Guarantee reserve 168 106 -82 3 -17 – 4 182

Part-time retirement, 
German company 

73 8 -21 – – – 3 63

Severance pay and 
other employee-related 
provisions 

21 34 -11 – -4 – 1 41

Other provisions 103 128 -64 9 -17 -1 5 163

Total 365 276 -178 12 -38 -1 13 449

SEK m 2007 2006 2005

Opening balance 365 349 383

Provisions 276 189 162

Utilised funds -178 -137 -186

In new companies on acquisition 12 – 9

Unutilised funds restored -38 -17 -8

Reclassifications -1 – -34

Translation differences 13 -19 23

Closing balance 449 365 349

The closing carrying amount is divided as follows: 	 Expected timing of outflow
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Guarantee reserve 182 168 168 128 51 3 – 182

Part-time retirement, German company 63 73 83 19 36 7 1 63

Severance pay and other employee-related provisions 41 21 18 29 12 – – 41

Other provisions 163 103 80 85 42 11 25 163

Total 449 365 349 261 141 21 26 449

In addition, guarantees have been provided for SEK 156 m (152), discounted bills receivable for SEK 15 m (20) and other contingent liabilities for 
SEK 26 m (3). Since it has been deemed that these obligations will not give rise to any outflow, no provisions have been made. The guarantee reser-
ve is based on commitments that were not completed at the end of balance sheet date. The calculation is based on earlier experiences. Provisions 
for part-time retirement in the German companies are determined using actuarial assumptions. The point in time for the utilisation of provisions in 
accordance with the above is based on the company’s best forecast using the information that was available at the balance sheet date. The above 
amounts were not discounted, since the discounting effect has been deemed relatively insignificant for the period up to three years. The amounts 
are insignificant for the Group after three years.
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22	 PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

DEFINED-CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES
In many countries, the Group’s employees are covered by defined-
contribution pension  schemes. The pension schemes primarily inclu-
de old-age pensions. The premiums are paid continuously during the 
year by the respective Group companies to separate legal entities, 
such as insurance companies. Certain employees pay a portion of 
the premiums themselves. The size of the premium paid by the 
employees and Group companies is normally based on a certain pro-
portion of the employee’s salary.

DEFINED-BENEFIT SCHEMES
Getinge has defined-benefit schemes in a number of countries such 
as Sweden, Germany and the UK. The pension schemes primarily 
comprise old-age pensions. Each employer normally has an obliga-
tion to pay a life-long pension, earned according to the number of 
employment years. The employee must be affiliated with the scheme 
for a certain number of years to achieve full entitlement to old-age 
pension. The pension is financed through payments from the respec-
tive Group company and, in some cases, the employees. Pension 
commitments are usually calculated at year-end after actuarial 
assumptions. New calculations are made if substantial changes occur 
during the year. 

Gains and losses of changed actuarial assumptions are booked even-
ly over the employees’ remaining employment period to the extent 
that the total gain or loss of certain pension schemes falls beyond a 
corridor equal to 10% of the highest of either the pension commit-
ment or the fair value of the plan assets. 

The net value of the defined-benefit commitment is detailed below:
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31 December 2007 

Present value of 
commitments 

-1 070 -1 627 -2 697

Fair value of plan assets 892 – 892

Unreported actuarial gains 
and losses (-) 

-54 -81 -135

Net liability in the 
balance sheet 

-232 -1 708 -1 940

31 December 2006 

Present value of 
commitments 

-460 -1 561 -2 021

Fair value of plan assets 382 – 382

Unreported actuarial gains 
and losses (-) 

-34 -56 -90

Net liability in the 
balance sheet 

-112 -1 617 -1 729

31 December 2005

Present value of 
commitments 

-417 -1 613 -2 030

Fair value of plan assets 340 – 340

Unreported actuarial gains 
and losses (-) 

-35 -24 -59

Net liability in the 
balance sheet 

-112 -1 637 -1 749

SEK m 2007 2006 2005
Pension commitments
Opening balance -2 021 -2 030 -1 765
In new companies at time of acqui-
sition 

-605 – –

Benefits earned during the year -72 -55 -37
Interest expenses -133 -93 -89
Paid benefits 92 70 75
Actuarial gains (+) / losses (-) 56 21 -123
Exchange rate differences -14 66 -91
Closing balance -2 697 -2 021 -2 030
Plan assets
Opening balance 382 340 266
In new companies at time of acqui-
sition 

474 – –

Expected return on plan assets 62 23 17
Contributions by employer 35 17 14
Paid funds -15 – -8
Difference between actual and 
expected return on plan assets 

-5 9 29

Exchange rate differences -41 -7 22
Closing balance 892 382 340
Return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets 62 23 17
Difference between actual and 
expected return on plan assets 

-5 9 29

Actual return 57 32 46
Plan assets comprise the following fair 
value on the balance sheet date
Shares and participations 640 236 263
Interest-bearing securities, etc. 252 146 77
Total 892 382 340
Provision for pension commitments
Opening balance -1 729 -1 749 -1 622
In new companies at time of acqui-
sition 

-130 – –

Reclassification – – -23
Pension expenses, defined-benefit 
schemes, excluding interest 

-4 -37 -21

Interest expenses, defined-benefit 
schemes 

-133 -93 -89

Paid benefits 92 70 75
Contributions by employer 35 17 14
Paid funds -15 – -8
Exchange rate differences -56 63 -75
Closing balance -1 940 -1 729 -1 749
The total pension expenses for pension 
plans are detailed below:
Pensions earned during the year 72 55 37
Expected return on plan assets -62 -23 -17
Amortisation of actuarial gains (-) / 
losses (+) brought forward 

– -2 1

Other expenses 4 15 –
Pension expenses, defined-benefit 
schemes 

14 45 21

Pension premiums for 
defined-contribution and pay as 
you go schemes*

249 169 169

Pension expenses excluding inte-
rest 

263 214 190

Interest on pension provisions 133 93 89
Total pension expenses 396 307 279

*) Of which, the expense for Alecta insurance is SEK 15 m (18)
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ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
The actuarial calculations used to estimate pension commitments and 
pension expenses are based on the following assumptions. These 
assumptions are weighted in relation to the size of the pension plan. If 
the assumptions are changed, it affects the pension commitment’s 
size, funding requirements and pension expense.

Weighted average, % 2007 2006 2005
Rate for discounting liabilities 5,0 4,7 4,7
Expected salary increase rate 3,2 3,1 3,0
Expected return on plan assets 6,9 7,0 6,9
Expected inflation 2,4 2,7 1,6

INFORMATION ABOUT REPORTING DEFINED-BENEFIT PENSION 
SCHEMES COVERING SEVERAL EMPLOYERS, ALECTA
The commitment for old-age pensions and survivor pensions for 
employees in Sweden is safeguarded through insurance with Alecta. 
According to a statement from the Swedish Financial Accounting 
Standards Council, URA 42, this is a defined-benefit multi-employer 
scheme. For the financial year 2007, the company did not have 
access to such information that makes it possible to report this plan 
as a defined-benefit scheme. The pension scheme in accordance 
with ITP, which is safeguarded through insurance with Alecta, is the-
refore reported as a defined-contribution scheme. The year’s fees for 
pension insurance covered by Alecta amount to SEK 15 m (18). 
Alecta’s surplus can be distributed to the insurers and /or the insured. 
At the close of 2007, Alecta’s surplus in the form of the collective 
consolidation level was approximately 152% (143). The collective con-
solidation level comprises the market value of Alecta’s assets as a 
percentage of the insurance commitment calculated in accordance 
with Alecta’s actuarial calculation assumption, which does not coinci-
de with IAS 19.

23  ACCRUED EXPENSES AND PREPAID INCOME

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Salaries	 511	 438	 398
Social securities expenses 	 154	 107	 119
Commissions 	 57	 74	 54
Interest expenses 	 30	 23	 17
Consultancy fees 	 26	 27	 39
Other accrued expenses  
and prepaid income 	 583	 426	 366
Total  	 1 361	 1 095	 993

24	 PLEDGED ASSETS 

Pledged assets, SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Property mortgages 	 –	 –	 7
Floating charges 	 8	 2	 3
Assets burdened with  
ownership restrictions 	 59	 61	 77
Total 	 67	 63	 87

The assets burdened with ownership restrictions serve as security for 
interest-bearing liabilities to credit institutions.

25	 ACQUIRED COMPANIES

HUNTLEIGH TECHNOLOGY PLC 
At 31 December 2006, the Getinge Group had acquired 21.52% of 
the total shares in Huntleigh Technology Plc. In January 2007, the 
remaining shares were acquired and the company was consolidated 
from 1 February 2007. Huntleigh is active within the areas of special 
mattresses for the treatment of pressure ulcers, beds for intensive, 
specialist and elderly care, compression products that prevent the 
onset of thrombosis and facilitate the treatment of lymphedema and 
pressure ulcers, and equipment for obstetric and vascular diag-

nostics. The total acquisition price amounted to SEK 5,631 m. The 
acquisition was reported in accordance with the purchase method. 
The costs relating to the acquisition totalled SEK 66 m.  

Acquired net assets and goodwill in  
connection with the acquisition, SEK m 
Net assets 	 Balance sheet at  	 Adjust- 	 Fair   
	 time of acquisition 	 ments to 	 value 
		  fair value
Intangible assets 	 93	 1 299	 1 392
Tangible fixed assets 	 772	 49	 821
Stock-in-trade 	 454	 –	 454
Other current assets 	 849	 –	 849
Cash and cash equivalents 	 118	 –	 118
Provisions 	 -180	 –	 -180
Deferred tax liabilities 	 126	 -456	 -330
Short-term liabilities 	 -923	 –	 -923
Goodwill	 –	 –	 3 430
Total acquisition with cash  
and cash equivalents 			   5 631

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents due to acquisition
Cash and cash equivalents  
paid for acquisition 			   5 631
Cash and cash equivalents in the  
acquired company at the time of acquisition 			   -118
			   5 513

Goodwill generated in connection with the transaction is attributable 
to the integration synergies within the areas of customer base, geo-
graphic coverage, production, sales and distribution. If the acquisition 
of Huntleigh had been completed at the beginning of 2007, Getinge’s 
sales would have amounted to SEK 16,692 m and the operating profit 
to SEK 2,299 m. It is not practically feasible to specify profit genera-
ted by the acquisition since the acquisition date, since comprehensi-
ve integration work was conducted during the year.       

N.C. Nielsen Equipment A/S
On 31 October, Getinge acquired 100% of the shares in the Danish 
Company N.C. Nielsen Equipment A/S for SEK 23 m. The acquisition 
was reported in accordance with the purchase method.    

Acquired net assets and goodwill  
in connection with the acquisition, SEK m 
Net assets 	 Balance sheet at  	 Adjust-	 Fair   
	 time of acquisition 	 ments to 	 value 
		  fair value
Stock-in-trade 	 4	 –	 4
Other current assets 	 4	 –	 4
Short-term liabilities 	 -1	 –	 -1
Goodwill	 –	 –	 16
Total acquisition with cash  
and cash equivalents 			   23

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents due to acquisition
Cash and cash equivalents  
paid for acquisition 			   23	
Cash and cash equivalents in the  
acquired company at the time of acquisition 			   –
			   23

Goodwill generated in connection with the transaction is attributable 
to additional sales of Medical Systems’ products in Denmark. The 
company contributed SEK 7 m to consolidated sales and SEK 1 m to 
consolidated profit before tax. N.C. Nielsen Equipment A/S has been 
consolidated since November 2007. At 31 December 2007, the study 
regarding the division of the purchase consideration is in the prelimi-
nary stages, and accordingly, the above amounts may change.  
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26	 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Most of the Getinge Group’s operations are located outside of 
Sweden. This situation entails exposure to different types of financial 
risks that may cause fluctuations in profit/loss for the year, cash flow 
and shareholders’ equity due to changes in exchange rates and inte-
rest rates. In addition, the Group is exposed to refinancing and coun-
ter-party risks. The primary role of the Parent Company’s treasury 
unit is to support business activities and identify the best way of 
managing the Group’s financial risks in line with the Board’s establis-
hed finance policy. Getinge’s financial activities are centralised to 
benefit from economies of scale, to ensure good internal control and 
to facilitate follow-up of risk.

CURRENCY RISKS
Currency risks comprise exchange rate fluctuations, which have an 
impact on the Group’s earnings and shareholders’ equity. Currency 
exposure occurs in connection with payments in foreign currency 
(transaction exposure) and when translating foreign subsidiaries’ 
balance sheets and income statements into SEK (translation exposu-
re). For a sensitivity analysis, see page 53 in the Directors’ report.  
Transaction exposure. Payments as a result of sales income and 
expenses for goods sold in foreign currencies cause currency expo-
sure that affects Group profits in the event of exchange rate fluctua-
tions. The Group’s flow of foreign currencies consists mainly of the 
income generated by export sales. The most important currencies 
are USD, EUR, CAD and GBP. Getinge’s finance policy states that 
expected net invoicing in foreign currency for the coming six to 18 
months shall be hedged in its entirety. Hedging is carried out with the 
help of currency futures, currency swaps and currency options. The 
change in value with regard to currency derivatives reported in share-
holders’ capital, which meets the requirements for cash-flow hedging, 
amounted to an after-tax profit of SEK 14 m on 31 December 2007. 
The effects of the outstanding currency derivatives will affect profits 
in 2008 and 2009.
Translation risk – income statement. When translating the results of 
foreign subsidiaries into SEK, currency exposure occurs, which affec-
ts the Group’s earnings when exchange rates fluctuate.
Translation exposure – balance sheet. A currency exposure occurs 
when translating net assets of foreign subsidiaries into SEK, which 
can affect the consolidated shareholders’ equity. In accordance with 
the Group’s finance policy, to minimise the effects of this translation, 
the exposure arising shall be hedged using loans or currency derivati-
ves in the subsidiaries’ local currency.

INTEREST-RATE RISKS
Interest-rate risks are the changes in market interest rates that affect 
the Group’s net interest. How quickly interest-rate changes impact 
net interest depends on the fixed-interest term of the loans. At 31 
December 2007, the average fixed-interest term for Group borrowings 
was about three and a half months, which is well within the Group’s 
finance policy that states that the fixed-interest term for borrowings 
should be no more than two years. Interest derivatives, such as cur-
rency-swap agreements, are used to achieve the desired fixed-inte-
rest term for borrowings. If the average interest rate for currencies 
represented in the Group’s borrowings at the end of the year chan-
ged instantaneously by 1 percentage point, this would affect profits 
by +/- SEK 22.7 m on an annual basis. The maturity dates of the 
Group’s fixed-term interest-bearing assets and liabilities outstanding 
at year-end are as follows:

SEK m Less 
than 1 
year

Between 
1 and 2 
years 

Between 
2 and 5 
years 

More 
than 5 
years

Financial assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents 

894 – – –

Financial liabilities 
including derivative 
instruments 

9 455 – – –

Interest-bearing pension liability is not included above.

Financing and liquidity risk. Financing risk is seen as the risk to the 
cost being higher and financing opportunities limited as the loan is 
converted and that the ability to pay cannot be met as a result of 
insufficient liquidity or difficulties in securing finance. The Group’s 
cash and cash equivalents are invested short-term with the aim that 
any excess cash balances shall be used for amortising loans. The 
finance policy of the Group states that refinancing risks are managed 
by signing long-term committed credit agreements. At the end of 
2007, the Group had a committed credit facility of EUR 810 m. The 
agreement matures in April 2012. In 2003, the Group issued bonds 
worth USD 250 m in a US Private Placement to institutional investors. 
These bonds mature in 2008, 2010 and 2013, respectively. In 2007, 
Getinge implemented a bond issue valued at SEK 500 m in the 
Nordic market. In addition to these credit facilities, the Group uses 
short-term uncommitted credit lines.
	 In addition to the above-mentioned credit facilities, the Group has 
entered into a separate acquisition-credit agreement for SEK 6,250 m 
to finance the acquisition of the Cardiac Surgery and Vascular 
Surgery divisions from Boston Scientific Inc. The agreement extends 
to July 2009 and the company plans to refinance the loan in 2008.

CREDIT AND COUNTER-PARTY RISK
The Group’s financial transactions cause credit risks with regard to 
financial counter-parties. Credit risks or counter-party risks are the 
risks of losses if the counter parties do not meet their commitments. 
Getinge’s finance policy states that the credit risk shall be limited 
through accepting only creditworthy counter parties and fixed limits. 
At 31 December 2007, the total counter-party exposure in derivative 
instruments was a negative SEK 216 m. Credit risks in outstanding 
derivatives are limited by the off-set rules agreed with the respective 
counterparty. The Group’s liquidity is placed in bank accounts with 
negligible credit risks. Commercial credit risks are limited by a diver-
se, creditworthy customer base. The part of accounts receivable con-
sidered to be of risk was reserved and affected the operating profit.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 
Getinge uses financial derivative instruments to manage interest and 
currency exposure arising in its business. At 31 December 2007, all 
outstanding financial derivative instruments were held for hedging 
purposes and were deemed to be efficient. Consequently, hedge 
accounting was applied for these. 

Outstanding derivative instruments on 31 December 2007, SEK m

SEK m Nominal 
value

Carrying 
amount in 
income 
statement

Fair value

Interest/currency 
derivative* 

1 496 -2 -246

Interest derivative 1 308 1 4
Currency derivative 6 222 10 26
Total 9 026 9 -216

* Combined instrument

The nominal value in foreign currencies was valued at year-end clo-
sing rates. The carrying amount of the interest derivatives and combi-
ned instruments is made up of accrued interest.

Derivative instruments – fair value per category 

SEK m Asset Liability
Interest/currency derivative – fair-value 
hedges* 

– 246

Interest derivative – fair-value hedges – -4
Currency derivative – cash-flow hedges 96 73
Currency derivative – fair-value hedges 21 18
Total 117 333
Of which, short-term 109 70
Of which, long-term 8 263

			 
* Combined instruments
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Distribution of currency for outstanding derivative instruments

SEK m
AUD 205
CAD 166
CHF 63
CZK 49
DKK 78
EUR 2 798
GBP 1 527
HKD 10
HUF 13
JPY 216
NOK 44
NZD 11
PLN 198
SEK 1 235
SGD 5
SKK 11
TRY 15
USD 2 354
ZAR 28
Total 9 026

The nominal value is shown in the tables above and below. The com-
bined instruments are booked in the currency paid in these swaps.

Maturity profile of derivative instrument

SEK m 2008 2009 2010*
Interest/currency  
derivative** 

– 627 869

Interest derivative 1 065 – 242
Currency derivative 4 549 1 674 –
Total 5 614 2 301 1 111

* 	 Or later
** 	Combined instrument

27	  EMPLOYEE COSTS

GROUP, SEK m

		  2007			   2006			   2005	  

	 Board and 	 Other	 Total	 Board and 	 Other	 Totalt	 Board and 	 Other	 Total	

	 CEO 			   CEO			   CEO

Salaries and remuneration 	 260	 3 868	 4 128	 191	 2 860	 3 051	 164	 2 799	 2 963
Social security expenses 	 45	 754	 799	 34	 631	 665	 30	 621	 650
Pension costs 	 28	 235	 263	 24	 190	 214	 18	 172	 190
Total 	 333	 4 857	 5 190	 249	 3 681	 3 930	 212	 3 592	 3 804

SALARIES AND REMUNERATION PER COUNTRY, SEK m

		  2007				    2006				    2005		   

	 Board  	 Of which, 	 Other	 Total	 Board 	 Of which, 	 Other	 Total	 Board 	 Of which, 	 Other	 Total 

	 and CEO	 bonus 			   and CEO	 bonus 			   and CEO	 bonus 		

Australia	 2	 1	 79	 81	 1	 –	 28	 29	 1	 –	 24	 25
Austria	 4	 1	 25	 29	 3	 1	 21	 24	 3	 1	 20	 23
Belgium	 8	 2	 60	 68	 5	 2	 37	 42	 7	 3	 37	 44
Brazil	 5	 1	 8	 13	 4	 1	 2	 6	 1	 –	 2	 3
Canada	 16	 3	 123	 139	 16	 3	 107	 123	 7	 1	 104	 111
China	 3	 –	 23	 26	 3	 –	 16	 20	 3	 –	 11	 14
Czech Republic	 1	 –	 4	 5	 1	 –	 1	 2	 1	 –	 1	 1
Denmark	 4	 –	 69	 73	 4	 –	 44	 47	 3	 –	 46	 49
Finland	 1	 –	 10	 11	 1	 –	 8	 9	 1	 –	 8	 9
France	 34	 9	 305	 339	 31	 7	 246	 277	 22	 5	 207	 229
Germany	 33	 13	 825	 858	 27	 11	 726	 753	 26	 10	 696	 722
Holland	 9	 1	 113	 122	 6	 1	 84	 90	 8	 2	 80	 88
Hong Kong	 2	 1	 5	 7	 3	 –	 4	 7	 5	 1	 2	 7
India	 2	 –	 6	 8	 1	 –	 3	 4	 1	 –	 2	 3
Ireland	 1	 –	 21	 22	 1	 1	 20	 22	 1	 –	 24	 25
Italy	 4	 1	 64	 68	 4	 1	 61	 65	 4	 1	 60	 64
Japan	 5	 1	 30	 35	 6	 3	 29	 34	 7	 2	 28	 35
New Zealand	 –	 –	 3	 3	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Norway	 1	 –	 10	 11	 1	 –	 8	 9	 1	 –	 9	 10
Poland	 3	 1	 15	 18	 1	 –	 5	 6	 1	 –	 4	 5
Portugal	 1	 1	 6	 7	 1	 1	 6	 7	 –	 –	 6	 6
Russia	 1	 –	 8	 9	 1	 –	 6	 7	 1	 –	 6	 7
Singapore	 3	 1	 7	 10	 2	 1	 5	 7	 1	 –	 4	 5
Slovakia	 –	 –	 2	 2	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
South Africa	 4	 –	 10	 14	 –	 –	 1	 1	 –	 –	 3	 3
South Korea	 –	 –	 1	 1	 –	 –	 1	 1	 –	 –	 –	 –
Spain	 4	 1	 35	 39	 4	 1	 26	 30	 3	 1	 22	 24
Sweden	 36	 9	 532	 568	 28	 4	 485	 514	 26	 5	 466	 492
Switzerland	 5	 1	 57	 62	 4	 –	 49	 53	 6	 2	 53	 59
Turkey	 2	 1	 6	 8	 1	 –	 1	 2	 –	 –	 –	 –
UK	 43	 11	 665	 708	 20	 4	 239	 260	 10	 4	 306	 316
USA	 23	 4	 741	 764	 14	 4	 590	 603	 16	 3	 568	 584
Total	 260	 64	 3 868	 4 128	 191	 44	 2 860	 3 051	 164	 41	 2 799	 2 963
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REMUNERATION TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Principles: The Annual General Meeting decides on remuneration to the Chairman of the Board and its members. Employee representatives do not 
receive Board remuneration. Remuneration to the CEO and other senior management comprises basic pay, variable remuneration, other benefits as 
well as pensions. Other senior management are the seven persons, who together with the CEO, comprise Group management. For management 
structure, see page 46. The division between basic pay and variable remuneration should be in proportion to the manager’s level of responsibility 
and authority. The CEO’s variable remuneration is a maximum of 50% of the basic pay. Other managers’ variable remuneration is based on the 
result in relation to individually set goals. 

Remuneration and other 	 Basic pay	 Board 	 Variable  	 Other  	 Pension 	 Share-	 Other 	 Total 
benefits during 2007 (000s)		  fee*	 remune-	 benefits	 costs	 related  	 remune- 
	   		  ration			  remuneration	 ration
Chairman of Board 	 –	 775	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 775
Board Members 	 –	 2 225	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 2 225
CEO 	 10 000	 –	 5 000	 445	 6 994	 121	 28	 22 588
Other senior management ** 	 15 030	 –	 11 600	 881	 4 889	 1 063	 33	 33 496
Total	 25 030	 3 000	 16 600	 1 326	 11 883	 1 184	 61	 59 084

* 	 Also includes fees for work on Board committee
** 	 6 people

Comments on the table
• 	Variable remuneration refers to the 2007 financial year’s cost-

accounted bonus, paid out in 2008. For information on how bonu-
ses are calculated, please see below.

• 	Other benefits refer to company car, house, etc.
• 	The Chairman of the Board has not received any remuneration 

other than Board fees and remuneration for committee work.

The CEO has health insurance totalling 24.5% of the pensionable pay 
between 20-30 basic amounts and 32.5% of the pensionable pay that 
exceeds 30 basic amounts. The agreement is independent in relation 
to other pension benefits.
Bonus: The CEO’s bonus for 2007 was based on the individual goals 
set by the Board. The bonus amount for 2007 corresponded to 50% 
of basic pay. For other senior managers, bonuses for 2007 were 
based on a combination of the result of the individual’s area of 
responsibility and individual goals.
Pensions: Pension benefits for the CEO, not including the applicable 
ITP pension, are as follows: The CEO is entitled to a pension from the 
age of 60. The pension will be 70% of the pensionable pay between 
60 and 65 years. At 65 and thereafter, the pension will be 50% of the 
pensionable pay in excess of 20 basic amounts that the CEO recei-
ved from the company at age 60. Pensionable pay is considered to 
be the basic pay. Survivor annuity is 16.25% of the pensionable pay 
in excess of 20 basic amounts. Other senior management’s pension 
age varies between 60 and 65. Pension agreements have been sig-
ned in accordance with local legislation in the country where the 
manager resides. Subsequently, pension levels vary from 3-62% of 
the pensionable pay. All pension benefits are transferable, i.e. non-
conditional on future employment.
Severance pay: The period of notice for the CEO is six months. If ter-
mination of employment is on the part of the company then severan-
ce pay of 12 months’ pay will be awarded. Severance pay is not offset 
against any other income. Upon termination of employment of any 
other executive managers, they have the right to severance pay of a 
minimum of six months and a maximum of one year.
Drafting and decision making: During the year, the Remuneration 
Committee gave the Board its recommendations concerning remune-
ration principles for the remuneration of the executive management. 
The recommendations included the proportion between fixed and 
variable remuneration and the size of possible pay increases. The 
Remuneration Committee also proposed criteria for determining 
bonuses, allotment and the size of the pension conditions and seve-
rance pay. The Board discussed the Remuneration Committee’s pro-
posals and decided in line with the Remuneration Committee’s 
recommendations. Remuneration to the CEO for the 2007 financial 

year was decided by the Board taking into account the Remuneration 
Committee’s recommendations. Remuneration to other executive 
management was decided by the CEO in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Board. During 2007, the Remuneration Committee 
was convened twice. The committee’s work was conducted with the 
support of external experts in issues concerning remuneration levels 
and structures.

SYNTHETIC OPTIONS SCHEME 2004
In 2004, a synthetic options scheme was introduced in line with a 
decision made by the Annual General Meeting in 2004. The scheme 
entails the following main points: Some ten senior managers in the 
company’s US subsidiaries are entitled to receive a maximum of 
300,000 cash-settled options based on the company’s share value. 
In line with the principles below, the participants are entitled to each 
receive between 15,000 and 40,000 options. Conditional on conti-
nued employment, the participants are entitled to receive a 1/3 allot-
ment after one year, 1/3 after two years and 1/3 after three years. The 
options are not transferable. In the case of the option being exerci-
sed, participants are to receive a sum per option corresponding to 
the difference between 110% of the average value of the company’s 
share ten days before issuing the options (Issue Rate) and the market 
value of the company’s share at the time of exercise. However, the 
participants’ right to remuneration per option will, regardless of a hig-
her rise in the company’s share price, constitute a maximum amount 
corresponding to 100% of the Issue Rate. The participants are entit-
led to exercise their options as they are allocated and not later than 
four years after issuance. Based on an average value of the 
company’s share of SEK 80 and an annual 10% rise of the share 
price, exercise of 2/3 of the options after two years and 1/3 after 
three years, and that all participants remain employed for three years, 
the estimated costs for the option scheme amount to a total of SEK 
4,300,000. The Board’s reason for the proposal is that, given that a 
normal remuneration package for executive management in the US 
entails both a fixed salary as well as an incentive, it is necessary to 
introduce the present scheme to attract qualified employees to the 
company’s US operations.
	 In 2004, 145,000 of these options were allocated to executive 
management. The right to an allocation depends on a stipulated profit 
level being achieved by the individual companies. This profit level was 
not reached in 2004 or 2005, and accordingly, the options were forfe-
ited in accordance with the table below. The issue rate was SEK 85, 
the value of the options is calculated as the difference between SEK 
93.50 (110% of the issue value) and the share price in force on the 
day options are exercised.
	 In 2006, 95,000 of these options forfeited as above were alloca-
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ted to other members of executive management in the US. Also in 
this instance, the right to an allocation depends on a stipulated profit 
level being achieved. The issue rate was SEK 105.50, the value of the 
options is calculated as the difference between SEK 116.00 (110% of 
the issue value) and the share price in force on the day options are 
exercised.
	 The profit level in 2006 exceeded the stipulated level and accor-
dingly, no options were forfeited.

The average remaining period for the programme is approximately 
one year.

2007	 Number of 		  Average  
	 options 		  exercise price
Number at the beginning of the year 	143 333		  –
Allocated during the period 	 –		  –
Forfeited during the period 	 -10 000		  –
Redeemed during the period 	 -120 833		  159
Number at year-end 	 12 500		  –

2006	 Number of		  Average  
	 options		  exercise price
Number at the beginning of the year 	 –		  –
Allocated during the period 	 143 333		  108
Forfeited during the period 	 –		  –
Redeemed during the period 	 –		  –
Number at year-end 	 143 333		  –

2005	 Number of		  Average  
	 options		  exercise price
Number at the beginning of the year 	 –		  –
Allocated during the period  	 48 333		  93
Forfeited during the period 	 -48 333		  –
Number at year-end 	 –		  –

2004	 Number of		  Average  
	 options		  exercise price
Number at the beginning of the year 	 –		  –
Allocated during the period 	 48 333		  93
Forfeited during the period 	 -48 333		  –
Number at year-end 	 –		  –

2006 CALL OPTION PROGRAMME
The Annual General Meeting held on 20 April 2006 approved a call 
option programme for 2006 and permitted the company to issue and 
allot a maximum of 900,000 call options as follows.
Entitlement. Call options were offered to people who are permanent 
employees of the company and its subsidiaries in France, Sweden 
and Germany, in accordance with the following principles.
Category 1: The CEO of the company was offered call options that 
enable the acquisition of a maximum of 200,000 shares.
Category 2: Other senior executives (six persons) were offered call 
options that enable the acquisition of 100,000 shares per person. 
With respect to personnel outside Sweden, a prerequisite is that such 
allotment is legally permissible and that, in the opinion of the Board of 
Directors, allotment will be possible without undue administrative 
and/or financial pressure.
Exercise: The following number of call options were exercised: 
Category 1: The CEO of the company exercised call options that ena-
ble the acquisition of a maximum of 50,000 shares.
Category 2: In total, other senior executives (six persons) exercised 
call options that enable the acquisition of 95,000 shares.
Exercise period. Options allotted to employees resident in France 
and Sweden may be exercised for the purchase of shares during the 
period 1 April to 1 June 2008. Options allotted to employees resident 
in Germany may be exercised for the purchase of shares during the 
period 1 July 2006 to 1 June 2008.

CONSIDERATION AND EXERCISE PRICE. 
The options have been acquired for SEK 12.70, corresponding to a 
market price (premium) of 10% of the average closing price paid for 
Series B Getinge shares over a period of 10 trading days starting 
from 25 April 2006. The premium calculated in this manner was roun-
ded off to the closest full amount of SEK 0.10, whereby SEK 0.05 was 
rounded down.
	 The price per share that option holders will pay for acquiring one 
share on exercise of a call option (exercise price), which corresponds 
to the market price resulting from the established premium and a cal-
culation according to the accepted valuation model (Black & Scholes), 
amounts to SEK 129.50. The exercise price calculated in this manner 
was rounded off to the closest full amount of SEK 0.10, whereby SEK 
0.05 was rounded down. The valuation of the options was performed 
by an independent party, Wigforss Consulting.
	 The Board of Directors encourages participation in the incentive 
programme by undertaking to pay a cash bonus one month before 
the allotted options expire. This bonus will only be paid on condition 
that the options and/or the Series B shares acquired through the 
options are still held by the participant and that the participant is still 
an employee of the Getinge Group. The cash bonus may not exceed 
50% of the paid premium.

DELIVERY OF SHARES, COSTS, ETC. 
Since the call options provide entitlement to the acquisition of existing 
Series B shares, they do not give rise to dilution for the company’s 
shareholders. According to the proposed call-option programme, the 
delivery of shares will mainly be guaranteed by the principal sharehol-
der Carl Bennet AB. As compensation for this guarantee commit-
ment, Carl Bennet AB will receive an amount corresponding to the 
premium that Getinge receives from the option holders. Assuming 
that all option holders hold call options and/or Series B shares acqui-
red through the options and continue to be employed at the time of 
the bonus payment, the company’s cost for the bonus paid for the 
145,000 options exercised to cover a portion of the cost of the premi-
um is estimated at approximately SEK 1.4 m, including social security 
costs. SEK 0.7 m of this amount was charged against earnings for 
2007. The cost of the options was reported among operating expen-
ses and the liability that arises prior to payment will be reported 
among accrued costs. The terms and conditions for the programme 
cannot be renegotiated. 

2007 CALL OPTION PROGRAMME
The Annual General Meeting held on 19 April 2007 approved a call 
option programme for 2007 and permitted the company to issue and 
allot a maximum of 550,000 call options as follows. 
Entitlement. Call options have been offered to people who are per-
manent employees of the company and its subsidiaries in France, 
Sweden and Germany, in accordance with the following principles. 
Category 1: The CEO of the company will be offered call options that 
enable the acquisition of a maximum of 100,000 shares. 
Category 2: Other senior executives (six people) will be offered call 
options that enable the acquisition of 75,000 shares per person. 

With respect to personnel outside Sweden, a prerequisite is that such 
allotment is legally permissible and that, in the opinion of the Board of 
Directors, allotment will be possible without undue administrative 
and/or financial pressure. Allotment by the Board to participating 
employees will take place not later than 1 June 2007. 

Exercise. The following number of call options were exercised: 
Category 1: The CEO of the company exercised call options that ena-
ble the acquisition of 75,000 shares. 
Category 2: In total, other senior executives (six people) exercised 
call options that enable the acquisition of 230,000 shares. 
Exercise period. Options allotted to employees resident in France 
and Sweden may be exercised for the purchase of shares during the 
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period 1 January to 1 June 2009. Options allotted to employees resi-
dent in Germany may be exercised for the purchase of shares during 
the period 1 July 2007 to 1 June 2009. 
Consideration and exercise price. The options shall be acquired for 
a market price (premium) of 10% of the average closing price paid for 
Series B Getinge shares over a period of ten trading days starting 
from 25 April 2007. The premium calculated in this manner shall be 
rounded off to the closest full amount of SEK 0.10, whereby SEK 0.05 
shall be rounded down. 

The price per share that option holders shall pay for acquiring one 
share on exercise of a call option (exercise price) shall correspond to 
the market price resulting from the established premium and a cal-
culation according to the accepted valuation model (Black & Scholes). 
The exercise price calculated in this manner shall be rounded off to 
the closest full amount of SEK 0.10, whereby SEK 0.05 shall be roun-
ded down. The valuation of the options shall be performed by an 
independent party. 
	 The Board of Directors shall assume responsibility for the detai-
led organisation and management of the call option programme, 
within the framework of the stipulated primary terms, conditions and 
guidelines. In conjunction herewith, the Board shall be entitled to 
make adjustments in order to meet specific regulations or market 
conditions in countries outside Sweden. The Board shall also be 
entitled to make adjustments on the condition that significant chan-
ges have taken place in the Getinge Group or its external environme-

nt that would no longer mean that the terms determined for allotment 
under the call option programme were appropriate. 
	 The Annual General Meeting was informed that the Board of 
Directors is considering encouraging participation in the incentive 
programme by undertaking to pay a cash bonus a month before the 
allotted options expire. This bonus will only be paid on condition that 
the participant is still an employee of the Getinge Group. The cash 
bonus may not exceed 50% of the paid premium. 
Delivery of shares, costs, etc. Since the call options provide entitle-
ment to the acquisition of existing Series B shares, they do not give 
rise to dilution for the company’s shareholders. 
	 According to the proposed call option programme, the delivery of 
shares will mainly be guaranteed by the principal shareholder Carl 
Bennet AB. As compensation for this guarantee commitment, Carl 
Bennet AB will receive an amount corresponding to the premium that 
Getinge receives from the option holders. 
	 Assuming that all option holders hold call options and/or Serie B 
shares acquired through the options and continue to be employed at 
the time of the bonus payment, the company’s cost for the bonus 
paid for the 305,000 options exercised to cover a portion of the cost 
of the premium is estimated at approximately SEK 3.6 m, including 
social security costs. SEK 1.2 m of this amount was charged against 
earnings for 2007. The cost of the options will be reported among 
operating expenses and the assets that arise prior to payment will be 
reported among accrued costs. The terms and conditions for the pro-
gramme cannot be renegotiated.  

28  AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES									 

	 	 2007			   2006			   2005	  
	 Men  	 Women 	 Total	 Men  	 Women 	 Total	 Men  	 Women 	 Total
Algeria	 –	 –	 –	 1	 1	 2	 2	 1	 3
Australia	 216	 55	 271	 72	 22	 94	 62	 22	 84
Austria	 56	 7	 63	 51	 7	 58	 43	 6	 49
Belgium	 119	 40	 159	 89	 16	 105	 85	 12	 97
Brazil	 37	 30	 67	 16	 10	 26	 8	 7	 15
Canada	 250	 143	 393	 233	 136	 369	 225	 124	 349
China	 147	 69	 216	 120	 53	 173	 77	 40	 117
Czech Republic	 19	 6	 25	 8	 2	 10	 7	 2	 9
Denmark	 105	 34	 139	 74	 15	 89	 80	 14	 94
Finland	 19	 8	 27	 19	 5	 24	 19	 5	 24
France	 731	 252	 983	 636	 201	 837	 566	 169	 735
Germany	 1 291	 530	 1 821	 1 158	 478	 1 636	 1 147	 479	 1 626
Holland	 180	 71	 251	 143	 52	 195	 135	 56	 191
Hong Kong	 16	 5	 21	 13	 6	 19	 13	 5	 18
India	 58	 23	 81	 36	 8	 44	 31	 6	 37
Ireland	 48	 20	 68	 50	 15	 65	 45	 21	 66
Italy	 124	 47	 171	 116	 43	 159	 116	 40	 156
Japan	 64	 20	 84	 58	 17	 75	 50	 14	 64
New Zealand	 8	 6	 14	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
Norway	 17	 2	 19	 16	 1	 17	 15	 2	 17
Poland	 114	 183	 297	 18	 5	 23	 17	 4	 21
Portugal	 14	 4	 18	 14	 3	 17	 12	 3	 15
Russia	 24	 13	 37	 21	 8	 29	 18	 8	 26
Singapore	 12	 9	 21	 9	 5	 14	 7	 2	 9
Slovakia	 3	 3	 6	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –	 –
South Africa	 63	 29	 92	 6	 2	 8	 14	 5	 19
South Korea	 3	 1	 4	 2	 1	 3	 1	 1	 2
Spain	 66	 25	 91	 52	 22	 74	 51	 21	 72
Sweden	 1 062	 313	 1 375	 1 041	 273	 1 314	 1 048	 244	 1 292
Switzerland	 61	 12	 73	 55	 11	 66	 56	 16	 72
Turkey	 15	 70	 85	 1	 2	 3	 –	 –	 –
UK	 1 271	 462	 1 733	 517	 177	 694	 625	 167	 792
USA	 1 131	 331	 1 462	 972	 227	 1 199	 906	 214	 1 120
Total	 7 344	 2 823	 10 167	 5 617	 1 824	 7 441	 5 481	 1 710	 7 191
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Distribution of executive management at the balance-sheet date, % 				    2007	 2006	 2005
Women:									       
  Board members 							       5 %	 5 %	 4 %
  Other members of the company’s management, incl. CEO 					     18 %	 15 %	 11 %
Men:									       
  Board members							       95 %	 95 %	 96 %
  Other members of the company’s management, incl. CEO 					     82 %	 85 %	 89 %

Sick leave %: (Parent company and Swedish group companies) 					     2007	 2006	 2005
Total sick leave in relation to regular working hours 						      3,6	 4,4	 4,4
Share of total sick leave lasting 60 days or more 						      4,9	 1,3	 1,5
Sick leave, women, of total regular working hours 						      4,4	 5,8	 5,5
Sick leave, men, of total regular working hours 						      3,4	 4,1	 4,2
Sick leave of the combined total regular working hours for age categories:								     
  – 29 years 							       3,9	 5,4	 5,2
  30 – 49 years 							       3,0	 4,1	 3,9
  50 years – 							       4,6	 4,6	 5,5

29 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Transactions between Getinge AB and its subsidiaries, which are 
related companies to Getinge AB, were eliminated in the consolidated 
accounts and are not included in this note.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Business terms and conditions as well as market-regulated pricing 
apply for delivery of products and services between Group compa-
nies.

In 2007, intra-Group sales amounted to SEK 9,179 m (6,672). No 
Board member or senior executive has, or has had, any direct or indi-
rect participation in any business transactions, between themselves 
and the company, that are or were unusual in character, regarding 
terms or conditions. In addition, no other transactions with related 
parties occurred.

Delivery of the shares in accordance with the call option programmes 
adopted by the 2006 and 2007 Annual General Meetings has been 
guaranteed by the company’s principal shareholder Carl Bennet AB. 
As compensation for this guarantee commitment, Carl Bennet AB 
received an amount corresponding to the premium that the partici-
pants of the relevant call option programme have paid to Getinge.  In 
the 2006 call option programme, this option premium, and the com-
pensation to Carl Bennet AB, amounted to a total of SEK 1,841 m and 
for the 2007 call option programme, a total of SEK 4,758 m.

For remuneration and benefits to key individuals in management posi-
tions, see Note 27.

30	 EVENTS AFTER YEAR-END

Getinge acquired Boston Scientific’s Cardiac and Vascular Surgery 
divisions on 7 January 2008. Getinge paid a total of SEK 4,850 m for 
the two divisions on a debt-free basis (Enterprise value). The divisions 
were consolidated in the Getinge Group from 1 January 2008. 

The new share issue at hand is fully guaranteed through a subscrip-
tion commitment and issuing guarantee from Carl Bennet AB in 
accordance with an agreement to this effect that was signed on 31 
January 2008. The subscription commitment pertains to 13,502,160 
Class A shares and 22,837,124 Class B shares. The issue guarantee 
comprises not more than 10,345,915 Class B shares. Furthermore, 
Carl Bennet AB has undertaken not to divest any shares in Getinge 
during the period prior to and including the final day of the subscrip-
tion period in accordance with the new share issue. It has been dee-

med unnecessary to secure the issue guarantee by pledge or other 
security. For the guarantee issued by Carl Bennet AB, Getinge shall 
pay compensation amounting to 1% of the guaranteed amount of 
approximately SEK 1,242 m, corresponding to a guarantee compen-
sation of approximately SEK 12 m.

Otherwise, no other events that can be considered of material signifi-
cance took place after the balance-sheet date but before the signing 
of this annual report. The balance sheet, income statement and the 
appropriations of profits will be adopted at the Annual General 
Meeting on 17 April 2008. 

31 	SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE TO  
	 CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Acquisition of subsidiaries, SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Intangible fixed assets 	 4 824	 148	 415
Tangible fixed assets 	 821	 1	 76
Financial fixed assets 	 13	 1	 -
Stock-in-trade 	 459	 -10	 110
Receivables 	 851	 14	 134
Minority interest 	 -	 51	 -
Deferred tax liability  	 -318	 -	 -
Interest-bearing liabilities 	 -484	 -1	 -278
Non interest-bearing liabilities 	 -544	 68	 -192
Paid purchase prices 	 5 622	 272	 265

Cash and cash equivalents, SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Investments 	 11	 9	 75
Cash and bank	 883	 664	 609
Cash and cash equivalents	 894	 673	 684

Adjustments for items not included  
in cash flow, SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Depreciation of fixed assets	 683	 334	 329
Profit/loss in connection with  
sale/disposal of fixed assets	 11	 -57	 –
Restructuring costs not  
affecting cash flow 	 67	 –	 –
Total	 761	 277	 329

32 	CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Capitalised development costs  	 313	 198	 155
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INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE PARENT COMPANY

AMOUNTS IN SEK m

		  2007	 2006	 2005

Administrative expenses 	 Note 2	 -67	 -87	 -68
Operating profit/loss 	 Note 16, 17	 -67	 -87	 -68

Income from participation in Group companies 	 Note 4	 876	 338	 680
Interest income and other similar profit items 	 Note 5	 625	 492	 149
Interest expenses and other similar loss items 	 Note 6, 9	 -959	 -250	 -452
Profit after financial items 		  475	 493	 308

Appropriations 	 Note 7	 –	 12	 –
Profit after financial items		  475	 505	 308

Tax on profit for the year 	 Note 8	 95	 -52	 97
Net profit for the year		  570	 453	 405
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BALANCE SHEET FOR THE PARENT COMPANY 

AMOUNTS IN SEK m

		  2007	 2006	 2005

 
ASSETS							   
Fixed assets							   
Tangible fixed assets 	 Note 2, 3	 12	 15	 40
Shares in Group companies 	 Note 10	 4 120	 3 453	 3 400
Long-term financial receivables		  41	 51	 2
Deferred tax receivable	 Note 8	 86	 –	 –
Long-term financial instruments 		  –	 4	 –
Total fixed assets 		  4 259	 3 523	 3 441

Current assets

Accounts receivable		  5	 5	 –
Receivables from Group companies		  13 032	 8 468	 7 838
Other receivables		  –	 6	 –
Short-term financial instruments		  –	 12	 –
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 	 Note 11	 32	 37	 23
Cash and cash equivalents		  29	 –	 50
Total current assets 		  13 098	 8 526	 7 911

TOTAL ASSETS		  17 357	 12 050	 11 352

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Restricted shareholders’ equity

Share capital		  101	 101	 101
Reserves		  2 525	 2 525	 2 525
Unrestricted shareholders’ equity

Profit brought forward 		  633	 570	 677
Profit for the year 		  570	 453	 405
Total shareholders’ equity		  3 829	 3 649	 3 708

							   
Untaxed reserves 	 Note 7	 –	 –	 12
							   
Long-term liabilities

Interest-bearing long-term loans 	 Note 12	 7 523	 3 810	 3 208
Financial instruments, long-term 		  –	 5	 –
Deferred tax liability		  –	 3	 –
Total long-term liabilities		  7 523	 3 818	 3 208

Current liabilities

Interest-bearing short-term loans 	 Note 13	 5 931	 4 530	 4 381
Accounts payable 		  5	 6	 6
Tax liabilities 	 Note 8	 11	 7	 3
Other liabilities 		  2	 2	 3
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 	 Note 14	 56	 38	 32
Total current liabilities		  6 005	 4 583	 4 425

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		  17 357	 12 050	 11 352

For information on Getinge AB’s pledged assets, see note 15.
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CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE PARENT COMPANY 

AMOUNTS IN SEK m

	 Share 	 Reserve	 Share	 Unrestricted  	 Total 

	 capital	 fund	 premium	 reserves	  

			   reserve

Shareholders’ equity, 31 December 2004	 101	 1 825	 700	 744	 3 370

Dividend	 –	 –	 –	 -333	 -333
Net profit for the year	 –	 –	 –	 405	 405
Group contribution after deduction for tax effect	 –	 –	 –	 266	 266
Shareholders’ equity, 31 December 2005	 101	 1 825	 700	 1 082	 3 708

Transfer of share premium reserve to reserve fund in  
accordance with Annual Accounts Act 5:14	 –	 700	 -700	 –	 –
Dividend	 –	 –	 –	 -404	 -404
Net profit for the year	 –	 –	 –	 453	 453
Group contribution after deduction for tax effect	 –	 –	 –	 -108	 -108
Shareholders’ equity, 31 December 2006	 101	 2 525	 –	 1 023	 3 649

Dividend	 –	 –	 –	 -444	 -444
Net profit for the year	 –	 –	 –	 570	 570
Group contribution after deduction for tax effect	 –	 –	 –	 54	 54
Shareholders’ equity, 31 December 2007	 101	 2 525	 –	 1 203	 3 829

						    

Each share’s nominal value is SEK 0.50. The share capital consists of 13,502,160 class A shares carrying 10 voting rights per share and 
188,371,760 class B shares carrying one voting right per share, totalling 201,873,920 shares.
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CASH-FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PARENT COMPANY 

AMOUNTS IN SEK m

		  2007	 2006	 2005

Operating activities			 
Operating profit/loss 		  -67	 -87	 -68
Adjustments for items not included in cash flow		  4	 6	 10
		  -63	 -81	 -58

Payments from participations in Group companies		  392	 591	 450
Interest received and similar items		  726	 238	 149
Interest paid and similar items		  -556	 -248	 -302
Taxes paid		  1	 -4	 -3
Cash flow before changes to working capital		  500	 496	 236

Changes in working capital			 
Current receivables		  -5 260	 -1 037	 -1 724
Current liabilities		  -2	 6	 -8
Cash flow from operating activities		  -4 762	 -535	 -1 497

Investment activities			 

Acquisition of subsidiaries		  –	 -33	 -7
Divestment of subsidiaries 		  -2	 15	 –
Shareholders’ contributions paid		  -41	 -26	 –
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets		  -1	 -6	 -12
Divestment of tangible fixed assets			   0	 24	–
Cash flow from investment activities		  -44	 -26	 -19

Finance activities			 
Change in interest-bearing loans*		  5 119	 595	 1 795
Change in long-term receivables		  10	 -50	 1
Dividend paid		  -444	 -404	 -333
Group contributions received from subsidiaries		  150	 370	 74
Cash flow from finance activities		  4 835	 511	 1 537

Cash flow for the year		  29	 -50	 22
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		  0	 50	 28
Cash flow for the year		  29	 -50	 22

Cash and cash equivalents at year-end		  29	 –	 50

* Largely attributable to the acquisition of Huntleigh.
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1 	 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The accounts of the Parent Company were prepared in accordance 
with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and the Swedish Financial 
Accounting Standards Council’s recommendation RR32, Reporting of 
Legal Entities, as well as statements from the Emerging Issues Task 
Force of the Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Council. In 
accordance with the regulations stipulated in RR32, in the annual 
accounts for a legal entity, the Parent Company shall apply all of the 
IFRS/IAS regulations and statements that have been endorsed by the 
EU where this is possible within the framework of the Swedish Annual 
Accounts Act and with consideration of the link between accounting 
and taxation. The recommendation specifies which exceptions and 
additions shall be made from IFRS/IAS. Provisions conforming to 
IFRS/IAS are stated in Note 1 of the accounting principles for the 
consolidated accounts. The Parent Company applies the accounting 
principles detailed for the Group with the exception of the following:

Untaxed reserves. In the Parent Company, untaxed reserves are 
reported including the deferred tax liability. Untaxed reserves are 
reported at the gross amount in the balance sheet, and appropria-
tions at the gross amount in the income statement.

Remuneration to employees. The Parent Company complies with the 
Act on Safeguarding of Pension Commitments and directives from 
the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority when calculating defi-
ned-benefit pension schemes.

Group contributions and shareholders’ contributions for legal enti-
ties. Group contributions and shareholders’ contributions for legal 
entities are reported in accordance with statements from the 
Emerging Issues Task Force (URA 7).

Financial derivative instruments. The Parent Company does not 
apply hedge accounting. Realised and unrealised profits and losses 
resulting from changes in fair value are included in the income state-
ment as a financial income or expense in the period which they arise.

Shares and participations. Subsidiaries are reported in accordance 
with the acquisition method, which means that holdings are recorded 
at acquisition value (cost) less any impairment in the balance sheet. 
Dividends from subsidiaries are reported as dividend income. 

2	 DEPRECIATION ACCORDING TO PLAN

Summary, SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings 	 -3	 -6	 -10
Total depreciation tangible fixed assets	 -3	 -6	 -10

Depreciation reported as  
administration expenses	 -3	 -6	 -10

3 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Buildings and land 			 
Opening acquisition value 	 7	 7	 5
Investments	 –	 –	 2
Closing accumulated acquisition value	 7	 7	 7
Opening depreciation	 -1	 -1	 -1
Closing accumulated depreciation 	 -1	 -1	 -1
Closing planned residual value	 6	 6	 6

Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings			 
Opening acquisition value 	 26	 61	 51
Investments	 –	 6	 10
Sales/disposals 	 –	 -40	 –
Closing accumulated acquisition value 	 26	 27	 61
Opening depreciation	 -17	 -27	 -17
Sales/disposals	 –	 16	 –
Depreciation for the year	 -3	 -6	 -10
Closing accumulated depreciation	 -20	 -17	 -27
Closing planned residual value	 6	 10	 34

4	 INCOME FROM PARTICIPATION IN GROUP COMPANIES

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Dividends from Group companies 	 879	 329	 680
Profit/loss in connection with  
sale of subsidiary	 -3	 9	 –
Total 	 876	 338	 680

5	 INTEREST INCOME AND SIMILAR PROFIT ITEMS

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Interest income from Group companies 	 616	 196	 132
Interest income 	 9	 50	 16
Currency gains 	 –	 246	 –
Total 	 625	 492	 149

6	 INTEREST EXPENSES AND SIMILAR LOSS ITEMS

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Interest expenses to Group companies	 -158	 -65	 -24
Interest expenses	 -406	 -179	 -136
Currency losses 	 -384	 –	 -285
Other	 -11	 -7	 -9
Total  	 -959	 -250	 -452

7	 APPROPRIATIONS AND UNTAXED RESERVES

Appropriations, SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Difference between booked depreciation  
and depreciation according to plan	 –	 12	 –
Total 	 –	 12	 –

Untaxed reserves, SEK m
Accelerated depreciation	 –	 –	 12
Total 	 –	 –	 12
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10	 SHARES IN SUBSIDIARIES

Parent Company’s holdings 	 Reg. office 	 Swedish Co.  	 No. of shares 	 Book value 	 Book value	 Book value	

		  Reg. No.		  SEK m, 2007	 SEK m, 2006	 SEK m, 2005

Arjo Finance Holding AB	 Eslöv	 556473-1700	 23 062 334	 2 236	 2 236	 2 236
Getinge Sterilization AB	 Halmstad	 556031-2687	 50 000	 452	 452	 452
Maquet Holding AB	 Halmstad	 556535-6317	 100	 243	 243	 243
Getinge Disinfection AB	 Halmstad	 556042-3393	 25 000	 118	 118	 118
Getinge Letting AB	 Göteborg	 556495-6976	 1 000	 –	 –	 –
Getinge Skärhamn AB	 Tjörn	 556412-3569	 1 000	 6	 6	 6
LIC Audio AB	 Solna	 556058-7460	 1 000	 –	 –	 6
Getinge Australia Pty Ltd	 Australia		  39 500	 9	 9	 9
Getinge NV	 Belgium		  600	 2	 2	 2
Getinge/Arjo Danmark A/S	 Denmark		  525	 3	 3	 3
Getinge IT-Solution Aps	 Denmark		  533 000	 27	 27	 27
Getinge Finland Ab	 Finland		  15	 –	 –	 –
Getinge/Arjo France SA	 France		  289 932	 236	 236	 236
Getinge Castle Greece	 Greece		  100	 2	 2	 2
Getinge Scientific KK	 Japan		  10 000	 4	 1	 1
Getinge Sterilizing Equipment Inc	 Canada		  1 230 100	 –	 1	 1
Getinge Zhuhai Ltd.	 China		  1 000	 1	 1	 1
Getinge (Suzhou) Co. Ltd	 China		  1	 81	 52	 26
Getinge Norge AS	 Norway		  4 500	 5	 5	 5
Getinge Poland Sp Zoo	 Poland		  500	 13	 13	 13
NeuroMédica SA	 Spain		  40 000	 16	 16	 16
Arjo Gmbh  	 Austria		  1 273	 7	 –	 –
BHM Medical Inc	 Canada		  5 000	 33	 33	 –
Getinge Holding USA Inc	 USA		  –	 627	 –	 –
Total book value				    4 120	 3 453	 3 400

8	 TAXES

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Tax cost:
Current tax expense	 7	 -49	 97
Deferred tax	 88	 -3	 –
Total tax expense	 95	 -52	 97

The following current tax items relate to  
items that were accounted for directly  
against shareholders’ equity:
Group contribution	 21	 42	 104
Relationship between the year’s tax  
costs and the reported profit before tax:
Reported profit before tax 	 475	 505	 308
Tax according to current tax rate 28%	 -133	 -141	 -86
Adjustment for tax costs from  
earlier years	 -9	 –	 -2
Tax effect of non-deductible costs: 
  Other non-deductible costs	 -7	 -7	 -9
Non-taxable income	 245	 95	 190
Changed valuation of  
temporary differences	 -1	 1	 3
Reported tax cost	 95	 -52	 97

Calculation of the current tax rate is based on the tax rate that app-
lies to the Parent Company and amounted to 28% in 2007 and 2006 

The deferred tax receivable of SEK 86 m is entirely attributable to 
loss carryforwards.  

9	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND  
	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

For further information concerning financial instruments and financial 
risk management relevant to Getinge AB, see the corresponding note 
in “Notes to the consolidated accounts“ (Note 26). Realised and unre-
alised gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value negatively 
impacted earnings in the amount of SEK 11 m during the year. 



GE TINGE AB ANNUAL REPORT 2007

88	 |	 Parent Company Accounts

The Parent Company’s holding of 
shares in the subsidiaries consti-
tutes the entire capital and voting 
rights of the respective company.

Subsidiaries of sub-groups 
The Getinge Group, with its busi-
ness in many countries, is organi-
sed into sub-groups in several 
categories, and accordingly, the 
legal structure cannot be reflected 
in a tabular presentation. The follo-
wing is a list of the companies that 
were a part of Getinge’s sub-
groups as of 31 December 2007. 
Except in certain cases, the 
ownership interest is 100%. 
Ownership of the Canadian com-
pany Maquet-Dynamed Inc is 70%. 
Ownership of the German 
Company Maquet Telemedicine 
GmbH is 60%. Ownership of the 
Brazilian company Maquet do 
Brasil Equipamentos Medicos Ltda 
is 75%. 

SWEDEN
Arjo Ltd Med. AB
556473-1718 Eslöv
Arjo Holding AB 
556402-6663 Eslöv
Arjo Hospital Equipment AB
556090-4095 Eslöv
Arjo International AB
556528-1440 Eslöv
Arjo Scandinavia AB
556528-4600 Eslöv
Fjärrbilar Lastbils AB
556496-6728 Göteborg
Getinge International AB
556547-8780 Halmstad
Getinge Infection Control AB
556547-8798 Halmstad
Getinge Sverige AB
556509-9511 Halmstad
Arjo AB	
556304-2026 Lund
Maquet Critical Care AB
556604-8731 Solna
Maquet Nordic AB
556648-1163 Solna
Getinge Treasury AB
556535-6309 Halmstad
Arjo Nederland BV Filial
516403-5544 Halmstad
Huntleigh Healthcare AB
556577-0939 Malmö
AlgeriA
Leqeuex Algérie
AustraliA
Arjo Hosp Equipm Pty Ltd 
Joyce Healthcare Group Pty Ltd
Huntleigh Healthcare Pty Ltd
Maquet Australia Pty Ltd
AUSTRIA
Maquet Medizintechnik Vertrieb 
und Service GmbH
HNE Huntleigh Healthcare 
Midizinprodukte GmbH 
TOM Medical Entwicklungs GmbH

BelgiUM
Arjo Hospital Equipment NV SA
Huntleigh Healthcare NV SA
Maquet Belgium N.V.
Medibol Medical Products NV
Medibol Holding NV BE
BraZIL
Getinge Brasil Ltd.
Maquet do Brasil Equipamentos 
Medicos Ltda
Maquet Cardiopulmonary do Brasil 
Ind. e Com S.A.
Canada
Arjo Canada Inc
Gestion Techno-Médic
Getinge Canada Ltd
Huntleigh Healthcare Inc
Jostra Canada Inc.
BHM Medical Holding Inc
Maquet-Dynamed Inc
CHina
Maquet (Shanghai) Medical 
Equipment Co., Ltd.
Getinge (Shanghai) Trading Co.Ltd
Maquet (SuZhou) CO Ltd
Suzhou Manufactoring
CZECH REPUBLIC
Arjo Hospital Equipment sro
Getinge Czech Republic, s.r.o.
Maquet Medizintechnik Vertrieb 
und Service GmbH
DEnmark
Getinge Water Systems A/S
Huntleigh Healthcare A/S
Polystan AS
NCN Equipment A/S
Finland
Huntleigh International Oy
FRANCE
Maquet SA
Arjo Equipm Hosp SA France
Filance SA
Getinge Life Sciences SAS
Getinge Production SAS
Huntleigh France
Lancer SAS
Getinge France SAS
Peristel SAS
SMI SA
Steriservice
Linac Technologies SA
Finansiére La Cahléne SA
La Cahléne France SA
GERMANY
Arjo Holding Deutschland GmbH
Arjo GmbH
Getinge Maquet Germany Holding 
Gmbh
Getinge Maquet Verwaltung Gmbh
Getinge Produktions-GmbH
Getinge van Dijk Gmbh
Maquet Cardiopulmonary AG
Lancer GmbH
Maquet GmbH & Co. KG 
Maquet Sales and Service GmbH 
MediKomp Gmbh
Meditechnik GmbH
Getinge Life Science GmbH
Maquet Telemedicine GmbH
HCS GmbH 
HNE Huntleigh Nesbit Evans 
Healthcare GmbH 

Hong Kong
Arjo Far East Ltd H K
Getinge International Asia Ltd.
Maquet Hong Kong Ltd
IndiA
Maquet Medical India Pvt Ltd
Huntleigh Healthcare India Pvt Ltd
IrEland
Arjo Ireland Ltd
Maquet Ireland Ltd
ITALY
Arjo Italia Spa
Getinge Surgical Systems Italia SPA
Getinge S.p.A.
Getinge Surgical Systems Holding 
Srl
Jostra Italien SpA
Maquet Italia Spa
The Getinge Service S.p.A.
Japan
Arjo Japan KK
Huntleigh Healthcare Japan KK
Maquet Getinge KK
LuxembOurg
Arjo International Luxemburg
NETHERLANDS
Arjo Nederland B.V.
Maquet Netherlands B.V.
Getinge/Arjo Holding Netherlands 
B.V.
Getinge b.v.
Huntleigh Holdings BV
Huntleigh Healthcare BV
Lancer BV
Medibol Beheer BV
Medibol Medical Prod.BV
Nigeria
Huntleigh Healthcare (Nigeria) Ltd
PolAND
Huntleigh Healthcare Polska Sp. 
Zoo
Maquet Poland Sp.z.o.o.
Portugal
Maquet Portugal Lda
RUSSIA
Maquet LLC
Singapore
Maquet South East Asia Ltd 
Singapore
Getinge International Far East Pte. 
Ltd.
Huntleigh Healthcare Pte Ltd
SlovakiA
Maquet Medizintechnik Vertrieb 
und Service GmbH
SOUTH AFRICA
Huntleigh Manufacturing (Pty) Ltd 
SOL Healthcare (Pty) Ltd 
Huntleigh Africa Provincial Sales 
(Pty) Ltd 
Huntleigh Africa (Pty) Ltd 
SOUTH KOREA
Maquet Medical Korea Co. Ltd
SPAIN
Arjo Spain S.A.
Getinge Ibérica S.L.
Huntleigh Healthcare SL
Maquet Spain S.L.

SWITZERLAND
Arjo Sic AG
Arjo International AG
Maquet AG
Getinge Reinsurance AG
Getinge Alfa AG
HNE Medical SA
TurkEY
Maquet Cardiopulmonary Ltd Sti
UK
Arjo Ltd 
Arjo Med AB Ltd
Buchanan Leasing Ltd
Getinge Desinfection Ltd
Getinge Industrier Holding UK Ltd
Maquet Ltd
James Ind Ltd UK
Parker Baths Ltd
Pegasus Ltd
Rowan Leasing
British Sterilizer Ltd
Getinge UK Ltd
Lancer UK Ltd
Getinge Extended Care UK Ltd
Huntleigh Diagnostics Ltd
Huntleigh Export Ltd
Care Records Ltd
Huntleigh Reconditioning Unit 
Huntleigh Akron 
Huntleigh  Ltd 
Huntleigh International Holdings Ltd 
HTC Properties Ltd 
Luton manufacturing 
Huntleigh Nesbit Evans Healthcare 
Ltd 
Huntleigh Properties Ltd 
Huntleigh Luton Ltd 
Huntleigh Renray Ltd 
Huntleigh UK Sales Ltd 
Huntleigh Technology Ltd 
Huntleigh (SST) Ltd 
Huntleigh Wednesbury 
Arjo Huntleigh Logistics Centre
USA
Arjo Inc USA
Arjo Manufacturing Co
Getinge Holding USA Inc
Getinge USA  Inc
Getinge Sourcing LLC
GTT Inc.
Huntleigh Healthcare Funding LLC 
Huntleigh Healthcare Inc 
Huntleigh Latin America Inc 
Huntleigh Healthcare LLC 
Huntleigh Technology Inc 
Heraeus Medical Inc
Lancer Inc
Maquet Inc
Pegasus Airwave Inc.
La Cahléne Inc.
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11	 PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Prepaid financial expenses	 18	 19	 12
Other prepaid expenses and  
accrued income	 14	 18	 11
Total 	 32	 37	 23

12 INTEREST-BEARING LONG-TERM LOANS

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Liabilities to credit institutions	 7 523	 3 810	 3 208
Total	 7 523	 3 810	 3 208

13	 INTEREST-BEARING SHORT-TERM LOANS

SEK m 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Liabilities to credit institutions	 724	 177	 748
Liabilities to subsidiaries	 5 207	 4 354	 3 634
Total	 5 931	 4 530	 4 381

14	 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND PREPAID INCOME

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Salaries	 14	 8	 5
Social security expenses	 6	 3	 3
Interest expenses	 27	 19	 17
Other accrued expenses and  
prepaid income	 9	 8	 7
Total 	 56	 38	 32

15 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Contingent liabilities, SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Guarantees FPG/PRI	 159	 150	 131
Other guarantees	 786	 418	 66
Total	 945	 567	 197
Valuation adjustment	 -945	 -567	 -197
Carrying amount	 –	 –	 –

16	 AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Sweden	 2007	 2006	 2005
Men 	 12	 9	 8
Women	 4	 4	 3
Total	 16	 13	 11

Distribution of executive management at year-end
Women			 
Board members	 2	 2	 2
Other members of senior  
management, including the CEO	 –	 –	 –
Men			 
Board members	 5	 5	 5
Other members of senior  
management, including the CEO	 1	 1	 1

Sick leave % 	 2007	 2006	 2005
Total sick leave in relation  
to regular work hours	 8,4	 2,2	 2,1
Share of total sick leave  
lasting 60 days or more	 –	 –	 –
Sick leave, women, of  
regular work hours	 29,4	 7,0	 –
Sick leave, men, of  
regular work hours	 1,3	 0,3	 2,9

17	 EMPLOYEE COSTS

2007, SEK m			 
Parent Company 	 Board and CEO 	 Other 	 Total
Salaries and remuneration	 15	 14	 29
Social security expenses	 9	 7	 16
Pension costs	 7	 4	 11
Summa	 31	 25	 56

2006, SEK m			 
Parent Company 	 Board and CEO 	 Other 	 Total
Salaries and remuneration	 13	 12	 25
Social security expenses	 5	 4	 10
Pension costs	 6	 4	 9
Summa	 24	 20	 44

2005, SEK m			 
Parent Company 	 Board and CEO 	 Other 	 Total
Salaries and remuneration	 9	 11	 20
Social security expenses	 3	 4	 7
Pension costs	 5	 3	 7
Summa	 17	 18	 35

18	 AUDITING

SEK m	 2007	 2006	 2005
Fees to Deloitte AB
Fees and remuneration:
Auditing assignments	 1	 1	 1
Other assignments	 4	 5	 5
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AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE ANNUAL MEE TING OF GE TINGE AB

Corporate Registration Number  556408-5032

We have audited the annual 
accounts, the consolidated 
accounts, the accounting records 
and the administration of the Board 
of Directors and the President of 
Getinge AB (publ.) for the 2007 
financial year. The company’s annual 
accounts are included in the printed 
version of this document on pages 
50-89. The Corporate Governance 
Report included on pages 42-48 
was not subject to review in our 
audit. The Board of Directors and 
the President are responsible for 
these accounts and the adminis-
tration of the Company, as well as 
for the application of the Annual 
Accounts Act when preparing the 
annual accounts and the applica-
tion of the international financial 
reporting standards, IFRS, as adop-
ted by the European Union, and 
the Annual Accounts Act when pre-
paring the consolidated accounts. 
Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the annual accounts, 
the consolidated accounts and the 
administration based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accor-
dance with generally accepted audi-
ting standards in Sweden. Those 
standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reaso-
nable, but not absolute, assurance 
that the annual accounts and the 
consolidated accounts are free of 

material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the accounts. An 
audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and their 
application by the Board of Directors 
and the President and significant 
estimates made by the Board of 
Directors and the President when 
preparing the annual accounts and 
consolidated accounts as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of 
information in the annual accounts 
and the consolidated accounts. As 
a basis for our opinion concerning 
discharge from liability, we examined 
significant decisions, actions taken 
and circumstances of the company 
in order to be able to determine the 
liability, if any, to the company of 
any Board member or the President. 
We also examined whether any 
Board member or the President has, 
in any other way, acted in contra-
vention of the Companies Act, the 
Annual Accounts Act or the Articles 
of Association. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion set out below.

The annual accounts have been pre-
pared in accordance with the Annual 
Accounts Act and give a true and 
fair view of the company’s financial 
position and results of operations in 
accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles in Sweden. 
The consolidated accounts have 
been prepared in accordance with 
international reporting standards, 
IFRS, as adopted by the European 
Union and Annual Accounts Act 
and give a true and fair view of 
the Group’s financial position and 
results of operations. The statutory 
administration report is consistent 
with the other parts of the annual 
accounts and the consolidated 
accounts.

We recommend to the Annual 
General Meeting of sharehol-
ders that the income statements 
and balance sheets of the Parent 
Company and the Group be adop-
ted, that the profit of the Parent 
Company be dealt with in accordan-
ce with the proposal in the statutory 
administration report and that the 
members of the Board of Directors 
and the President be discharged 
from liability for the financial year.

Getinge, 7 March 2008.

DELOITTE AB

Jan Nilsson
Authorised Public Accountant
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QUARTERLY DATA 
PERCENTAGE DISTRIBUTION OF SALES AND EARNINGS BY QUARTER

	 Percentage distribution of	 Percentage distribution of 
	 sales for the year	 operating profit for the year
	 Quarter 1	 Quarter 2	 Quarter 3	 Quarter 4	 Quarter 1	 Quarter 2	 Quarter 3	 Quarter 4
1998 total	 21.6	 23.1	 22.5	 32.9	 24.5	 24.6	 18.2	 32.7
Infection Control	 22.7	 22.5	 20.8	 34.0	 22.5	 26.6	 12.9	 37.9
Extended Care	 19.6	 24.5	 25.0	 31.0	 24.2	 22.1	 26.1	 27.6
Medical Systems	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a
1999 total	 24.2	 24.5	 22.0	 29.3	 25.6	 23.7	 15.9	 34.8
Infection Control	 22.0	 24.1	 22.1	 31.8	 18.6	 23.6	 16.8	 41.0
Extended Care	 27.2	 25.2	 22.0	 25.6	 33.6	 23.8	 14.9	 27.7
Medical Systems	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a
2000 total	 22.2	 23.8	 22.9	 31.1	 21.1	 20.7	 16.4	 41.8
Infection Control	 21.1	 24.6	 22.1	 32.3	 18.8	 24.4	 14.5	 42.3
Extended Care	 23.6	 22.8	 23.6	 30.0	 25.1	 18.5	 20.8	 35.6
Medical Systems	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a	 n/a
2001 total	 23.6	 23.6	 22.7	 30.1	 23.4	 21.1	 17.1	 38.4
Infection Control	 21.3	 23.4	 22.9	 32.4	 16.0	 19.9	 14.6	 49.5
Extended Care	 25.0	 23.7	 22.6	 28.7	 27.2	 18.7	 21.2	 32.9
Medical Systems	 25.0	 24.0	 22.4	 28.5	 26.6	 27.4	 13.0	 33.0
2002 total	 22.1	 24.1	 23.8	 30.1	 18.1	 21.2	 18.0	 42.8
Infection Control	 20.5	 25.4	 22.2	 31.9	 10.0	 16.6	 13.1	 60.3
Extended Care	 25.4	 23.8	 23.5	 27.2	 26.0	 18.9	 20.0	 35.0
Medical Systems	 20.5	 22.4	 26.2	 30.9	 12.8	 30.9	 19.8	 36.5
2003 total	 21.9	 23.3	 22.8	 32.0	 17.0	 24.7	 20.3	 38.0
Infection Control	 20.8	 25.8	 22.3	 31.2	 14.0	 28.7	 18.4	 39.0
Extended Care	 23.5	 24.5	 23.0	 29.1	 17.1	 22.0	 21.7	 39.2
Medical Systems	 21.7	 20.0	 23.3	 35.1	 20.2	 23.1	 20.9	 35.9
2004 total	 22.9	 23.8	 21.4	 31.9	 20.1	 23.4	 17.5	 39.1
Infection Control	 20.1	 24.0	 20.6	 35.3	 13.5	 24.1	 14.6	 47.8
Extended Care	 24.2	 23.2	 22.3	 30.3	 20.6	 21.6	 19.4	 38.4
Medical Systems	 24.2	 23.9	 21.5	 30.3	 24.8	 24.0	 18.4	 32.8
2005 total	 21.3	 23.1	 23.0	 32.7	 20.1	 19.6	 19.2	 41.1
Infection Control	 18.5	 22.8	 21.5	 37.2	 13.1	 20.8	 12.9	 53.1
Extended Care	 26.6	 23.1	 22.0	 28.4	 35.6	 19.4	 17.7	 27.2
Medical Systems	 20.1	 23.2	 24.6	 32.1	 14.6	 19.0	 24.2	 42.1
2006 total	 22.9	 24.2	 22.2	 30.7	 16.1	 21.6	 19.0	 43.4
Infection Control	 21.0	 24.8	 20.9	 33.4	 14.4	 20.9	 11.4	 53.3
Extended Care	 25.4	 24.3	 22.3	 28.0	 14.2	 20.6	 20.0	 45.2
Medical Systems	 22.8	 23.7	 23.2	 30.3	 18.1	 22.0	 23.3	 36.6
2007 total	 20.8	 24.5	 23.4	 31.4	 17.5	 21.7	 15.5	 45.3
Infection Control	 19.6	 24.4	 22.2	 33.8	 13.6	 21.9	 17.6	 46.9
Extended Care	 21.5	 25.8	 23.8	 28.9	 18.4	 22.4	 6.4	 52.7
Medical Systems	 20.9	 23.2	 23.8	 32.1	 19.3	 21.2	 19.7	 39.8
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DEFINITIONS

Financial terms 

Cash flow per share Cash flow after investments in tangible fixed assets divided by the number of shares.

Dividend yield Dividend in relation to the market share price on December 31.

EBITA Operating profit after depreciation and impairment, but before deductions for amortisation and 
impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets which have arisen in connection with company 
acquisitions.

EBITA margin EBITA in relation to net sales

EBITDA Operating profit after before depreciation and amortisation.

EBITDA margin EBITDA in relation to net sales

Equity/assets ratio Equity plus minority interests in relation to total assets.

Earnings per share Net profit for the year divided by number of shares (the average number).

Interest cover Profit after net financial items plus interest expenses, as a percentage of interest expenses.

Net debt/equity ratio Interest-bearing liabilities including pension liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents in relation to 
shareholders’ equity.

Operating margin Operating profit in relation to net sales.

P/E ratio Share price (final price) divided by earnings per share.

Return on equity Net profit for the year in relation to average shareholders’ equity.

Return on working capital Operating profit in relation to working capital.

Value-added per employee Operating profit with addition of staff costs, divided by the average number of employees.

Working capital Total assets, less cash and cash equivalents and non-interest-bearing liabilities.
Based on the average and calculated over the year.

Medical terms 

Ablation Removal (to remove something)

Anastomosis Open connection, for example, between blood vessels (may be natural or created surgically)

Anaesthesia Narcosis

Artificial grafts Artificial blood vessel implants

Cardiopulmonary Pertaining or belonging to both heart and lung

Cardiovascular Pertaining or belonging to both heart and blood vessels

Cardiovascular diseases Heart and blood vessel diseases

Compensation system The system that defines how the healthcare system receives payment for various activities

Doppler Ultrasound method commonly used to assess flows, such as in a blood vessel

Endoscopic vessel harvesting Minimally invasive (see below) technique that removes part of a blood vessel (often in the leg) and 
uses this blood vessel to replace the diseased coronary artery

Microorganisms Bacteria, viruses, fungus and similar organisms that can only be observed through a microscope

Minimally invasive instruments Various types of instruments that make it possible to conduct treatment and other measures 
through very small operations without the need for major surgery. The benefits of minimally 
invasive operations include less pain for the patient, shorter rehabilitation periods and lower 
costs.

Oxygenerator The component that oxygenates the blood during cardio surgery

Perfusion Artificial circulation of body fluids, such as blood

Perfusion products Products that handle blood circulation and oxygenation during cardio surgery

Resistance problems Problems with bacteria that have become resistant to penicillin or other antibiotics

Surgical ablation To remove something surgically

Thrombosis Blood clot



	 Addresses	 | 	 93

ADDRESSEs

HEAD OFFICE
Getinge AB
P O Box 69, Getinge, SE-310 44
E-mail: info@getinge.com
Phone: +46 35 15 55 00
Fax: +46 35 15 56 40
CEO: Johan Malmquist

AUTRALIA
Arjo Hospital Equipment Pty Ltd
Unit 1, 205 Queensport Road
Murarrie Qld, AU-4172
E-mail: info@arjo.com.au
Phone: +61-7 3395 6311
Fax: + 61 7 3399 3811
MD: Paul Lyon

Getinge Australia Pty Ltd
Unit 1, 205 Queensport Road
Murarrie Qld, AU-4172
E-mail: info@getinge.com.au
Phone: +61-7 3395 3311
Fax: +61-7 3395 6712
MD: Philip McLaughlin

Huntleigh Healthcare Pty Ltd
78 Forsyth Street
O’Connor
6163 Western Australia
Email: sales@huntleighhealthcare.com.au
Tel: +61 89337 4111 or Free Call: 1800 072 
040
Fax: +61 8 9337 9077
MD: Paul Lyon

Maquet Australia Pty Ltd
Unit 1, 205 Queensport Road
Murarrie Qld, AU-4172
E-mail: info@maquet.com.au
Phone: +61-1300 3043 72
Fax: +61 7 3395 6712
MD: Rob Megens

AUSTRIA
ArjoHuntleigh GmbH
Dörrstr. 85
6020 Innsbruck
Austria
E-mail: office@arjo.de
Phone: +43 512 20 4160-0
Fax: +43 512 20 41 60 75
MD: Tibor Pap

Maquet Medizintechnik Vertrieb und 
Service GmbH
IZ NÖ-Süd, Strasse 16, Objekt 69E5,
Wiener Neudorf, AT-2355
E-mail: info-AT@maquet.at
Phone: +43-22366773930
Fax: +43 2236 677 393-77
MD: Friedrich Zinner

BELGIUM
ArjoHuntleigh NV/SA
Evenbroekveld 16
B-9420 Erpe Mere
Email: info@ArjoHuntleigh.be
Phone: +32 (0)53 60 73 80
Fax: +32 (0)53 60 73 81
MD: Frank Robeers

Getinge NV/SA
Vosveld 4 B2, B-2110 Wijnegem
E-mail: info@getinge.be
Phone: +32-33542865
Fax: +32 335 428 64
MD: Dirk De Decker

Maquet Belgium N.V.
Assesteenweg 117/3,
Ternat, BE-1740
E-mail: maquet@maquet.be
Phone: +32-2 467 85 85
Fax: +32 2 463 3288
MD: Julien Bergmans

Medibo Medical Products NV
Heikant 5, Hamont-Achel, BE-3930
E-mail: sales@medibo.com
Phone: +32-11802040
Fax: +32 11 80 16 26
MD: Jos Bollen

BRAZIL
Maquet do Brasil Equipamentos Médicos 
Ltda
Rua Said Aiach 161, Paraiso
Sao Paolo-SP, BR-04003-020
E-mail: maquetdobrasil@maquet.com
Phone: +55-1121262500
Fax: +55 11 21 26 2501
MD: Norman Günther

CANADA
Arjo Canada Inc.
1575 South Gateway Road, Unit C, 
Mississauga,
Ontario, L4W 5J1
E-mail: info@arjo.ca
Phone: +1 905-238-7880
Fax: +1 905-238-788
MD: John Thiessen

BHM Medical Inc
2001, Tanguay Street, 
Magog, Qc, Canada J1X 5Y5
E-mail: bhm@bhm-medical.com
Phone: +1-819 868 0441
Fax: +1-819-868-2249
MD: Yves Labrie

Getinge Canada Limited
1575 South Gateway Road, Unit C, 
Mississauga, Ontario, L4W 5J1
E-mail: info@getinge.ca
Phone: +1-905 6298777
Fax: + 1 905 629 8875
MD: Robert Bothwell

Maquet-Dynamed Inc
235 Shields Court, Markham, 
Ontario, L3R 8V2
E-mail: info@maquet-dynamed.com
Phone: +1-9057523300
Fax: +1 905 752 3304
MD: Peter Bennett

CHINA
ArjoHuntleigh (Shanghai) Medical Trading 
Co. Ltd.
7/F, Metro Plaza,
555 Loushanguan Road,
Shanghai 200051 P.R. China 
Phone: +86 21 62280202 Ext.229
Fax: +86 21 62280238
MD: Calvin Ma

Getinge (Suzhou) Co. Ltd
No 158, Fang Zhou Road, 
Suzhou Industrial Park,
Jiangsu Province, Suzhou, CN-215021
Phone: +86512 6283 8966
Fax: +86512 6283 8566
MD: Pär Teike

Getinge Shanghai Trading Co Ltd
7/F, Metro Plaza,
555 Loushanguan Road,
Shanghai 200051 P.R. China
E-mail: info@getinge.com.cn
Phone: +86 21 6228 6161
Fax: +86 21 6228 6100
MD: Niclas Olsson

Maquet (Shanghai) Medical Equipment Co., 
Ltd.
7F, Metro Plaza
555 Lou Shan Guan Road
Shanghai 200051
E-mail: info.china@maquet.de
Phone: +86-21 62280202
Fax: +86-21 62280238
MD: Florian Mond

Maquet (Suzhou) Co.,Ltd.
No.158, Fangzhou Road, SIP, Suzhou, P.R. 
China 215021
Phone +86 512 62838966
Fax +86 512 62838861
MD: Jemy Ji

CZECH REPUBLIC
Arjo Hospital Equipment sro
Hlinky 118
603 00 Brno
Czech Republic
E-mail: milan.sovadina@arjo.cz
Phone: +420 549 254 252
Fax: +420 541 213 550
MD: Milan Sovadina

Getinge Czech Republic, s.r.o.
Radlická 42/1031, Prague 5, CZ-150 00 
Phone: +420 251 564 286
Fax: +450 251 560 175 
E-mail: info@getinge.cz
MD: Pavel Krivonoska 

Maquet Medizintechnik Vertrieb und 
Service GmbH - o.s. 
Na Strzi 65/1702, 140 00 Praha 4, 
Phone: + 42 0261 142 520
Fax: + 42 0261 142 540
President: Friedrich Zinner 

DENMARK
Getinge Danmark A/S
Firskovvej 23, Lyngby, DK-2800
E-mail: getinge.danmark@getinge.com
Phone: +45 459 32 727
Fax: +45 459 34120
MD: Ole Mortensen

Huntleigh Healthcare A/S
Vassingerodvej 52
3540 Lynge
Denmark
Email: info@huntleigh-healthcare.dk
Tel: +45 4913 8486 
Fax: +45 4913 8487
MD: Henrik Keller

Maquet Denmark A/S
Firskovvej 23
2800 Kgs. Lyngby
Denmark
Phone: +45 46944216
Fax: +45 44681566
MD: Thomas Lindström
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Getinge IT Solutions ApS
Amaliegade 4, Copenhagen K, DK-1256
E-mail: info@t-doc.com
Phone: +45 33 33 88 55
Fax: +45 33 33 88 70
MD: Michael Lunau

Getinge Water Systems A/S
Industrivej 6-8, Lynge, DK-3540
E-mail: info.gws@getinge.com
Phone: +45 4816 3333
Fax: +45 4818 9104
MD: Michael Steen Petersen

FINLAND
Getinge Finland Ab
Ängsgatan 8, 02200 Esbo
E-mail: getinge@getinge.fi
Phone: +358-968 24120
Fax:+358 968 241 222
MD: Peter Holmberg

Huntleigh Healthcare OY
Vanha Porvoontie 229
01380 Vantaa
Finland
Email: katrina.kaukomaa@huntleigh-
healthcare.fi
Tel: +358 9 4730 4320
Fax: +358 9 4730 4999
MD: Henrik Keller

FRANCE
Arjo Equipements Hospitaliers SA
Avenue de l’Europe 45
EUROCIT BP 133
FR-59436 Roncq Cedex
Email: info@arjo.fr
Phone: +33 (0)3 20 28 13 13
Fax: +33 (0)3 20 28 13 14
MD: Frank Robeers

Getinge France SAS
B.P. 49, 
7 Avenue du Canada,
Courtaboeuf, 
Les Ulis, FR-91942
E-mail: getinge.france@getinge.fr
Phone: +33 164 868 900
Fax: +33 164 868 989
MD: Hugues Chassagne

Getinge Infection Control SA 
30 Boulevard de l’Industrie, 
ZI Pahin, Tournefeuille, FR-31170 
Phone: + 33 5 61 15 11 11 
Fax: +33 5 61 15 16 16 
President: Christophe Hammer 

Getinge La Calhène 
1, Rue du Comté de Donegal, 
Vendome Cedex, 
FR-41102 
Phone: +33 2 54 73 47 47 
Fax: +33 2 54 734 7 48 
MD: Alain Sayag

Getinge Life Sciences SAS 
30 Boulevard de I’Industrie, ZI Pahin, 
Tournefeuille, FR-31170 
Phone: +33 5 61 15 34 90 
Fax: +33 5 61 15 99 09
MD: Miquel Lozano 

HNE Medical SAS
451, chemin de Champivost
BP 20
69579 LIMONEST Cedex
Email: info@hne-medical.fr
Phone:+33 (0)4 78 66 62 66
Fax: +33 (0)4 78 66 62 67
MD: Patrick Colombe

Lancer SAS 
30 Boulevard de l’Industrie, ZI Pahin, 
Tournefeuille, FR-31170 
E-mail: lancersite@lancer.fr 
Phone: + 33 5 61 15 11 11 
Fax: +33 5 61 15 16 16 
MD: Christophe Oculi 

Linac Technologies S.A. 
16, Rue Nicolas Appert, 
(Chemin du Petit Saclay), 
Orsay, FR-91400 
Phone: +33 16 9352 400 
Fax: +33 16 0191 032 
MD: Alain Sayag 

Maquet SA
Parc de Limère, Avenue de la Pomme de 
Pin, Ardon,
Orléans, FR-45074
E-mail: info@maquet-sa.fr
Phone: +33 2 38 25 88 88
Fax: +33 2 38 25 88 00
MD: Serge Exshaw

GERMANY
ArjoHuntleigh GmbH
Peter-Sander-Strasse 10
55252 Mainz-Kastel
Germany
Email: info@arjo.de
Phone: +49 6134 1860
Fax: +49 6134 186 160
MD: Robert de Deugd
 
ArjoHuntleigh GmbH / Meditechnik GmbH
Ernst-Befort-Strasse 4
35578 Wetzlar (production facility)
Germany
Email: info@meditechnik.de
Phone: +49 6441 9781-0
Fax: +49 6441 9781-50
MD: Robert de Deugd / Dietmar Klas

Getinge Life Science GmbH
Kehler Str. 31, Rastatt, DE-76437
E-mail: info@getinge.de
Phone: +49 (0) 7222 50 64 01
Fax: +49 7222 506 402
MD: Martin Scherrer

Getinge Produktions-GmbH 
Zechenstrasse 12, Peiting, DE-86971 
E-mail: info@getinge-produktion.de 
Phone: +49 8861 689-0 
Fax: +49 8861 689-99 
MD: Alfred Heider 

HNE Huntleigh Nesbit Evans Healthcare 
GmbH
Otto-von-Guericke-Ring 10
60205 Wiesbaden
Germany
Email: karin.jones@hne-healthcare.de
Phone:+49 6122 937 0
Fax: +49 6122 937 157
MD: Robin Chapman

Maquet Cardiopulmonary AG
Hechinger Strasse 38
Hirrlingen, DE-72145
E-mail: info@maquet-cp.com
Phone: +49 74 78 921-0
Fax: +49 74 78 921 100
MD: Christian Keller

Maquet GmbH & Co.KG
Kehler Strasse 31
Rastatt, DE-76437
E-mail: info.zentrale@maquet.de
Phone: +49-7222 932 0
Fax: +49 7222 932 855
MD: Heribert Ballhaus

Maquet Vertrieb & Service GmbH
Kehler Strasse 31, Rastatt, DE-76437
E-mail: info.vertrieb@maquet.de
Phone: + 49 1803 2121 33
Fax: +49 1803 2121 77
President Infection Control: Christian Klein
President Medical Systems: Chima Abuba

Maquet Telemedicine GmbH
Bad Meinberger Str.1
DE-32760 Detmold 
Phone: + 49 5231 308 23 0 
Fax: + 49 5231 308 23 11 
President: Lothar Strolo/Andreas Böddicker

HONG KONG
Arjo Far East Ltd
Room 3A, 4/F Block B, 
Hoi Luen Industrial Centre,
55 Hoi Yuen Road, 
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Phone: +852 2508 9553
Fax: +852 2389 5797
GM: Kandy Loo 

Maquet Hong Kong Limited
1105-1107 Grand Centrury Place 1
193 Prince Edward Road West
Mongkok, Kowloon
Hong Kong
E-mail: cm.leung@maquet.de
Phone: +852 23939 511
Fax: +852 23939 512
MD: Florian Mond

INDIA
ArjoHuntleigh Healthcare India Pve Ltd
Plot No. 8 Shah Industrial Estate
Off Veera Desai Road
Andheri (West)
400053 Mumbai
Emai: sales@huntleigh-india.com
Phone: +91 2 2669 46697
Fax: + 91 22 6694 6698
MD: Chander Tahiliani

Maquet Medical India Pvt. Ltd
102 Pressman House
70A Nehru Road CTS No 76&87
Vile Parle (East), Mumbai, IN-400099
E-mail:
Phone: + 91 22 6675 5551-2-3
Fax: +91 22 6702 1114
MD: Ashim Purohit
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INTERNATIONAL
ArjoHuntleigh International Ltd
310-312 Dallow Road, Luton
Bedfordshire LU1 1TD
United Kingdom
Email: international@arjo-huntleigh.com
Phone: +44 1582 745800
Fax: +44 1582 745866
MD: Stéphane Lutran
 
Arjo International AB
Ideon Science Park, Scheelevägen 19 F
SE-223 70 Lund
E-mail: info@arjo.se
Phone: +46 413 645 00
Fax: +46 413 189 73
MD: Anders Hagert

IRELAND
ArjoHuntleigh Ireland Ltd
Sydenham Business Park
Unit 16-18
19 Heron Road
Belfast BT3 9LE
Email: belfast@arjo.co.uk
Phone: +44 2890 502000
Fax: +44 2890 502001
General Manager: William Dorrian

Maquet Ireland
B6 Calmount Park
Ballymount
Dublin 12
Republic of Ireland
E-mail: info@arjo.ie
Phone: +353 1 426 0032
Fax: + 353 1 426 0033
MD: Avril Forde

ITALY
ArjoHuntleigh S.p.A. 
Via Tor Vergata, 432, 
Roma, IT-00133 
Email: promo@arjohuntleigh.it
Phone: +39 06-87426214 
Fax: +39 06 87426222
MD: Emanuele Gribaudo

Getinge S.p.A. 
Via dei Buonvisi 61/D, IT-00148 
E-mail: info@getinge.it 
Phone: +39 0665 6631 
Fax: +39 0665 663 203 
MD: Silvio Dinale 

Maquet Italia S.p.A.
Via Gozzano 14
Cinello Balsamo, Milano, IT-20092
E-mail: info-it@maquet.it
Phone: +39 02 611 135 1
Fax: + 39 02 611 135 260/1
MD: Piero Nagni

JAPAN
Getinge Japan K.K.
Toshintakanawa Bldg. 9 F, 3-11-3 Takanawa, 
Minato-ku, Tokyo, JP 108-0074 
E-mail: enquiries-inco@getinge.com
Phone: +81 (0) 3 5791-7560
Fax: +81 (0) 3 5791-7565
MD: Masaru Kaneko

Maquet KK
Seafort Square Bldg. 7th Flor 
2-3-12 HigashiShinagawa, Shinagawa-ku
Tokyo 140-0002 
Japan
Phone: + 81 3 5463 8310 
Fax: + 81 3 5463 6856 
MD: Hideaki Yamashita

KOREA
Maquet Medical Korea Co. Ltd
801 Union Center
837-11 Yeoksam-Dong
Kangnam-Ku
Seoul, KR- 135-754
E-mail: jason.kim@maquet-kr.com
Phone: +82 2 558 2271
Fax: +82 2 558 2284
MD: Philippe Rocher

LATIN AMERICA
ArjoHuntleigh Latin America Inc.
2602 NW 97th Avenue
Miami, Florida 33172
Email: international@arjo-huntleigh.com
Phone: +1 305 4630526
Fax: +1 305 4630216
Regional Director: Joe Cristobal

NETHERLANDS
Arjo Nederland B.V.
De Blomboogerd 8
NL-4003 BX Tiel
Postbus 6116, 4000 HC Tiel
E-mail: info@ArjoHuntleigh.nl
Phone: +31 344 640 800
Fax: +31 344 640885
MD: Freek van Hulst

Getinge b.v. 
Fruiteniersstraat 27, P.O. Box 1004, 
3330 CA Zwijndrecht
The Netherlands
E-mail: info@getinge.nl 
Phone: +31 78 6102 433 
Fax: +31 78 6101 582 
MD: Ronald J.A. van Franck 

Huntleigh Healthcare Ltd
Antennestraat 45
NL-1322 AH Almere
Postbus 60165, 1320 AE Almere
Email: info@ArjoHuntleigh.nl
Phone: +31 36 53 35 588
Fax: +31 36 54 75 075
MD: Freek van Hulst

NEW ZEALAND
Huntleigh Healthcare Ltd
41 Vestey Drive
Mt Wellington
Auckland 
New Zealand
Email: sales@huntleighhealthcare.co.nz
Tel: +64 9 573 5344 or Free Call: 0800 000 
151
Fax: +64 9 573 5384
GM: Anthony Blyth

Maquet Netherlands B.V.
P. O. Box 388,
1200 AJ Hilversum, NL
E-mail: info@maquetnetherlands.nl
Phone: + 31 35 62 55 320 
Fax: +31 35 62 55 321
MD: Rob Stoopman

NORWAY
Getinge Norge A/S
Ryenstubben 2, Oslo, NO-0679
E-mail: info@getinge.no
Phone: +47 2303 5200
Fax: +47 230 3 5201
MD: Vegard Oulie

POLAND
ArjoHuntleigh Polska Sp. z.o.o.
ul. Ks. Wawrzyniaka 2
PL 62-052 Komorniki
Email (sales): international@arjo-huntleigh.
com
Tel: +48 61 662 15 50
Fax: +48 61 662 15 90
MD: Jacek Hupalo

Getinge Poland
Ul. Lirowa 27, Warszawa, PL-02-387
E-mail: info@getinge.pl
Phone: +48 2288 20627
Fax: +48 22 882 0627
MD: Jurek Bartos

Maquet Polska Sp.z.o.o
UI. Lirowa 27
Warszawa, PL-02-387
Phone: +48 22 882 0627 
Fax: + 48 22 882 2452 
President Jurek Bartos

PORTUGAL
Maquet Portugal Lda
Rua da Garagem 9
Carnaxide, PT-2790-078
E-mail:
Phone: +351 214 189 815
Fax: +351 214 177 413
MD: Rui Viegas

RUSSIA
Maquet LLC
Stanislavskogo 21, bld. 7
MOSCOW, 109004
RUSSIA 
E-mail: info@maquet.ru
Phone: + 7 495 514 0055
Fax: + 7 495 514 0056 
MD: Dr. Ksenija Uljanova
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SINGAPORE
Getinge International Far East Pte Ltd
20 Bendemer Road, No 01-07, #06-02 
Cyberhub Building,
Singapore, SG-339914
Phone: +65 6 396 7298
Fax: +65 639 679 78
MD: Dag Leff-Hallstein

Huntleigh Healthcare Pte Ltd
6 Harper Road
#04-08 Leong Huat Building
369674 Singapore
Email: singapore@huntleigh-healthcare.biz
Phone: +65 6289 4511 or Free call: 1800 88 
33333
Fax: +65 6289 3430
MD:Steve Blyth

Maquet South East Asia Pte. Ltd.
20 Bendemeer Road, #06-01/02
Cyberhub Building
Singapore, SG-339914
E-mail: sales@maquet-sg.com
Phone: + 65 6 296 1992 
Fax: +65 6 296 1937
MD: Philippe Rocher

SLOVAKIA
Maquet Medizintechnik Vertrieb und 
Service GmbH - o.z. 
Soltesovej 12 
811 08 Bratislava 
Slovakia
Phone: + 421 2 50219 150 
Fax: + 421 2 50219 240 
President: Friedrich Zinner

SOUTH AFRICA
ArjoHuntleigh Africa Pty Ltd
120 Willem Cruywagen Avenue
Klerksoord, Pretoria
South Africa
Email: sales@huntleighafrica.co.za
Phone: +27 12 542 4680
Fax: +27 12 542 4982
MD: Frederik Lombard

SPAIN
ArjoHuntleigh Ibérica S.L.
Carretera de Rubi, 88, 1a planta - A1
08130 Sant Cugat del Valles
BARCELONA
E-mail: info@ArjoHuntleigh.es 
Phone: +34 93 583 11 20
Fax: +34 93 583 11 22
MD: Javier Pigrau

Getinge Ibérica
Attention to Omar Cameron Pierre
Parque Empresarial de San Fernando
Edificio Francia 1ª planta
C/ Castilla nº2
28830 San Fernando de Henares(Madrid)
Tel: +34 916 782 626
Fax: +34 916 784 051
MD: Hugues Chassagne

Maquet Spain S.L.
P.E. San Fernando
Avda.Castilla 2
Edificio Francia, Planta Baja
San Fernando de Henares,
Madrid, ES-28830
Phone: +34 91 678 16 52
Fax: +34 916 78 16 53
MD: Manuel Moreno

SWEDEN
Arjo Scandinavia AB
Box 61, Eslöv, 241 21
E-mail: kundservice@arjo.se
Sweden
Phone: +46 413 645 00
Fax: +46 413 18 973
General Manager: Mattias Lundin

ArjoHuntleigh AB
Ideon Science Park, Scheelevägen 19 F
SE-223 70 Lund
E-mail: info@arjo.se
Phone: +46 413 645 00
Fax: +46 413 646 56
President & CEO: Michael Berg

Arjo Hospital Equipment AB
Verkstadsvägen 5
Box 61, Eslöv, SE-24121
E-mail: info@arjo.se
Phone: +46 413 64 500
Fax: +46 413-138 76
MD: Ulf Olsson

Getinge AB
P O Box 69, Getinge, SE-310 44
E-mail: info@getinge.com
Phone: +46 35 15 55 00
Fax: +46 35 15 56 40
MD: Johan Malmquist

Getinge Disinfection AB
P O Box 1505, Växjö, SE-351 15
E-mail: info.disinfection@getinge.com
Phone: +46 470 77 98 00
Fax: +46 470 208 32
MD: Roland Karlsson

Getinge Infection Control AB
P O Box 69, Getinge, SE-310 44
E-mail: info@getinge.com
Phone: +46 35 15 55 00
Fax: +46 35 18 14 50
MD: Christer Ström

Getinge International AB
P O Box 69, Getinge, SE-310 44
E-mail: info@getinge.com
Phone: +46 35 15 55 00
Fax: +46 35 16 63 92
MD: Harald Castler

Getinge Skärhamn AB
Industrivägen 5, Skärhamn, SE-471 31
E-mail: info@seska.getinge.com
Phone: +46 304 60 02 00
Fax: +46 304 60 02 29
MD: Gert Linder

Getinge Sverige AB
P O Box 69, Getinge, SE-310 44
E-mail: info@getinge.com
Phone: +46 35 15 55 00
Fax: +46 35 549 52
MD: Peter Ekolind

Getinge Sterilization AB
P O Box 69, Getinge, SE-310 44
E-mail: info@getinge.com
Phone: +46 35 15 55 00
Fax: +46 35 549 52
MD: Henrik Frisk

Maquet Critical Care AB
Röntgenvägen 2
Solna, SE-171 54
Phone: +46 8 73 07 300
Fax: +46 8 98 57 75
MD: Dan Rydberg

Maquet Nordic AB
Röntgenvägen 2
Solna, SE-171 95
E-mail: nordic@maquet.com
Phone: +46 8 73 07 272
Fax: +46 8 29 55 32
MD: Thomas Lindström

SWITZERLAND
ArjoHuntleigh AG
Florenzstrasse 1d
4023 Basel
Switzerland
E-mail: arjo.sic@arjo.ch
Phone: +41 61 337 97 77
Fax: +41 61 311 97 42
MD: Franco Lotto

Getinge Alfa AG
Weidenweg 17, Rheinfelden, CH-4310
E-mail: info@alfa.ag
Phone: +41 618 36 1515
Fax: +41 618 36 1510
MD: Martin Scherrer

Maquet AG
Wilerstrasse 75
Gossau, CH-9200
E-mail: info@maquet.ch
Phone: + 41 71 335 0303
Fax: +41 71 335 03 13
MD: Werner Kies

TAIWAN
Maquet Hong Kong Ltd Taiwan Branch 
37th Floor, TAIPEI 101 Tower 7 Xinyi Road 
Section 5, 110 Taipei 
Taiwan
Phone: + 886 287 582 738 
Fax: +886 287 582 999 
President: Leung Chau Ming

TURKEY
Maquet Cardiopulmonary Medikal Teknik 
San. Tic. Ltd. Sti. 
Serbest Bölge 
R Ada Yeni Liman
07070 Antalya
Turkey 
Phone: +90 242 249 90 00
Fax: +90 242 249 90 01
President: Murat Calik 

UAE
Huntleigh Middle East Office
Office MO5
Ahmed Bin
Juma Al Maktoum Building
SH Zayed Road
P.O. Box 102869
Email: international@arjo-huntleigh.com
Phone: +97143210200
Fax: +97143210300
Regional Director: Hashim Jamouse

UK
Arjo Med AB Ltd
St. Catherine Street, 
Gloucester, GL1 2SL
E-mail: uksales@arjo.co.uk
Phone: +44 1452 4282 00
Fax: +44 1452 428344
MD: Peter Vacher
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Getinge UK Ltd
Orchard Way, Calladine Park, Sutton-In-
Ashfield,
NG17 1JU
E-mail: sales@getinge.co.uk
Phone: +44 1623 5100 33
Fax: +44 1623 4404 56
MD: Stephen Parrish

Huntleigh Healthcare Ltd - Production
310-312 Dallow Road
Luton, Bedfordshire, LU1 1TD
Email:
Phone: +44 (0) 1582 413104
Fax:
General Manager: Ian Jones

Huntleigh Healthcare Ltd - Akron
1 Farthing Road
Ipswich, Suffolk, IP1 5AP
Email: sales@akronproducts.co.uk
Phone: +44 (0) 1473 461042
Fax: +44 1473 462924
MD: Simon Rees

Huntleigh Healthcare Ltd - Diagnostics
35 Portmanmoor Road
Cardiff, UK. CF24 5HN
Email: sales@huntleigh-diagnostics.co.uk
Phone: +44 (0)29 20485885
Fax: +44 (0)29 20492520
MD: Peter Cashin 

Huntleigh Healthcare Ltd - UK Sales & 
Service
310-312 Dallow Road
Luton, Bedfordshire, LU1 1TD
Email: sales.admin@huntleigh-healthcare.
com
Phone:+44 (0) 1582 413104
Fax:+44 (0) 1582 459100
MD: Geoff Cox

Lancer UK Ltd 
1 Pembroke Avenue, Waterbeach, 
Cambridge, CB25 9QP
Phone: +44-1223861665 
MD: Nick Satchell 

Maquet Ltd
14-15 Burford Way
Boldon Business Park
Sunderland, Tyne & Wear, NE35 9PZ
United Kingdom
E-mail: sales@maquet.co.uk
Phone: +44 191 519 6200
Fax: +44 191 519 6201
MD: Belal Al-Khatib

USA
Arjo Inc
50 North Gary Avenue, Unit A
Roselle, IL 60172
E-mail: info@arjousa.com
Phone: +1 800 323 1245
Fax: +1 888 594 2756 
President: Mark Harwood

Getinge International AB - Latin America 
Operations
8200 NW 27 th Street, Suite 107, Miami, 
FL-33122
E-mail: bo.engberg@getinge.com
Phone: +1 305 447-9 144
Fax: +1 305 447 9979
MD: Bo Engberg

Getinge Sourcing LLC
1777 East Henrietta Road, Rochester, NY 
14623-3133
E-mail: info@getingeusa.com
Phone: +1 585 475 1400
Fax: +1 585 272 5299
MD: John Aymong

Getinge USA Inc
1777 East Henrietta Road, Rochester, NY 
14623-3133
E-mail: info@getingeusa.com
Phone: +1 585 475 1400
Fax: +1 585 272 5210
MD: Andrew Cserey

Huntleigh Healthcare LLC 
40 Christopher Way 
Eatontown, New Jersey 07724 
Email: information@huntleighhealth.com
Phone: +1 732 578 9898 or toll free within 
the US 800-223-1218 
Fax: +1 732 578-9889
President & CEO: Robert S. Angel

La Calhène Inc.
P.O. Box 567, Rush City, MN-55069-0567
Phone: +1 320 358 4713
Fax: +1 320 3583 549
MD: Steven Jones

Lancer USA Inc
3543 State Road 419, Winter Springs, FL 
32708
E-mail: LancerUS@Lancer.com
Phone: +1 407 327 8488
Fax: +1 407 327 1229
MD: James Fry

Maquet Inc.
1140 Route 22 East, Suite 202, 
Bridgewater, NJ 08807
E-mail: customer.support@maquet-inc.com
Phone: +1 908 947 2300
Fax: +1 908 947 2301
MD: David DeSantis



GETINGE AB
P.O. Box 69
SE-310 44 GETINGE
Sweden
Phone: 035 15 55 00
E-mail: info@getinge.com
www.getingegroup.com

This Annual Report is produced by Getinge AB in collaboration with Columbi Communications AB in Lund, Sweden.

The Getinge Group is a leading global provider of equipment and systems that 
contribute to quality enhancement and cost efficiency within healthcare and life 
sciences. Equipment, services and technologies are supplied under the brands 
ArjoHuntleigh (patient hygiene, patient handling, disinfection, thrombosis 
prophylaxis, pressure ulcer prevention, wound care, hospital beds and 
diagnostics) GETINGE (infection control and prevention within healthcare and life 
science) and MAQUET (surgical workplaces, cardiopulmonary and critical care).


